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Chairman’s statement

EFRHEEE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”), | am
pleased to present to you the annual results of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW
For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
achieved revenue of approximately HK$1,366.8 million with
profit attributable to owners amounting to approximately
HK$169.4 million and basic earnings per share of
approximately HK11 cents.

Putting aside the adjustment as required by the new
accounting standard HKFRS 15, the Company achieved
revenue of approximately HK$1,258.7 million with a profit for
the year amounting to approximately HK$133.1 million.

In 2018, the Chinese economy kept facing pressure from the
US trade standoff and the impact of a domestic debt cleanup.
China’s trade conflict with the US was worsened in the second
half of 2018 where heat mounted after various rounds of tariff
lists exchange between the governments of the world’s two
biggest economies had come into effect and culminated when
the US announced in October 2018 that the initial tariff rate
was going to be raised from 10% to 25% before January 2019
and be extended to cover all imports from China if trade truce
cannot be reached before March 2019. Fortunately, a full
blown trade war had not come to scene yet when a temporary
ceasefire and extension of trade truce deadline had been
agreed in December 2018 and February 2019 respectively.
However, the uncertainty brought had loomed the second half
of 2018 and had caused the Chinese economy to grow at its
slowest pace in 28 years in 2018, with GDP expanding only
6.6%, down 0.2% from the previous year, according to data
recently released by the National Bureau of Statistics of the
People’s Republic of China.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

Due to tax hikes, public smoking bans and tougher advertising
rules, sales growth of cigarette products in China increased
only very slightly over the past two years. The destocking
program launched since 2016 has significantly reduced the
inventory level along various stages of cigarette industry which
had indirectly dampened the demand for cigarette package
products. However, such adverse effect showed strong signs
of fading out especially in the last quarter of 2018 where the
Group’s customers from China National Tobacco Corporation
(“*CNTC”) has already significantly reduced the inventory level
to a minimal level while demand for China tobacco products
remained rigid.

Printing and Manufacturing of Cigarette Package and
Related Materials

The second half of 2018 is still a tough period for this segment
especially in terms of the business volume brought by the
newly awarded tenders which went shipment later than
expected and postponed to first quarter of 2019. However, as
the inventory of the Group’s CNTC customers has been
exhausted after vigorous destocking for two consecutive years
since 2016, they had become proactive to award new tenders
to and/or orders from the Group either for stock refill or for
new brand promotions. Thanks to investment in upgrading the
Group’s production facilities and adding smart packaging
elements in the product design to the product for our
conventional customers, the average selling price of cigarette
packaging product has bottomed out with slight improvement
during the second half of 2018.

To achieve vertical integration of its supply chain and enhance
cost competitiveness under mandatory tendering system of
China tobacco industry, in July 2018, the Company has
completed the acquisition of Shenzhen Jin Sheng Cai
Packaging Materials Co., Ltd. (YT & AF BEMEBRA
A]) (“Jin Sheng Cai”), a company principally engaged in the
manufacture of raw materials required for the printing of
cigarette packaging.

Manufacturing of Laminated Papers
The profit of the Group’s laminated paper business remained
stable while the revenue increased slightly.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

Sales of RFID products

On 16 May 2017, Right Tech (China) Limited, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, as purchaser entered into a sale
and purchase agreement (the “SPA”) with an independent third
party as vendor, in relation to the acquisition of 70% equity
interest of Jiangsu HY Link Science & Technology Co., Limited
T EREE B F R A R A A (the “Target Company”) at the
total cash consideration of RMB44,982,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$51,849,000) or RMB46,410,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$53,494,000) subject to the financial
results of Target Company for the years end 31 December
2017 and 31 December 2018. Such acquisition did not
constitute a notifiable transaction to the Company under the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).

According to the 2017 and 2018 audited results of the Target
Company, financial performance as required by the profit
guarantee stated in the SPA were both met. The second
installment of the consideration had been paid in March 2018
to the seller and the final installment will be paid by the end of
March 2019.

The Target Company continued to grow significantly in terms
of its sales and profit earned from manufacturing of RFID and
NFC tags sold to overseas and local non-cigarette customers.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

PROSPECTS

The Chinese government had just announced in early March
2019 at the National People’s Congress that the GDP growth
target will be adjusted downward from about 6.5% to a range
between 6-6.5%. The deep rooted difference between the two
countries is yet to be resolved and is expected to drag on
beyond months. Accordingly, China will lower its value-added
tax (VAT) rates as part of an RMB2 trillion cost cut package, as
the government seeks to reduce costs for businesses amid a
slowing economy and tariff dispute with the US. The 16
percent VAT rate, which applies to the manufacturing sector,
will be lowered to 13 percent which will provide direct,
immediate and broad impetus to the manufacturing sector.
Since the cigarette package printing market remains
substantially in China and for Mainland consumers, the effect
of the trade war with the US is expected to be minimal and
indirect.

The business volume of China tobacco market as a whole is
still expected to grow at low single digit in 2019. However, as
the adverse effect of destocking in China tobacco industry
decreases rapidly and the industry inventory depletes to JIT
level, the business throughput of the industry will turn more
quickly with a volume which finally synchronises with the
monthly consumption cycle of Chinese tobacco users.
Moreover, the government’s proactive stimulus at an
unprecedented extent and depth to alleviate the burden of
manufacturing sector and encourage employment under the
threat of a trade war is expected to spillover to the cigarette
packaging industry.

Despite the challenges faced by the Group in recent years, the
Group is optimistic about the future as destocking’s adverse
effect will inevitably come to an end and sales price will
improve by adding smart packaging elements into
conventional cigarette market.

Driven by spectacular growth in our RFID segment, we had
already upgraded our IOT factory in Jiangsu which had been
developed into a top player in the industry in terms of both
business volume and production technology within China. The
construction of new IOT factory is underway and expected to
facilitate our growing presence within China and internationally.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

To strengthen the Group’s foothold in the manufacture,
production and sales of paper packaging materials through
the newly acquired Jin Sheng Cai, the Group has added
production lines to be manufacturer of plastic film under its
own facilities and making it a full fledged factory with ability to
supply broad range of raw materials to the Group companies
and other cigarette package manufacturers.

The smart packaging system developed by the Group is
undergoing test-run stage which will be promoted as a
separate brand new solution to our conventional cigarette
customers and to the new “heat-not-burn” tobacco product
market which is expected to grow exponentially in near future.
Such system with major modules comprising warehousing
management, manufacturing execution, and customer relation
management will offer one-stop-solutions to all participants
along the whole value chain of the packaging industry including
the package manufacturer, business package user, logistic
provider, distribution intermediaries and finally the consumer
ends.

The Company is exploring various options of optimising the
use of its land reserves, including land currently under short
term lease after relocation of factory of the Group and land
with redevelopment capacity. The feasibility and potential of
such options will be evaluated by the Board in a reasonable
and prudent manner, with the aim to create new business
opportunities for the Group and further its development and
growth in the long term.

It is the Group’s corporate mission to continue to explore ways
to improve its financial performance, to equip the Group with
growth momentum, to diversify its operations internationally
into new and more profitable businesses and to broaden the
sources of revenue within acceptable risk level. Hence, the
Company does not rule out the possibility of investing in or
diversifying into other profitable business as long as it is in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to seek investment
and business opportunities with a view to achieving a
sustainable growth, increasing profitability and ultimately
maximising the return to the shareholders of the Company.
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Chairman’s statement
FEHRESE

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would also like to take this
opportunity to express my gratitude to our customers,
suppliers and shareholders for their continuing support, my
fellow directors for their guidance as well as our staff for their
dedication and hard work.

Cai Xiao Ming, David
Chairman
26 March 2019
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Management discussion and analysis

SRR

REVENUE

During the year, the revenue of the Group was approximately
HK$1,366.8 million (2017: HK$1,265.5 million), which
represents an increase of approximately HK$101.3 million or
8.0% as compared with 2017.

Putting aside the adjustment of HKFRS 15, the revenue of the
Group was approximately HK$1,258.7 million, which
represents a decrease of approximately HK$6.8 million or
0.5% as compared with 2017. After HKFRS 15 adjustment,
the revenues of our business segment of (1) printing and
manufacturing of cigarette package and related materials
increased by 4.0% to HK$1,236.9 million, (2) manufacturing of
laminated papers increased by 4.5% to HK$44.8 million, and
(3) sales of RFID products increased by 158.4% to HK$85.1
million. Putting aside the HKFRS 15 adjustment, the revenues
of the segment of printing and manufacturing of cigarette
package and related materials decreased by 5.1% to
HK$1,128.7 million while there is no significant difference for
the remaining two segments.

The slight decrease in revenue is mainly due to decrease in
business volume due to destocking partially offset by slight
improvement in average selling price during the year.

GROSS PROFIT

During the year, gross profit of the Group decreased by
approximately HK$7.7 million or 2.5% to HK$300.9 million as
compared with 2017. The gross profit margin has decreased
from 24.4% in 2017 to 22.0% in 2018. Putting aside the
adjustment of HKFRS15, the gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$256.5 million, which represents a decrease
of approximately HK$52.1 million or 16.9% as compared with
2017. The gross profit margin has decreased from 24.4% to
20.4% in 2018. It was mainly due to (i) decrease in business
volume brought by destocking of customers; and (i) decrease
in the sub-contracting business to control credit risk with those
late paying non-CNTC subcontractors. With the tremendous
marketing effort combined with crossing smart packaging
solution to the customers, the average selling price has
managed to rebound and outweighted part of the adverse
impact of a weak volume.
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Management discussion and analysis

SRR

OTHER INCOME

Other income decreased by HK$3.2 million as compared with
2017. The decrease is primarily attributable to (i) decrease in
government grant of HK$8.1 million; (i) increase in sales of
scrap materials of HK$8.3 million; (i) decrease in rental income
due to lesser idle industrial premises; and (iv) decrease in
interest from loan receivable of HK$1.3 million.

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

The net losses increased by HK$20.1 million to HK$64.4
million. The increase was mainly due to (i) increase in
unrealized foreign exchange loss of HK$4.1 million associated
with the Hong Kong dollar net monetary liabilities; (i) increase
of goodwill impairment losses by HK$8.0 million to HK$48.0
million due to downward adjustment of a CGU’s business
forecast and (jii) losses on disposal of partial equity interest in
an associate, offset by the gain from change in fair value of
financial assets of HK$3.4 million.

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

The assumptions and estimates are stated in note 20 to
financial statements. The assumptions and estimates are the
same as or similar to those used in prior years and considered
by the management to be reasonable and supportable by
reference to the historical results save for CGU1.

For CGU1, the assumed year on year growth rate for 2019
sales has been adjusted upward from 6.6% to 13% due to a
strong recovery brought by the newly awarded tenders and
smart packaging business as compared to 2018. The gross
margin is however adjusted downward from 40.9% to 35.8%
because of comparatively higher development cost of smart
packaging business in near future. These led to a further
provision made for impairment losses of HKD48,000,000 in
2018. However, the new sales positioning of CGU1 is
expected to yield a rising gross margin gradually up to 38.8%.
Such assumptions are considered reasonable and supportable
in view of encouraging orders on hand as at 31 December
2018. The impairment provision made on goodwill for CGU1 is
considered reasonable based on the valuation by Jones Lang
LaSalle, an independent valuer.

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs were determined to be
in excess of their respective carrying amounts. The
management believes that the reasonable and supportable
changes in the key assumptions would not cause the
recoverable amount to fall below the carrying value of the
respective CGUSs.
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Management discussion and analysis

SR B

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

The selling and distribution expenses increased by HK$17.4
million to HK$60.4 million. As a result of efforts to expand the
packaging business channel, promote the application of RF
technology and services and form an independent professional
marketing team.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES AND OTHER
EXPENSES

During the year, administrative expenses and other expenses
increased by approximately HK$13.9 million or 15.8% to
HK$102.0 million. The increase was primarily due to the (i)
increase in staff cost of HK$9.8 million because of increase in
administration staff cost associated with new subsidiaries and
the increased staff bonus; (ii) increase in legal expenses of
HK$8.3 million relating to the merger and acquisitions and
lawsuit; and (i) decrease in depreciation of HK$5.7 million and
increase in rental expenses of HK$2.9 million mainly
associated with sales and leaseback of Hong Kong office
premise.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs increased by 3.6% to approximately HK$22.8
million. It was mainly due to interest rate hike of bank
borrowings during the year.

SHARE OF PROFITS OF ASSOCIATES

Share of profits of associates increased by approximately
HK$4.3 million to HK$51.7 million during the year. The
increase in net profit of our associates was mainly due to the
increase in average selling price brought by improvement in
product mix and cost cutting measures of the Group’s major
associate Changde Goldroc Rotogravure Printing Co. during
the year.

TAXATION

The effective tax rate of the Group decreased from 25.9% to
21.2% in 2018. It was primarily due to increase in non-
assessable profit related to disposal of subsidiary.
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Management discussion and analysis

EEENmR DN

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to the owners of the Company increased by
22.7% or by HK$31.4 million to HK$169.4 million, mainly
because of one-off gain of disposal of subsidiary of HK$91.7
million, earlier recognition of sales profit of HK$36.3 million due
to HKFRS 15 adjustment and increase in impairment loss of
goodwill to HK$48.0 million (2017: HK$40.0 million). Putting
aside the adjustment of HKFRS 15 of HK$36.3 million, profit
for the year attributable to the owners of the Company would
be approximately HK$133.1 million, representing a decrease
of approximately HK$4.9 million. If the effect of impairment of
goodwill of HK$48.0 million (2017: HK$40.0 million) is also put
aside, the profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company would be approximately HK$181.1 million,
representing a slight increase of approximately 1.7 %.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, revenue was generated from three business
segments: (i) the printing and manufacturing of cigarette
packages and related materials of approximately HK$1,236.9
million (2017: HK$1,189.7 million), (i) manufacturing of
laminated papers of approximately HK$44.8 million (2017:
HK$42.8 million), and (iii) sales of RFID products of
approximately HK$85.1 million (2017: HK$32.9 million). The
earnings from the printing and manufacturing of cigarette
packages and related materials and manufacturing of
laminated papers decreased by 11.7% to approximately
HK$259.8 million (2017: HK$294.3 million) and 0.4% to
approximately HK$10.3 million (2017: HK$10.4 million)
respectively. Earnings from the printing and manufacturing of
cigarette packages and related materials accounted for
approximately 90.6% of the total segment earnings before
unallocated items.
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Management discussion and analysis

SR B

FINANCIAL POSITION AND LIQUIDITY

The Group generally finances its operations with internally
generated resources and banking facilities. As at 31 December
2018, the Group had net current assets of HK$287.1 million
(2017: HK$478.5 million), while the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents amounted to HK$355.5 million (2017: HK$292.5
million). As at 31 December 2018, the short-term interest-
bearing bank borrowings of the Group amounted to HK$601.3
million (2017: HK$621.9 million). Carrying amounts of trade
receivables, bank deposits and non-current assets classified
as held for sale pledged for securing credit facilities amounted
to approximately HK$Nil (2017: HK$451.5 million), HK$11.3
million (2017: HK$5.5 million) and HKS$Nil (2017: HK$197.5
million) respectively. As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s
gearing ratio, represented by the amount of interest-bearing
borrowings divided by shareholders equity, was reduced to
22.2% (as at 31 December 2017: 22.8%). As at 31 December
2018, the Group had capital commitments for purchase of
property, plant and equipment which amounted to
HK$67. 1million (2017: HK$4.5 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND GUARANTEES
Save as disclosed in note 49 to the consolidated financial
statements or elsewhere in the annual report, the Group did
not provide any guarantees to third party and had no material
contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2018.

HMERAEREBES
REE—RUAIPEENERZIRITRE B
NEEE® RZTE—N\F+ZA=+—
H - AEBE /R E & EFE 4287,100,000
BIL(ZZE—+F 1 478,500,000 7T) © M
AEBEMNRESREASLEEEBNA
355,500,000 7( = T — + #F:
292,500,000 L) c RZE—\F+ = H
=+—B  AEENKMNEBEHRITEEA
601,300,000% 7x( = T — + #F:
621,900,000 7T) - AESEE R E il & 17
MEBZRUHIE  RITEAEDBEAEERS
ERERBEENEAEDANATET
( = & — + % :451,500,000% 7T )
11,300,000/ 7T (= Z —+t4F : 5,500,000 7
) RZEBTT(ZZT— L4 197,500,000
) R—ZE—N\E+-A=+—8 K&
BZH B EERRRESFSSETENE
EEBHERRE22% (R _ZE—+tF+=
A=1T—H:228%)  RZZFE—\F+=
A=Z+—8 X&ERWEEYE - BE KRR
1 & AR EIE /67,100,0008 T (— B —+
4 1 4,500,000/87T) °

R TI]]

HAREBBERER

BRER BSR4 AN FHRE A
FIRBEEN R_F—-N\F+_A=+—
B AEEWEASE=FREERER - TF
BAMEARABE -

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Management discussion and analysis

EEENmR DN

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 11 January 2018, the Company, as the vendor, entered
into a provisional sale and purchase agreement in relation to
the disposal of the entire issued capital of, and the debts due
by, Empire Sail Limited and its subsidiary (the “Target Group”)
at the cash consideration of HK$295,000,000, to Lion Capital
Investment Limited, as the purchaser. The principal asset of
the Target Group is a commercial building property together
with three car parking spaces. The completion of the
transaction had taken place on 30 April 2018. Details of the
transaction can be referred to the announcement of the
Company dated 11 January 2018.

On 18 July 2018, Shenzhen Kecai Printing Company Limited
(R R ENFE B PR A a]), a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement with
an independent third party in relation to the acquisition of the
entire equity interest of Jin Sheng Cai at the cash consideration
of RMB130,000,000. Details of the transaction can be referred
to the announcements of the Company dated 29 June 2018
and 13 July 2018.

Save as disclosed above or elsewhere in the annual report,
there was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries or
associated companies by the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018.

TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopted a prudent strategy towards the treasury
and funding policies, with strong emphasis on risk control and
transactions directly related to the Group’s principal business.
Funds, primarily denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong
dollars, are normally placed with banks in short or medium
term deposits for working capital of the Group.
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Management discussion and analysis

SRR

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group’s operation was mainly financed by funds
generated from its operations and borrowings. As at 31
December 2018, the borrowings were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, while the cash and cash
equivalents held by the Group were mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. The Group’s turnover is
denominated in Renminbi, while its costs and expenses are
mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi. In
view of the prevailing macro-economic environment and the
volatile foreign exchange market, the Group is exposed to the
foreign exchange rate risk. An exchange gain has arisen due
to the translation of functional currency of Renminbi to
presentation currency of Hong Kong dollar during the reporting
period when Renminbi depreciated against Hong Kong dollar.
However, such translation is a non-cash item in nature and
has no practical effect to our daily operation as majority of our
revenue and cost are all denominated in Renminbi. The Group
will closely monitor the volatility of foreign exchange rate and
apply the appropriate hedging strategy if necessary.

CHARGES ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, assets with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$11.3 million (31 December 2017: HK$654.4
million) were pledged to banks in respect of banking facilities
granted to the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had 11 (2017: 18) and
1,315 (2017: 1,178) full-time staff based in Hong Kong and the
PRC respectively. The Group’s remuneration packages are
generally structured with reference to market terms and
individual merits. The Group participates in a defined
contribution retirement benefits scheme under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its employees in
Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ base salaries. The Group also made
contributions to provident funds, elderly insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance and work-related injury
insurance in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations in the PRC. The Group has adopted a share option
scheme as a reward to eligible high-caliber employees and to
attract similar high quality personnel that are valuable to the
Group.
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Profile of directors and senior management

ESkEREEERE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CAl Xiao Ming, David (%% 8f), aged 41, was appointed
as an Executive Director on 18 December 2008. He was re-
designated as the Chairman of the Board with effect from 31
October 2014 and is responsible for the overall management
of the Group. Mr. David Cai is a director of most subsidiaries
of the Company. Mr. David Cai has more than 11 years of
experience in the packaging and printing industry gained from
the management of the Group’s business. Mr. David Cai
joined the Group in January 2001.

Mr. QIN Song (#{#2), aged 46, is an Executive Director, the
Chief Executive Officer and a member of the Nomination
Committee of the Company. He was appointed as the Vice
Chairman of the Group with effect from 3 December 2015. Mr.
Qin joined the Group in May 2002, and worked, among other
positions, as the Office Administrator of the Group and General
Manager of various subsidiaries of the Company. Since
September 2005, Mr. Qin serves as the Deputy Director of the
market committee of the Company and since February 2006,
a Vice President of the Company. From May 2010 to October
2011, he also served as the General Manager of Bengbu
Jinhuangshan Rotogravure Printing Company Limited in
addition to his then existing duties. Mr. Qin holds a Bachelor’s
degree in Economics and Management Administration.
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Profile of directors and senior management

ESREREEERE

Mr. Chen Xiao Liang (FR#X R ) Mr. Chen, aged 60, has over
20 years of extensive experience in the property investment
and development industry. He was the Chairman of Merryearn
(Holdings) Limited (& 7 & iR & B A& R 2 7)) from 1985 to
1995. He has been the Chairman of a number of corporations
in mainland China, namely, Shenzhen Guangyin Building
Industry Co., Limited* (& JI| & iR K JE & % B BR 2 7)) since
1995; Shenzhen Hongta Industry Co., Limited* (R4 E %
AR A &) since November 2002 (in which he has also been
acting as a general manager); Shenzhen Hongding Asset
Management Co., Limited* (R AL R EEEEBR R A))
since February 2010; and Shenzhen Hongding Property
Development Co., Limited* (FIITT4L R FEHERZE B R AR])
since June 2010. Mr. Chen is the father-in-law of Mr. Cai Xiao
Ming, David (an executive Director and the Chairman of the
Board). Mr. Chen has been appointed as an executive Director
with effect from 12 March 2019.

Mr. Chen Huapei (FRE3E) Mr. Chen, aged 44, has been appointed
as the Group’s Vice President since October 2018. With
extensive experience in financial audit management, Mr. Chen
is responsible for managing the financial and auditing systems
of the Group. Mr. Chen joined the Group in October 1997 and
has served in various subsidiaries of the Group. He has served
as the chief cost accountant at the Group’s Head Office,
finance manager of Bengbu Jinhuangshan Rotogravure
Printing Co., Limited, finance director of Shenzhen Kecai
Printing Co., Limited, deputy general manager of Changde
Goldroc Printing Co., Limited and assistant to Group’s CEO.
Mr. Chen graduated from Yangzhou University with a major in
economic information management and he is currently
pursuing a master’s degree at Xian University of Technology.
Mr. Chen has been appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 9 November 2018.

* The English names are not official names and are provided for
identification purpose only
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ESkEREEERE

Non-Executive Director

Ms. LI Li (Z2%]), aged 47, was appointed as an non-executive
Director on 22 July 2015. Ms. Li is a Chairman of the board of
directors of Masterwork Group Co., Ltd. (K ERZRI £ H
M 1D B BR A Al) (“Masterwork” together with its subsidiaries,
the “Masterwork Group”), a company whose issued shares are
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (Stock code: 300195).
She is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Masterwork
Group Co., Ltd. and Tianjin Ming Xuan Investment Limited
Company* (RKZEZE R E B A A]). Ms. Li is qualified as a
senior economist in the People’s Republic of China. She has
extensive management experience in the printing and
packaging companies.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. LAM Ying Hung, Andy (#%}5), aged 55, was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009.
Mr. Lam is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
a member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee of the Company. Mr. Lam has over 25 years of
experience in accounting, banking and finance sectors. Mr.
Lam is the Managing Consultant of Lontreprise Consulting
Limited. Mr. Lam is an associate member of various
professional organisations, namely The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators, The Hong Kong Institute of
Company Secretaries and The Hong Kong Institute of
Bankers. Mr. Lam is also a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a Certified Public
Accountant of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”). Mr. Lam is an Independent Non-
Executive Director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited and
Synertone Communication Corporation and Weiye Holdings
Limited, all of them are companies listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam received his Master of
Professional Accounting and Master of Science in
E-commerce for Executives both from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University.

*

The English name is not an official name and is provided for
identification purpose only
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ESREREEERE

Mr. LUI Tin Nang (& X &€), aged 61, was appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director on 4 March 2009. Mr. Lui
is the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of
the Company. Mr. Lui has a Bachelor degree in Science from
the University of Leeds, a Master Degree in Business
Administration from the University of Bradford in United
Kingdom and a Postgraduate Diploma in insolvency from
HKICPA. He is a fellow member of the HKICPA (Practicing),
the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, the
Taxation Institute of Hong Kong, and The Society of Chinese
Accountants and Auditors. He is also a member of the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountant, Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in Australia and the Certified Tax
Adviser. He has years of experience in accounting, auditing,
taxation, corporate finance and business advisory. Mr. Lui is
also an Independent Non-Executive Director of Noble House
(China) Holdings Limited which listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.
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Mr. SIU Man Ho, Simon (& XX &), aged 45, is a practising
solicitor of the High Court of Hong Kong. He obtained a
Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong Kong in
1996 and is a partner of a Hong Kong law firm, namely Sit,
Fung, Kwong & Shum Solicitors. Mr. Siu is also a China
Appointed Attesting Officer appointed by the Ministry of
Justice of the PRC. His areas of practice include corporate
finance, capital markets, securities, mergers and acquisitions,
joint ventures and general commercial matters. Mr. Siu is also
an independent non-executive director of Wai Yuen Tong
Medicine Holdings Limited (stock code 897), Shuang Yun
Holdings Limited (stock code 1706) and HKE Holdings Limited
(stock code 1726), all of which are companies listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Moreover, he was
appointed as the independent non-executive director of Weiye
Holdings Limited (stock code 1570) in March 2016 and
resigned from the position in December 2018. He also actively
participates in charitable and social services in Hong Kong. He
was previously appointed as the director of Hong Kong Pok Oi
Hospital. He is acting as the legal adviser for United Hearts
Youth Foundation, VQ Foundation and Hong Kong Taekwondo
Association as well as the school manger of The Association
of Directors and Former Directors of Pok Oi Hospital Ltd.
Leung Sing Tak College. He is also a member of the
Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference in Yangjiang City of Guangdong Province, the
PRC. Mr. Siu is the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JIANG Xiang Yu (3&%£3#0), aged 63, is the General Manager
of Bengbu Jinhuangshan Rotogravure Printing Co., Limited.
He joined the Group in 1999 and has over 15 years of
experience in the cigarette package industry.

Mr. YAN Feng (& £), aged 61, is the Vice President of the
Group since March 2016 responsible for the Group
infrastructure advancement, equipment management and
investment, policy research and technology management. Mr.
Yan joined the Group in 2000 and has more than 20 years of
experience in the cigarette package industry and he also has
experience in printing of books services. Between May 2000
to April 2001, he served as the design director and marketing
manager in the headquarter of the Group. Between November
2003 to November 2006, he served as Deputy General
Manager of Xiangfan Jinfeihuan Colour Packing Company
Limited (“Xiangfan Jinfeihuan”). Between April 2009 to May
2010, he served as the General Manager of the Group
responsible for the printing of paper products. Between
November 2010 to December 2012, he served as the Deputy
General Manager of CD Goldroc. Between May 2013 to March
2016, he served as General Manager of Xiangfan Jinfeihuan.

Ms. ZHENG Jinghui (E88#£), aged 41, is the Vice President
of the Group since March 2016 responsible for the
management of the Group’s strategy, human resources, office
administration. Ms. Zheng graduated from Beihang University,
specializing in computer application, Zhejiang University
specializing in human resources management. She joined the
Group in 2000 and has served in various role as information
technology manager, operations manager, human resources
manager, vice president and assistant to CEO of the Group.

Ms. Al Ping (X ) aged 44, joined the Group in July 2001
and has been appointed as the Group’s Vice President since
June 2018. With extensive experience in market development
and business management, Ms. Ai Ping is responsible for the
expansion of some of the Group’s business markets and
concurrently serves as the general manager of the subsidiary
Xiangyang Jinfeihuan Color Package Co., Ltd.
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Profile of directors and senior management

ESkEREEERE

Mr. CHUNG Tat Hung (§23£78), aged 51, is the Chief Financial
Officer and Company Secretary of the Group. Mr. Chung had
worked in various companies as finance manager and
accounting manager, and was previously an accountant of an
international accounting firm. Mr. Chung joined the Group in
October 2003 until February 2013 and served as the Finance
Manager of the Group. He rejoined the Group in March 2014.
Mr. Chung is a fellow member of HKICPA and a certified
practicing accountant of Australian Society of Certified
Practising Accountants. Mr. Chung received his Master of
Business Administration jointly offered by the University of
Sydney and the University of New South Wales in Australia in
2002 and Bachelor of Commerce from the Australian National
University in 1991.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the
Company are set out in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2018 and the future development of the Group’s
business is set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement” on pages 4 to 9 of this annual report. Financial and
business performance analysis is disclosed in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 10
to 16 and note 6 to the consolidated financial statements. The
principal risks and uncertainties affecting the Group’s results
and business can be found in notes 4, 40 to 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The PRC cigarette industry is closely monitored and controlled
by the PRC government and our customers are concentrated
on a limited number of state-owned cigarette manufacturers.
The Group’s success depends on the support from key
stakeholders which comprise shareholders, regulators,
customers, employees, local communities and business
partners etc. and we have maintained good and strong
business relationship with our customers through joint venture
and other co-operations. During the year ended 31 December,
2018 and up to the date of this annual report, we have
complied with all the relevant rules, laws and regulations in the
PRC that have a significant impact on the Group. Further
details about the environmental and social responsibility will be
published in separate report to be uploaded on the websites
of the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on pages 61 to 62. The Board does not recommend the
payment of a dividend for the year ended 31 December 2018
(2017: Nil). During 2018, the special dividend of HK12.75
cents in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017,
amounting to approximately HK$199,905,000 has been paid
to shareholders.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2019
annual general meeting, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 30 May 2019 to 5 June 2019
(both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares
of the Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the 2019 annual general meeting, all
transfer of shares of the Company accompanied by the
relevant share certificate(s) and appropriate transfer form(s)
must be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 29 May 2019.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate sales to the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 51.1% of the Group’s
turnover and sales to the Group’s largest customer was
approximately 27.7% of the Group’s total revenue. During the
year, the aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers accounted for approximately 43.0% of the
Group’s total purchases, and the purchases attributable to the
Group’s largest supplier was approximately 22.9% of the
Group’s total purchases.

None of the Directors, their close associates (within the
meaning of the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had interests in the Group’s
five largest customers or suppliers.
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Report of the directors
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the share capital of the Company are set out in note
37 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

At 31 December 2018, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to approximately HK$843 million. Under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date on
which the distribution or dividend is proposed to be distributed,
the Company shall be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business. Details of the movements in
reserves of the Group and the Company are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
shares.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results of the Group for the last
five financial years and of its consolidated assets and liabilities
as at the end of the last five financial years is set out on pages
235 to 236.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities during the year ended 31 December 2018.
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Report of the directors
EEEREE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 4 March 2009, the shareholders of the Company had
approved and adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”). Key terms of the Share Option Scheme are
summarized below:

M

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide
incentive or reward to eligible persons for their
contribution to the Group and/or to enable the Group to
recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group or any
entity in which the Group holds any equity interest.

Qualifying participants of the Share Option Scheme
include any employee, executive and non-executive
Directors, customer or supplier of goods or services to
any member of the Group, consultant, adviser, manager,
officer or entity that provide research, development or
other technological support to the Group or its
member(s).

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme is
40,000,000 shares, being 10% of the total number of
shares in issue as at 30 March 2009, being the date of
listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange as adjusted by the share subdivision effective
on 11 June 2013, or about 2.55% of the total number of
shares in issue as at 31 December 2018.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Company, must
not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of
shares in issue from time to time.

Unless approved by shareholders in general meeting, the
total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of all options granted to any eligible participant
under the Share Option Scheme in the 12-month period
up to and including such further grant must not exceed
1% of the total number of shares in issue.
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(vi)  The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for  (vi)
a period of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption
of the Share Option Scheme, after which period no
further option shall be granted.

(vii) A non-refundable consideration of HK$1 is payable on  (vii)
acceptance of the offer of grant of an option. An offer of
grant of an option may be accepted by an eligible person
within the date as specified in the offer letter issued by
the Company, being a date not later than 21 business
days from the date offer is made.

(vii) An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms  (viii)
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
(which may not expire later than 10 years from the date
of the grant) to be notified by the Board at its sole
discretion. There is no performance target that has to be
achieved before the exercise of any option.

(iX) The subscription price must be at least the higher of (1)  (ix)
the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant; (2)
the average of the closing price of the Company’s shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (3) the nominal value of a Company’s share.

(X) The Board is entitled at any time within 10 years between  (x)
4 March 2009 and 3 March 2019 to offer the grant of an
option to any qualifying participants.
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Up to the date of this report, no option under the Share Option EHZE A% B - EE e EREERET
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Scheme has expired.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR BEROBESHNZH

DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme disclosed above, at no & XA BEEAEZI9N - REZEARARQ
time during the year was the Company or any of its  AISKEH ] B AR WELZX BT T - F
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the EERESARQ sk EAE M AT AI Ak
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of E&MmEzxR ©

shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Report of the directors
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SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s subsidiaries as at the date of this
report are set out in note 50 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group participates in a provident fund scheme as defined
in the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance,
Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “MPF Scheme”).
The MPF Scheme was a defined contribution scheme and the
assets of the MPF Scheme were managed by a trustee.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64
and with at least 60 days of service under the employment of
the Group in Hong Kong. Contributions were made by the
Group at 5% based on the staff’s relevant income. The
maximum relevant income for contribution purpose is
HK$30,000 per month. Staff members were entitled to 100%
of the Group’s contributions together with accrued returns
irrespective of their length of service with the Group, but the
benefits were required by law to be preserved until the
retirement age of 65.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries established in
the PRC are members of a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute certain percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and wages to the central pension scheme to
fund the retirement benefits. The local municipal government
undertakes to assume the retirement benefits obligations of all
existing and future retired employees of these subsidiaries.
The only obligation of these subsidiaries with respect to the
central pension scheme are to meet the required contributions
under the scheme.

The Group’s cost for the schemes charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted to
approximately HK$14,096,000 (2017: HK$11,117,000).
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David (Chairman)

Mr. Qin Song (Chief Executive Officer and Vice-Chairman)
Mr. Chen Xiao Liang (appointed on 12 March 2019)

Mr. Chen Huapei (appointed on 9 November 2018)

Non-Executive Director:
Ms. Li Li

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy

Mr. Lui Tin Nang

Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon

According to article 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, one-third of the Directors for the time being shall
retire from office by rotation at the annual general meeting of
the Company but shall then be eligible for re-election.

Details of the Directors subject to rotation and re-election are
contained in the circular despatched together with this annual
report.

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1) of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”), the Board currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, representing more than one-third of the
Board. Pursuant to paragraph 12B of Appendix 16 of the
Listing Rules, each of the independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed by annual confirmation that he has complied
with the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all three
independent non-executive Directors are independent under
these independence criteria and are capable to effectively
exercise independent judgement.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 17 to 23.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Chen Xiao Liang has entered into a service agreement with
the Company for an initial term of two years commencing from
12 March 2019, and will continue thereafter until terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party. Mr. Chen Huapei has entered into a service agreement
with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from 9 November 2018, and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice. Ms. Li Li has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
22 July 2015, and will continue thereafter until terminated by
not less than three months’ notice in writing served by either
party. Each of Mr. David Cai and Mr. Qin Song has entered
into a service agreement with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 30 March 2018 and will continue
thereafter until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party. Each of Mr. Lam Ying
Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon has
renewed their appointment for a fixed term of three years
commencing from 30 March 2018.

Save as aforesaid, none of the Directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

EEREREEBENBEREFE

EZLmAEEEREABRERNE T
F23H e

EENRKEEL
PRRRAEEEARBFLRBEHE 8=
T-NF=ZA+ZHRFVFRERF - I
BRERIEE  BEEHEP—HBEIDR=
EAMEEmRALIEALE o FRESF L AD M
RRARGRIIRBEHE B = —\F+—AH
NBRFVSABP=F  UHNERTEE -
BEEEF—FEHIPR=(EANEERAM
BIEAIE - THZETEEARR R RG 1%
HOBAE—AFtAZ T —BBFVTSAE
H=F  WEREREE BEEHFP—FE
EADR=EAKNEEBMLIEAIE - 205
B E RN EAEE S B EBARFR] RS
i BT N\F=ZA=THRBETA
H=F  WiEHRERLEE BEEHF—F%
EADR=EAMEEBALIEAIE - AR
B BREEGSENRBNRALECEET
o EFEEHesE T ) \F=A=1tH#E
BE=F -

B EXFTtES - R ERERFBEFAE L
ERBENEEHMEEANRRFLAATAR
RER—FARIEMBANEEOCEER
ERRSN H RIS R AT ©

2018F 3 EREREBEERAF

31



32

Report of the directors
EEEREE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS
Details of the related party transactions entered into during the
year were disclosed in note 48 to the consolidated financial
statements. Save as those disclosed under the paragraph
headed “Continuing Connected Transactions” below, these
related party transactions either did not constitute connected
transactions under the Listing Rules or were exempted
connected transactions under the Listing Rules. Save as the
transactions aforementioned, no transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director, an entity connected with a Director or the
controlling shareholder of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year, and there was no contract of
significance for the provision of services to the Group by the
controlling shareholder of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates, has
engaged in any business that competes or may compete with
the business of the Group, or has any other conflict of interest
with the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Group were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to the applicable laws, every Director and other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified by
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
may incur in the execution and discharge of his or her duties
or in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s Articles of
Association. Such provisions were in force during the course
of the financial year ended 31 December 2018 and remained
in force as of the date of this report.

The Group has also taken out and maintained liability
insurance for Directors and officers throughout the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITION IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES OR
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the following Directors or the chief
executives of the Company had or were deemed to have
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong (“SFO”)) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO); or
(i) which were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein; or (i) which were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) contained in the Listing Rules:

EERFTETHRAEREQATRH
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The Company VNN
Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage
underlying of issued
Name of Director Capacity shares held Position share capital
Frsmm,/ HEBRTRE
EEpnE 5% HEROGHE #2 N d
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David Interest of controlled corporation (note 1) 851,456,892 Long 54.3%
ZREERLE sl EE R (MEE1) 5=
Mr. Qin Song Beneficial owner 15,321,062 Long 1.0%
IR A EnlEAA 5=
Mr. Chen Huapei Beneficial owner 1,022,000 Long 0.07%
PREELF S 4 EnlEAA 5=
Ms. Li Li Interest of controlled corporation 250,551,964 Long 16.0%
TR L RGN EE S 5=
Note: e -

1. 274,325,278 shares are held by Profitcharm Limited and 577,131,614
shares are held by Sinorise International Limited, the entire issued share
capitals of them are wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. Cai Xiao Ming,
David.

1. BIZE AR A A4 A 274,325,278 B A% 17 K 4 4 B
BAERAREAES77,131,614 %) - W& 26
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FTERRNERZE HKXR

IN AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS

So far as is known to the Directors and chief executives of the EARATEERFTEBITHAERM  N_T
Company, as at 31 December 2018, the following persons (not  — N\E+=-HA=+—H ' U F A+ (W IEAR
being a Director or chief executive of the Company) had, or RAFMNEEHFBITHAE) RARTRGD
were deemed to have, interest or a short position in the shares st BB M PG LB AEEIRIEE SR
or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be — HAE &5 XV 2855 2 K2 3 ERZE M AN A &4
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 ~ BE##EzgAA -

and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Number of Approximate
shares/ percentage of
underlying issued share
Name of shareholder Notes Capacity shares held Position capital
Fris a1,/ HEBRITRAE
RREH M= 54 HEROHBE #®=E BABEI
Profitcharm Limited 1 Beneficial owner 274,325,278 Long 17.5%
BlmABRAR ERBEBA e
Sinorise International Limited 2 Beneficial owner 577,131,614 Long 36.8%
RERRAR AR ERBEBA 1)
Masterwork Group Co., Ltd. Interest of controlled 250,551,964 Long 16.0%
corporation
REREMBEEERNBRAE Xt EEER e
Masterwork Machinery (H.K.) Limited Beneficial owner 250,651,964 Long 16.0%
REBRND (BE)BRRA ERBEBA 1)
Partners Group Holding AG Beneficial owner 103,555,231 Long 7.0%
Partners Group Holding AG EXBEAA e
Tianjin Dehou Investment Interest of controlled 103,555,231  Long 7.0%
Management Partnership corporation
(Limited Partnership)
Tianjin Dehou Investment XIS EEE S 0e
Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)
Notes: FI5E

1. Profitcharm Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin =~ 1. BlmERAR A MR RBE XS EMKI D
Islands with limited liability which is wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. BRAR BEEALEELEERES
Cai Xiao Ming, David.

2. Sinorise International Limited is a company incorporated in the British 2. IREEBRAR AR ANEEE LS T

Virgin Islands with limited liability which is wholly and beneficially owned BRAR HEERAEELEERES
by Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTION
Transactions with Masterwork Group

On 22 December 2017, the Company entered into a master
sale and purchase agreement (the “Master Sale and Purchase
Agreement”) with Masterwork Group Co., Ltd (“Masterwork
Group”), pursuant to which the Group will () purchase post-
press and packaging machineries from Masterwork Group or
its subsidiaries and/or (i) sell old machineries, purchased from
Masterwork Group or otherwise, to Masterwork Group or its
subsidiaries and related services from time to time to/for a
term commencing on 1 January 2018 and expiring on 31
December 2020. The annual caps in relation to the purchase
of post-press and packaging machineries by the Company for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2020 are RMB50
million, RMB50 million and RMB50 million respectively. The
annual caps in relation to the sale of old machineries,
purchased from Masterwork Group or otherwise, to
Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries and related services for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2020 are RMB10
million, RMB10 million and RMB10 million respectively.

There is no minimum sale and purchase amount under the
Master Sale and Purchase Agreement and the Group is not
contractually bound to (i) purchase post-press and packaging
machineries from Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries and/or
(i) sell old machineries, purchased from Masterwork Group or
otherwise, to Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries. The Group
is entitled to source such machineries from other suppliers or
dispose such old machineries to other purchasers. The post-
press and packaging machineries and related services to be
supplied by Masterwork Group or its subsidiaries to the Group
will be in accordance with the specifications provided by the
Group on a case by case basis. The old machineries to be
sold by the Group will be subject to acceptance by
Masterwork Group depending on the type, condition and price
of the old machineries to be decided on a case by case basis.
The exact quantity, specifications and price of the post-press
and packaging machineries and the old machineries,
settlement terms and date of delivery will be set out in the sale
and purchase orders to be issued by the Group to Masterwork
Group.
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The actual purchase amount incurred under the Master Sale
and Purchase Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2018 was approximately HK$3.7 million. There was no sale of
old machinery to Masterwork Group during the year ended 31
December 2018.

Masterwork Group, being a substantial shareholder of the
Company interested in 16.0% of the issued share capital of
the Company, is a connected person under the Listing Rules
and the transactions contemplated under the Master Sale and
Purchase Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of the Master Sale and Purchase Agreement
were set out in the announcement of the Company dated 22
December 2017.

Compliance with Disclosure Requirements

Save for the “Purchase of printing and packing machineries”
during the year as shown in note 48(a) to the consolidated
financial statements which constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules, all other transactions as shown in note 48 are
continuing connected transactions exempted from
announcement, reporting, annual review and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules in respect of the above continuing connected
transactions.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that
the continuing connected transactions were entered into:

(@ in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) inaccordance with Master Sale and Purchase Agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and
in the interests of shareholders of the Company as a
whole.
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In addition, the Company has engaged its auditor to report on
the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements. Other than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued unqualified letter
containing the conclusion in respect of the continuing
connected transactions set out above which is in compliance
with the Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices as adopted by the
Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report
section set out on pages 39 to 52.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the
date of this report, there is sufficient public float of 25% of the
Company’s issued shares as required under the Listing Rules.

DISCLOSURE UNDER RULE 13.21 OF THE
LISTING RULES

During 2015, the Company has been offered a four-year term
loan facility of HK$340,000,000 from a local bank, additional
term loan facilities from an existing local bank of HK$150
million and HK$83 million repayable within 4 and 6 years
respectively, and a revolving loan facilities of HK$170 million,
all of which the Company has undertaken, among other
matters, that Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David shall maintain at least
50% beneficial shareholding interest in the Company at all
times during the life of the above banking facilities (the
“Undertaking”). The breach of such Undertaking may result in
the loan becoming immediately due and repayable. Such
Undertaking also exists in other revolving banking facilities
made available to the Group from other banks in the total
amount of HK$170 million.
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AUDITOR B EEm
A resolution will be submitted to the annual general mestingto AR AR REFAE HIRE —THRE
re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the % - LAE IR (EEE) « BER T ST 4

Company. NN RZEEAD

On behalf of the Board REESE

Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited BB AR AR

Cai Xiao Ming, David £ RERR

Chairman FE

Hong Kong, 26 March 2019 BB ZET-NEFE=A=+XAH
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OVERVIEW

The Directors recognise the importance of incorporating
elements of good corporate governance in the management
structures and internal control procedures of the Group so as
to achieve effective accountability.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code
(the “Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has
complied in general with the Code, except code provisions
A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the Code as Mr. Peng Guoyi (the then
executive Director who resigned on 9 November 2018) and
Ms. Li Li (the non-executive Director) were unable to attend the
annual general meeting of the Company held on 1 June 2018
due to their other business engagement.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the standard for securities
transactions by Directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all the Directors and all the Directors confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions for the year ended 31 December 2018.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board takes responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Company, including the formulation and approval of overall
business strategies, internal control and risk management
systems, and monitoring the performance of the senior
management. The management is responsible for the daily
operations of the Group under the leadership of Chief
Executive Officer. The Directors have the responsibility to act
objectively in the interests of the Company.

BmE
EERHNENAEEEERE LA ERE
FolERFEEERNERNE - UEBERE
@ZEIUFEEJE'E °

TEER

RABIERM TR AM ST a2 E
SAFAI(=FAD) - BEZZ—N\F+=A
—+—RALFE  KRR—REDEFTE
MESTBIEE AB.7 M EA 25T BIME SRR A1 - R
HALBEEE(RN_ZE—N\F+—ANH
BANEBERMITES) KT (FERTT
EE)AEMBEEEMARELERS
—N\FARAA—BRITHAQFKRRAF K

&= o
=

BTESETEZRZNEESTA

RN B B BRAR TG GIFT 8% 1 P RO IR A ST
] EREFETEFXHHER] - KA 7]
ERAAEREFTENR  HE2EBEFER -
BE_Z-N\F+_A=+—HILFE " &
F-ENARETRIMNEAHESFETES
R 51T SF R E RO AR o

EEg

EXSREREARRIMAEREEH B85
B ML A B AR RIS RAE - NBEPEEIE AR
EEARLERSRERENRR - BIEE
EITBAREETAEAKENAEZE -
EEARMEUARBNRREBIRETE -

2018F 3 EREREBEERAF

39



40

Corporate governance report
TEERRETE

Currently, the Board comprises eight Directors, including four
executive Directors namely Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David, Mr. Qin
Song, Mr. Chen Xiao Liang and Mr. Chen Huapei, one non-
executive Director namely Ms. Li Li, and three independent
non-executive Directors namely Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr.
Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon. Save and except
that Mr. Chen Xiao Liang is the father-in-law of Mr. Cai Xiao
Ming, David, there is no financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationship among the Directors. The
names and biographical details of the Directors are set in the
section entitled “Profile of Directors and Senior Management”
in this annual report.

In compliance of Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules, the Board
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. Pursuant to
paragraph 12B of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules, each of
the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed by
annual confirmation that he has complied with the
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Directors consider that all three independent non-
executive Directors are independent under these
independence criteria and are capable to effectively exercise
independent judgement. Amongst the three independent non-
executive Directors, both Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy and Mr.
Lui Tin Nang have the appropriate professional qualifications
and accounting and related financial management expertise
required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to the Board
committees including the audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”), the remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”). Further
details of these committees are set out below.

EFEeRRH/ N \REFENX - BENEHNT
EE(ANEBE LA - SUREE BERRE
ERREESE)  —BIIFERTESTHL
TR=RBIIFMITES (BIMREIB LA

REEERBYRLEE) - BERRREEE
AEERLENERI)  ESHMENTE -
25 RESEMEBRABEEER E=N
ZBEBEREFBENAFRAESNER
EBRANEBBE] -

BRREHARBIEII0)E EESREH
—EBNIERITESEN  hEESHBB=
DZ— o RIBEETRANMEETSF 12BE -
BBNIIERITESE R L FERRRER
WMEFA LETRAFIABIEAE T &

Bl EFRA - BEBIMER =287
IMITESHYABILTH - EERITEEL

HIE o E= BB IEMITEEF AR
EREREAEHERB EMHRAEI100)

BN EEEER R AT BEE
BET o
%$@E§ﬁ%$§=ﬁU$V§§@D

rEzee((FMEEe)) RIEREES
Uh%fiéD($M§$ iQDEﬁ
FENBE BHEZSZESNE—FFE
BT o

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Corporate governance report
TEERRETE

BOARD MEETINGS

Seven Board meetings were held during the year ended 31
December 2018. Ad-hoc meetings will also be convened if
necessary to discuss the overall strategy as well as the
operation and financial performance of the Group. Notice of
Board meeting was sent to all Directors at least 14 days prior
to a regular board meeting. Reasonable notices will be given
to the Directors for ad-hoc board meetings. Directors may
participate either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

All relevant materials were sent to all the Directors relating to
the matters brought before the meetings. All the Directors
have been provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties, and, upon reasonable request, the Directors will be
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses. All Directors will
have the opportunity to include matters in the agenda for
Board meetings. Details of individual attendance of Directors
are set out in the table on page 48 of this annual report.

APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
contract with the Company for a specific term of two or three
years. All of their appointments are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

All of the independent non-executive Directors and the non-
executive Director were appointed for a term of three years,
and are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in
accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company.
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Nomination Policy

The responsibilities and authority for selection and
appointment of Directors is delegated to the Nomination
Committee but the ultimate responsibility for selection and
appointment of Directors of the Company rests with the entire
Board. In evaluating and selecting any candidate for
directorship, among other things, the following criteria will be
considered:

e  Character and integrity.

° Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under
the board diversity policy that are relevant to the
Company’s business and corporate strategy.

° Any measurable objectives adopted for achieving
diversity on the Board.

° Requirement for the Board to have independent directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules and whether the
candidate would be considered independent with
reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules.

° Any potential contributions the candidate can bring to the
Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity.

° Willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

o Such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business and succession plan and where
applicable, may be adopted and/or amended by the
Board and/or the Nomination Committee from time to
time for nomination of directors and succession planning.

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board will evaluate the
candidates based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidates are qualified for directorship. The
Nomination Committee will also consider recommendations for
candidates made by shareholders of the Company.
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Regular reviews will be conducted by the Nomination
Committee on the structure, size and composition of the
Board and the policy on nomination of Directors of the
Company and where appropriate, the Nomination Committee
will make recommendations on changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and business
needs.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. During the year
ended 31 December 2018, Mr. David Cai is the Chairman who
provides leadership to the Board but he would not be involved
in the day-to-day management of the Group’s business. Mr.
Qin Song, was appointed as the Vice- Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company and his role is to oversee the
overall management of the Group.

Training for Directors

The Company continuously updates Directors on the latest
developments and changes to the Listing Rules and other
applicable regulatory requirements and provides training to
develop and refresh the Directors’ knowledge and skills. The
Company provides Directors with monthly updates on the
performance, position and prospects of the Company.

Directors are encouraged to participate in continuing
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has prepared a training
record in order to assist the Directors to record the training
undergone by each of them.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest
changes and development of the Listing Rules and other
corporate governance requirements with written materials.
Individual Director had also attended seminars and/or
conferences or workshops or forums relevant to his profession
and duties as directors. All Directors have provided the
Company with their respective training records in compliance
with Code A.6.5 of the Code.
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Below is a summary of the training the Directors had received
during the year:

Name of Directors

RER  BEFMEIHFIIBEDT

Type of trainings

EspnE b= Ekid)
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David B
BEERR L& B
Mr. Qin Song A&B
PIRF A A KB
Mr. Peng Guoyi (resigned on 9 November 2018) B
THEXE(RZZE-—NF+—ANBET) B
Ms. LiLi A&B
FHRIZ L Ak B
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy A&B
MEIBEE AKX B
Mr. Lui Ting Nang A&B
EPN- il A KB
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon A&B
E P&t Ak B

A attending seminars/conferences/workshops/forums

B: reading newspapers, journals and updates relating to the economy,
environmental protection business or director’s duties and
responsibilities etc.

Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

The remuneration of the members of the senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out
below:

Remuneration bands

A HEE#RE g8 TEY Wi

B: HM#EAHLE RRXGIEFBESTNHERE -
TR EHER

EENRSREEEGTMH
BE_T-N\FTA=+T—HLEFESR
EIREHNH AR T

Number of persons

48 Bl AE
Up to HK$1,000,000 12
& %3E 1,000,000 T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 2
1,000,001 &2 2,000,000 &L

Above HK$2,000,001 NIL
2,000,001 BT £ i
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Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules are set out in
notes 13 and 14 to the financial statements, respectively.

COMPANY SECRETARY
During the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Chung Tat
Hung was the company secretary of the Company.

The company secretary of the Company reports to the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive Officer. He is
responsible for advising the Board on governance matters. For
the year ended 31 December 2018, Mr. Chung has taken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee which consists
of the three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho,
Simon, and one non-executive Director, namely Ms. Li Li, and
Mr. Lui Tin Nang is the chairman of the Audit Committee. The
primary duties of the Audit Committee are, among other
matters, to review and monitor the financial reporting process,
internal control and risk management of the Group, and to
report to the Board on matters relating to the corporate
governance as stated in the Code. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Audit Committee held two meetings and
has reviewed, among other matters, the Company’s financial
statements and the Group’s combined financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2017 and for the six months
ended 30 June 2018, including the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Company and the Group. The Board
has not taken a different view from that of the Audit Committee
regarding the selections, appointment, resignation or dismissal
of the external auditors.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are disclosed
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company established the Remuneration Committee
pursuant to a resolution of the Directors passed on 4 March
2009. The Remuneration Committee consists of five members
(including the three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr.
Siu Man Ho, Simon, one non-executive Director, namely Ms.
Li Li and Mr. Chen Huapei, an executive Director) and Mr. Lam
Ying Hung, Andy was the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are, among other matters, to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
executive Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing policy on such remuneration.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
disclosed on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held two
meetings and reviewed the remuneration policy, assessed
performance of executive Directors and approved the
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management.
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Nomination Committee

The Company established a Nomination Committee pursuant
to a resolution of the Directors passed on 4 March 2009. The
Nomination Committee consists of five members (including the
three independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Lam
Ying Hung, Andy, Mr. Lui Tin Nang and Mr. Siu Man Ho,
Simon, one non-executive Director, namely Ms. Li Li and Mr.
Qin Song, an executive Director) and Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon
is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are, among other matters,
to review the structure, size and composition of the Board on
a regular basis and to make recommendations to the Board
on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for
Directors. According to the board diversity policy adopted by
the Nomination Committee, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service etc. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against
objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity
on the Board. Selection of candidates will be based on a range
of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of
service etc. The final decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
disclosed on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

During the year, the Nomination Committee held two meetings
and discussed and reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board.
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Attendance of meetings ERLEEXRE

The attendance of each Director at Board meetings, Board #HZE—-Z—/N\F+-_A=+—HIFE &
Committees meetings and general meetings during the year EEREEE€e€H EELEeezxMRE
ended 31 December 2018 was as follows: REWHFIBRLT

Attendance out of number of meetings

EEEEECERTEPN

Annual

general

Audit Remuneration Nomination meeting

Name of director Board Committee Committee Committee (Note 1)
BRRBEAE

EEpE EZxg EREE. FMZEES REZE" CESY

Executive Directors
HITEE
Cai Xiao Ming, David (Chairman) 1/7 - - - 11
£ (FE)
Qin Song 77 - - 2/2 11
PR
Peng Guoyi

(resigned on 9 November 2018) 1/7 - 0/2 - 01
ZHE

(RZE-NF+—ANBEE)
Chen Huapei

(appointed on 12 March 2019) 11 - 1/1 - -
PREESE

(RZZE-NF=ZR+=-REZT)
Chen Xiao Liang

(appointed on 9 November 2018) - - - - -
R

(RZE2-N\F+—ANREZE)

Non-Executive Director

FHTEE

Li Li 5/7 2/2 2/2 2/2 0/
FH

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BUFHTEF

Lam Ying Hung, Andy 77 2/2 2/2 2/2 11
MG

Lui Tin Nang 77 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
EPN-7

Siu Man Ho, Simon 6/7 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
L BES

Note: MIaE -

1. The annual general meeting was held on 1 June 2018. 1. BRERBERGN_T—NFA—BEIT-
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FINANCIAL REPORTING, INTERNAL CONTROL
AND RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial Reporting

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Company and the Group. In the preparation
of financial statements, Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards have been adopted and the appropriate accounting
policies and statutory requirements have been consistently
complied with. The Board aims to present a clear and
balanced assessment of the Group’s performance in the
annual and interim reports to the shareholders, and make
appropriate disclosure and announcements in a timely manner.

External Auditors

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the fee paid/
payable to the external auditors of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$3.8 million, all for statutory audit services.

Internal controls

The Board is responsible for the internal control of the Group
and for reviewing its effectiveness. Procedures have been
designed to ensure maintenance of proper accounting records
for the provision of reliable financial information for internal use
or for publication, ensure compliance of applicable laws, rules
and regulations. The Group has an internal audit department
primarily responsible for reviewing the internal control function
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
appointed Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) to review the
internal control system. Improvements in internal control and
risk management measures as recommended were adopted.
Based on the findings from Deloitte, the Board considers that
the internal control system is effective and adequate for the
Group as a whole.
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Risk management

The Board is also responsible for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in
achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
that the Company establishes and maintains appropriate and
effective risk management system.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group has
reviewed the risk management system. The Board considers
that the risk management system is effective and adequate for
the Group as a whole.

The Board further considers that (i) there was no issue relating
to the material controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, of the
Group; and (i) that there were adequate staff with appropriate
qualifications and experience, resources and budget of its
accounting and financial reporting function, and adequate
training programmes have been provided for the year ended
31 December 2018.

Directors’ responsibility on the consolidated financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018, which were prepared in accordance with
applicable accounting standards. The reporting responsibilities
of the external auditor of the Company on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company are set out in the
independent auditor’s report on pages 53 to 60.

GOING CONCERN

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS
During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

RMERE
EEgNASTRUETHETERAARR
0 B iR ERENREROEERIZE - I
BRANCEY RERFBEE REINRRE
BHIE -

(E_E-N\F+A=+—HLEFE " K
SECEMEREREHE EFERA - A
REEHNEHAKREEREMNSBHEUART
E o

EEgNRR BE_ZT-N\FT+ZA
=t—BHLEFE  ((BEEAUEBAEEN
BREEREE  BREMG - SEANARE
w R R EIRBAE T R () 2R RHERE
HEERRLROABUARERLIEE RIE
Hett RMBRERIIE WO RERME
ARIE ©

ESHGSUBRRNER

EENE - REFARBREBNESTER R
HBEE_T-N\F+-ZA=1+—HBILLFEHN
RAEMERRE - ARBSMNEZBENE AN F
FEMBHRERNERET  HNES3E60
BB AZHEN RS

HREKE
BURAERDS R AT AR B B L B IR
EXRENEMFHBERNERTHARE -

BEEXH
RIER - AR AR SRS i -

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Corporate governance report
TEERRETE

DIVIDEND POLICY

In recommending or declaring dividends, the Company shall
maintain adequate cash reserves for meeting its working
capital requirements and future growth as well as its
shareholder value. There is no pre-determined dividend payout
ratio and the declaration and distribution of dividends shall be
determined at the sole discretion of the Board taking into
account, among others, the financial results, cashflow
situation, future operations and earnings, capital requirements
and expenditure plans and any other factors that the Board
may consider relevant. The Company may declare and pay
dividends by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. The declaration and distribution
of dividends shall also be subject to the articles of the
association of the Company and all applicable laws and
regulations. The Board will review the policy from time to time
and make relevant amendments as necessary.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company aims to maintain regular, effective and fair
communication with shareholders and is committed to
conveying important and relevant information to shareholders
on a timely basis. In compliance with the Listing Rules, at least
20 clear business days’ notice will be given to the shareholders
for annual general meeting and at least 10 clear business
days’ notice will be given for all other meetings. All general
meetings of the Company have been conducted by way of poll
and detailed procedures for conducting a poll were explained
at the commencement of the meeting. Results on all general
meetings will be published by way of an announcement
immediately following the relevant general meeting.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In accordance with the Article 58 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, one or more shareholders of the Company
holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two (2) months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionists by the Company.

If a shareholder wishes to nominate a person to be elected as
a Director, the following documents must be validly served to
the Company at the Company’s principal place of business in
Room 1201A, 12/F, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong: (i) his/her notice of intention to propose
a resolution at the general meeting; and (i) a notice executed
by the nominated candidate of his/her willingness to be
appointed together with his/her information as required to be
disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules, within the
period commencing on the day after the dispatch of the notice
of the general meeting appointed for such election and ending
on the date falling seven days after the dispatch of the said
notice of the general meeting.

Any Shareholder may direct their enquires and proposal either
by mail to the Board at the Company’s principal place of
business in Room 1201A 12/F, Capital Centre, 151 Gloucester
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, by fax at (852) 3915 7800 or by
email at enquiry@brilliantcircle.com.

Shareholders should direct any questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar: Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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Deloitte

To the Members of Brilliant Circle Holdings
International Limited
BEBRZEREEERAF

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set
out on pages 61 to 234, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS FAREITEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional FAtEHEELRBEEZNEEHE - 2
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the A¥AHEGEMEHREANETZATE
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These HIEIE - ZEEE N ESFTEBELES
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the B HRERMEEERREE - EETZY
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming ZZ&5 EHEIEMHEBNER -

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion

on these matters.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ARETEE EERBIPNERL R

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

BAERELEEMRE

We identified the impairment of goodwill and  Our procedures in relation to the impairment of
intangible assets as a key audit matter due to goodwill and intangible assets assessment included:

significant judgement and estimations exercised by EREERELRENEEN GETNETESE
the Group’s management in impairment

assessment. e  Discussing with the Group’s management on
EEBBERBEEERBABRETEE R their approach to impairment assessment;

B SSEEEREEEETRENERAELRER « B SEEEEEN®mBENENITE:
B R A5 o
° Evaluating the appropriateness of the
impairment models and checking their
mathematical accuraoy,
e FHEREREAZSNR MEHFERGE
T

° Reviewing the valuation report provided by the
independent valuer on the discount rate
adopted in the discounted cash flow forecast
model and evaluating its reasonableness;

o BMIFRBEERERAEAMRATIRXERE
BEMMREHNGEERS  UTHARSERE
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BB AR E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

BAREFTER

BRFISHGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESEENTNERELE

Estimated impairment of goodwill and intangible assets (continued)

BERELEEMLRE (&)

The Group had a goodwill of HK$1,050,965,000 as
at 31 December 2018 relating to the acquisition of
printing businesses in 2009, 2012 and 2018 and
the acquisition of sales of radio frequency products
businesses in 2017 which are subject to impairment
assessment in accordance with the Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 36 “Impairment of Assets”
(“HKAS 36”) issued by the HKICPA. As detailed in
note 20 to the consolidated financial statements, in
determining whether goodwill and is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amount,
which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use of the cash-generating
units to which goodwill has been allocated.
Significant judgements, estimations and
assumptions were required by management of the
Group in assessing the recoverable amounts of
cash-generating units. The value in use of the cash-
generating units is determined based on the
discounted cash flow forecast model which requires
estimation on certain assumptions, including the
discount rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin
and sales growth rate.
RZEBE-N\F+A=+—H > EKEURN_-F
TNF - ZT—ZFR-ZT-NFRBERIER KX
Rt FRBHEERHEEBELTE
1,050,965,000/8 7T * ZARBEEE SR A ZEM
MEBGTERIE 6 [EERE] ([FEEE
AIEE 365 ) EITRERT (4 - MR A I FBIRKR W
A20PTEL  BEERMERGRERAMGE TKE S
7 AR BERHENNEES I EEBELSN
WERBEMETNRSE - EAREELSN
WA E R EXEEEEEAELHEXRH
& et RRER - BeEEBLNEREBEEN
RRGREBRARAEE  EPERETRR(E
BIRE  BEKIBRER  ENRRHEERE)IE
HAEr

Evaluating the reasonableness of the key
assumptions and inputs adopted in the
discounted cash flow forecast model including
the terminal growth rate, gross margin and
sales growth rate by comparing the
management’s expectations for the market
development to relevant industry growth
forecasts and past performance, as
appropriate; and
BRERERERATSEREHMABITEER
FERANMBERE (RBEBRME) WL - 5F
EITRE R RETRREIERAD 2 /RR
BANE(BRELIBRE - EMXRLHEE
RE)ZEEE K

Reviewing the sensitivity analyses performed by
the management to evaluate the potential
impacts on the recoverable amount and
impairment.

EHHERBETHNEREDN - AT A E A
WEleREMRENEELE -
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Independent auditor’s report

B XA E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter

REETER

BRFISHGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESEENTNEELE

Estimated recognition of revenue from printing of cigarette packages and manufacturing

of laminated papers over time

R BRI T EERRREESHHKE

We identified the recognition of revenue from
printing of cigarette packages and manufacturing of
laminated papers as a key audit matter due to
significant judgement exercised by the Group’s
management in assessing the enforceable right to
payment.
EEBRERDR T EBEREEESKNBA R
REARE REAR S5EEEREENAARGIMT
RFRRERS R VR B K I -

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management recognises revenue
from printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers approximately
HK$1,175,388,000 and HK$44,776,000
respectively. Under HKFRS 15 “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers”, control is transferred
over time when the Group’s performance does not
create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment
for performance completed to date. Significant
judgment is required in determining whether the
Group’s contracts with customers in relation to
printing of cigarette packages and manufacturing of
laminated papers with no alternative use create an
enforceable right to payment for the Group.
BUNERE IS mEM TS FTIREE - BIEE D RItERE
il & I8 B 3 e BLE AR A AR W22 491,175,388,000 7
TT N 44,776,000 7T - IRIFE B RS LA F15
RIEPEHNNZE] M ESENBEALKRES
Y BEEEEERAENEE B EXEARTIH
TTRELAEGE S BB AV B9 6 RRIE - BIJ3%E il 4 i By ]
B -EBFr BEXEARIORETEEERBEESR
WEFEHNRETES BEEAERGNRENE
ftb AR R VE B R H R -

Our procedures in relation to the assessment of the
enforceable right to payment included:
EERT LRGN FREETNIRF B

e  Understanding and evaluating management’s
procedures in identifying and classifying sales
contracts with or without right to payment;

o THMEFHEEREHZN N BEMFERAMEN
TREHE S ORS¢

° Reviewing the key terms of significant sales
contracts to assess the right to payment based
on the contract terms;

s  EHAETHESOESNWMBRIEN  KMRES
A B TRAT A 1~ SR

° Obtaining and reviewing the opinion of the
external legal counsel, in particular, the legal
counsel’s interpretation of the applicable laws
and their implication on the assessment of the
enforceability of the right to payment; and

o ERRBHIINDEEERBOER KA EE
3@ FDA D 80 72 18 N H AT A o& I < SR 0%
B R

o Assessing the competence, experience and
objectivity of the legal counsel engaged by the

management.
o HIAEEEMERREZEMANESN  KREAEE
I -
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND
THOSE CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing
the Group’s financial reporting process.

Hiw&
BERRESAHHMERAEEIE - Hitb
BEMBRIENFRNEN  ETEEEE
M HER M EFOEBZBE RS

BEEHEAVBHRRELHNBER L ERE
HipER - MESF T HEMERERET
AR S o
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ERMEEMER  tMmEEEBERE
DREAVBHRAXESTHEETZEETE
BOEHFEERNT  KUFHFEEX
BHERIRAL - B EEERDETHIIER
REMERTBREERBRRL - HFAR
SEBEE -l BEBBEFEL®RSE -

EERAEEBRAGS M BRRAK
EHWEE

BERREZARERBEESHAIAEMR
o B &8 B 5 i s R R R BB R MR
RERCHREEEM AT HRRIERAER
BBHmE  MNEFETHREGAMH
BRBUENEBARER  AEZFR
AEMBHRRTIEFEANRFRERME
B ERFERERA -

ERBEEAEVHERERE EFAREF
i BEREFELLNEN  WIWERR
BREAMNER(WER) - RIFESEH
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for
the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

BRBEHRERGS M BERRARE
MEE

FEENERRAERTRAAMERRER
MENEFEARAFFRERMEBNE
REERERA - WIRIEE F1HENR IR
m EHTNERER)LARREEEEAN
B RE - R ZINTMERMAR - &
EM IR ARENATEHERMEMBALE
BOARERNEE - A EBEBEEXN
%R ERIEFEEEAEITHNERT
ETBERERER BAAFHEMNEARERR
o $ERRERM ] REFF SRR AR E L - W fE
MBEESERMBER TAZEERE
RIBAR A M RERAE LR ERER - A
IR BB RFERBRAL -
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BEHEREXAE - REFREMRE
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Independent auditor’s report
B2 AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

%éf/%@?
EHERERERK ©

BRBEHRERGS M BRRARE
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Independent auditor’s report

B A BE RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Lee Ka Kei.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

26 March 2019
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income

ek HEaEEREHRR

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

2018 2017
—EF-N\F ZZT—+tF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’'000
P5E FHET FHT

Revenue Wz 5 1,366,753 1,265,515
Cost of sales 85 & B (1,065,863) (956,917)
Gross profit EF 300,890 308,598
Other income H A KA 7 32,244 35,486
Other gains and losses HihUgzs & &8 8 (64,357) (44,283)
Impairment losses on TREERSHEERE

financial assets and contract B8 (R M)

assets, net of reversal 9 (6,218) (930)
Selling and distribution expenses & &9 5 (60,426) (43,022)
Administrative expenses TR (98,572) (79,988)
Other expenses HEaHx (3,396) (8,103)
Finance costs Bh & AR AN 10 (22,776) (21,988)
Share of profits of associates DB N T A 22 51,669 47,334
Share of profit (loss) of a joint PME—EEERERF

venture (&) 23 623 (274)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEM B AR AWK 39 91,681 -
Profit before taxation B A5 AR A 221,362 192,830
Taxation 18 11 (46,930) (50,023)
Profit for the year FEEF 12 174,432 142,807
Other comprehensive (expense) Hfth 2 (B 3z) W25 -

income:
ltem that will not be reclassified to E#E @ &E#HHEEER

profit or loss: HIER :
Exchange differences arising on BEAEREEmMES

translation to presentation & =5

currency (132,393) 195,918
Total comprehensive income FEZHERGERE

for the year 42,039 338,725
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Consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income

GeBEaREMaEERERE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZE—+F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FEx FH&T
Profit for the year attributable to: A~ A TG EE A :
Owners of the Company VIN/NECIE ¥ DN 169,383 138,025
Non-controlling interests JEFE AT A 25 5,049 4,782
174,432 142,807
Total comprehensive income for LA~ ATEMEZE S
the year attributable to: i
Owners of the Company ZININEIEF N 39,408 329,959
Non-controlling interests FEFEARME RS 2,631 8,766
42,039 338,725
2018 2017
—B-N\FE —T—+F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Earnings per share BRER
Basic and diluted BERREE 15 0.11 0.09
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Consolidated statement of financial position

e BRIR R

At 31 December 2018 ®"=—ZE—N\EFE+-_F=+—H

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+t4F
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
P5E FER FHT
Non-current Assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME  WENKE 17 790,586 729,865
Prepaid lease payments TEfNHEERIE 18 100,434 82,095
Investment properties EMEH 19 25,703 57,136
Goodwill EES 20 1,050,965 1,044,293
Intangible assets mILEE 21 163,765 193,875
Interests in associates REEE AR E R 22 460,604 535,072
Interest in a joint venture R—EaEtENER 23 8,755 8,586
Amount due from a related party ~ EUx — & FiE 5 5718 28 9,422 -
Deferred tax assets BEETIBEE 36 200 -
Deposits paid for acquisition of ME - BE SR B
property, plant and equipment MiEE 16,235 8,675
Deposits paid for acquisition of FLUCEE AR E A
prepaid lease payments HE] & 2,289 -
2,628,958 2,659,597
Current Assets REEE
Inventories T8 24 163,766 167,892
Prepaid lease payments FEMEERIE 18 2,425 2,292
Trade receivables B 5 W TE R RN EE 25 544,637 796,248
Contract assets BREE 26 165,385 -
Other receivables, prepayments  E{th & Y518 ~ BT 708 &
and refundable deposits REERS 27 59,904 56,562
Amount due from a related party — fEUS diE 5 7018 28 - 9,866
Tax recoverable Al Y [B] 7 18 3,129 3,267
Financial assets at fair value BEARBEFABZNSE
through profit or loss BiE 29 - 7,193
Pledged bank deposits BEEFRITER 30 11,250 5,455
Bank balances and cash RITEHB LIRS 30 355,508 292,511
1,306,004 1,341,286
Assets classified as held for sale DB AFEFENEE - 197,623
1,306,004 1,538,909

2018F 3 EREREBEERAF
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Consolidated statement of financial position

e PRI R R

At 31 December 2018 R=—ZE—N\EFE+-_F=+—8

2018 2017
—E2-N\F E—+tF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BfeaE FHET FET
Current Liabilities RBEE
Trade payables 2 S FERFRIE 31 229,676 265,364
Other payables and accruals HihfERRIB N BT E B 32 116,545 115,539
Purchase consideration payable AW EEERAEX(EE
for acquisition RE 33 12,776 11,103
Amounts due to non-controlling — FEfT B A B FEIE IR RE RS
interests of subsidiaries E/QE] 28 8,154 4,983
Bank borrowings IRITEE 34 601,334 621,916
Bank overdrafts RITHEXZ 30 19,897 -
Income tax payable TS/ 30,489 41,483
1,018,871 1,060,388
Liabilities associated with assets B AT B ERNEE
classified as held for sale EENAE - 39
1,018,871 1,060,427
Net Current Assets REBEESEE 287,133 478,482
Total Assets less Current HEERRBER
Liabilities 2,916,091 3,138,079
Non-current Liabilities FREBERF
Government grants BT £ 35 30,175 34,441
Bank borrowings RITEE 34 18,750 56,250
Deferred tax liabilities REFIBEE 36 68,565 55,133
Purchase consideration payable Ui EHEFAAES NEE
for acquisition B 33 - 11,745
117,490 157,569
Net assets BEERE 2,798,601 2,980,510
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Consolidated statement of financial position

e BRIR R

At 31 December 2018 A=

T—N\F+-A=+—F

2018 2017
—E-NFE Tt
NOTE HK$’000 HK$’000
P5E FET TFET
Capital and Reserves EXR#E

Share capital A 7 37 7,839 7,839
Share premium and reserves R R B KL E 2,755,824 2,909,793

Equity attributable to owners of RAREA ANEIRIER
the Company 2,763,663 2,917,632
Non-controlling interests eI IR b 2 34,938 62,878
Total Equity XA 2,798,601 2,980,510

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to 234
were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 26 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David
BB LE
DIRECTOR

EFE

Mr. Qin Song

RMTE
DIRECTOR

EF

2018 F i BHITREFERAR]

FOIEMENGEATHEREREN-F
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

it ZPN 3
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Other  Dividend Exchange Retained controlling Total
capital premium  reserves  reserves reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
kA& RGEE AERE ARG RERE ELRE  RBER A5 FERER ERAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TiEn THL TiEx Tin T FiEx FiEx Tin Thr FiEx
(Note a) (Note b)
(Mika)  (FizEb)
At1 January 2017 S e
—A—H 7,839 4,936,913 166,590 (2904,334) 239,886  (141,653) 523,627 2,828,968 46,192 2,875,160
Profit for the year FEEF - - - - - - 138,025 138,025 4,782 142,807
Other comprehensive FREMZERY
expense for the year - - - - - 191,934 - 191,934 3984 195918
Total comprehensive FR2ERER)
(expense) income e
for the year - - - - - 191,934 138,025 329,959 8,766 338,725
Dividends recognised as REDKARE
distribution (note 16) (IE16) - - - - (230,886) - - (239,886) - (289,886)
Dividends declared to RFEERERSR
non-controling interests ~ fx8 - - - - - - - - (1,148) (1,148)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Yt — Mt B AT - - - - - - - - 17437 17,437
Acquisition of additional Wi —FEM B A AN
equity interestina BOMNRAER
subsidiary - - - (1409 - - - (409 8369 (9778
Transfer B - - 22,635 - - - (22,639 - - -
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+4F
+=A=1-H 7839 4936913 189,225 (2,906,743) - 50,381 639,017 2,917,632 62,878 2,980,510
Adjustments (note 2) Az (Fi3E2) - - - - - - 6,063 6,063 - 6,063
At1 January 2018 RZZ-N\E
(restated) —R—R(&&5) 7,839 4,936,913 189,225 (2,905,743) - 50,381 645,080 2,923,695 62,878 2,986,573
Proft for the year EERF - - - - - - 169383 169383 5049 174432
Other comprehensive FREMZERR
expense for the year - - - - - (129,975) - (129,975) (2,418)  (132,393)
Total comprehensive income 4 M2 T Wi 4448
for the year - - - - - (129,975 169,383 39,408 2,631 42,039
Dividends recognised as ~ HREA KA E
distribution (note 16) (Hst16) - - - - - - (199905  (199,905) - (199,905)
Dividends declared to MFERERE R
non-controling interests ~ fx8 - - - - - - - - (23920)  (23,920)
Acquisition of additional Yt —FEH B A A
equity interest in a ENRTER
subsidliary (note 38(0) (H5E38(0)) - - - 465 - - - 465 (6,651)  (6,186)
At 31 December 2018 WZE-N\F
+-A=+-H 7,839 4,936,913 189,225 (2,905,278) - (79,594) 614,558 2,763,663 34,938 2,798,601
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

Notes:

(@)

As stipulated by the relevant laws and regulations for enterprises in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries are required to maintain statutory reserves. Appropriation
to such reserve is made out of profit after taxation as reflected in the
statutory financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries while the amounts
and allocation basis are decided by its board of directors annually. The
appropriation to statutory surplus reserve may cease if the balance of
the statutory surplus reserve has reached 50% of the PRC subsidiaries’
registered capital. The statutory reserves can be used to make up prior
year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into capital by
means of capitalisation issue.

Other reserves comprised (i) the merger reserve of HK$79,000 which
arose from the difference between the nominal value and premium of
shares of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal value of the shares
issued by the Company in exchange thereof; (i) issue of 480,000,000
shares of the Company with fair value of HK$4,267,200,000 at 14 April
2011 to Mr. Tsoi Tak, the former controlling shareholder of the
Company in exchange of its entire equity interests in Brilliant Circle
Group Holdings Limited (formerly known as Brilliant Circle Holdings
International Limited) which were acquired by Mr. Tsoi Tak, that former
controlling shareholder at 10 September 2009 using cash and certain
listed shares held by him with fair value of HK$1,781,817,000 in
aggregate; (i) an amount of HK$516,437,000 resulting from the
acquisition of additional equity interests in Bengbu Jinhuangshan
Rotogravure Printing Company Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company; (iv) an amount of HK$81,223,000 resulting from the
acquisition of additional equity interests in Giant Sino Investments
Limited, a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company in December
2014; (v) an amount of HK$119,000 resulting from the change of equity
interests of non-controlling shareholders from 0.69% to 0.51% in
Shenzhen Kecai Printing Com., Ltd in November 2015, (vi) an amount
of HK$1,409,000 resulting from the acquisition of additional equity
interests in Xiangyang Jinfeihuan Colour Packing Co., Ltd, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company in August 2017, and (vi) an amount
of HK$465,000 resulting from the acquisition of additional equity
interests in Zhaotong Antong Package Material Co., Ltd, a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, in August 2018.

RESHEHEARKANMBE((HE ) EENFRE
BIERPABE - AR RIRH BEHE A FARYL
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BVEE MM BRI A R B A - TSR &
DEELAREESTFRTE © WECHEBHER
EER PR E AR M E RN 0% - AR E
BRBEATRHREE  ATRETRERME L
FEOERE)  TAEBEAMEETERS
AR

Hub ()& HHRE 79,0008 HEAER
FT Uk FE BT /B8 A RIAR D MO E B R B AR R A A A
FREs T AR R BM RN MEEMZEE () A A7
R-ZE——F B+ A RARD R AT IR R E
15 5 A %277 #9 480,000,000 (XA 17 * AR BEA
4,267,200,0007% 70 + LA A EX A5 AR AR R 2215 %
AR -—EEAFNATRAUESEABEET LT
RO ERN S EEITRERA R (AITEEHE
RER AR AR) 2 50AE - HEQAEES X
751,781,817,000% 7T : (i) W EE R 2~ R FE 2 &Mt
B QB & = I M ARENRIE IR A R 58 SR A2 AT
E LR FIAS516,437,0008 7T ¢ (V)R =T —PU4F
T ARBARRIEZENBAREEREGR
N EIEB YN BT EE A /) FRIE 81,223,000 7T ¢ (V)
RZZT—AF+— AFERBEARYITRIZED
AR A B HRLHE R 0.69% B 4 0.51% FTE £ §)
FRIE119,0008 7T : ViR =T —+HF \ FURER
NRIFFEENBRAREREREVEBEEERA
AIRBYNEAE BT EE A Y 5/ IE 1,409,000 8 7T+ K (vii)
RZZ—NFENARBEARAREZENBRRHG
BRBEEMEARA R EINEENEENFE
465,00078 7T °
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FHT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RESTH
Profit before taxation & B Bz A1 221,362 192,830
Adjustments for: JHEE -
Share of profits of associates DR E R A A (51,669) (47,334)
Share of (profit) loss of a joint venture {5 —RE& &2 CEF))
58 (623) 274
Finance costs B & Ak AX 22,776 21,988
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - WENMEREITE
equipment 93,122 82,578
Release of prepaid lease payments FEBRTENHEKIE 2,263 2,214
Depreciation of investment WEYHENE
properties 2,017 6,084
Impairment losses on financial assets  JF{E &5 18 (1K E])
and contract assets, net of
reversal 6,218 930
Amortisation of intangible assets mIEEEE 46,759 45,694
Interest income FLEWA (1,157) (1,321)
Interest income on long-term R HAFE W IR R A1 B A
receivables - (1,290)
Gain from changes in fair value of TREEAABEEY
financial assets at FVTPL Wiz (3,379) (2,008)
Loss from changes in fair value of TRABEANEERE
financial liabilities at FVTPL B 482 -
Government grants for acquisition of UM% - HE LR EH
property, plant and equipment BB € (2,634) (2,577)
Losses (gains) on disposal of HEWE  BELE&EN
property, plant and equipment BB (W) 39 (142)
Recognition (reversals) of write-down R (B ) @17 S U
on obsolete inventories 592 (988)
Recognition of impairment on wREERE
goodwill 48,000 40,000
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE T A BRI S (91,681) -
Loss on disposal of partial equity HE—MEE Qo
interest in an associate IR BB 8,536 -
Unrealised net exchange losses RERE N EE (e ) F58
(gains) 10,519 (4,891)
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

2018 2017
—EF-N\F ZZT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FHT
Operating cash flows before movements &8 & & Z E AT 2 X 15
in working capital RERE 311,542 332,041
Increase in inventories FEAIN (10,197) (8,184)
Decrease in trade receivables H 5 FE Y T 239,777 168,788
Decrease (increase) in other receivables, E b FEURIE - T8N 51E &
prepayments and refundable deposits A :REET € R4 (38 hn) 14,001 (8,855)
Increase in contract assets BHEEE N (114,886) -
Decrease in trade payables E S sIER D (52,292) (82,347)
Decrease in other payables and accruals E th f& (< 7018 [ fE =t & AR > (4,561) (25,916)
Cash generated from operations REEXIES 383,384 375,527
Income taxes paid ERPREH (43,512) (74,866)
Interest paid SRR UPS) (24,417) (21,922)
NET CASH FROM OPERATING RETBRELRSFHE
ACTIVITIES 315,455 278,739
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Consolidated statement of cash flows
HERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZEZ—+tF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B aE FEx FH&T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of structured deposits B A 4518 141750 (965,470) (1,094,231)
Redemption of structured deposits & [B] 4& 1#% 14 17 5% 975,951 1,089,289
Deposits paid for and acquisition of FUZEEWIZE « = MR E
property, plant and equipment ANl HES (186,833) (47,277)
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wb — FEIfY B 2 &) 38 (144,145) (28,513)
Placement of pledged bank FEEHEARITER
deposits (55,057) (24,761)
Withdrawal of pledged bank RIEERRITEK
deposits 48,748 26,507
Payments for prepaid lease BAENMEENRIE
payments (28,259) -
Dividend received from an B — S R A UERR B
associate, net of withholding tax (0B FEINFL) 73,844 98,177
Proceeds on disposal of MBAEFEHEHNE AR
subsidiaries in prior year Fris k18 — 28,000
Dividend received from a previously B —fi@HF HE R E R A
disposed subsidiary W B AR B, - 5,877
Proceeds from disposal of property, K& ¥ - HE LR EE
plant and equipment FIE 8,371 3,058
Interest received 2B 1,157 1,321
(Increase) decrease in amount due  f& U — &1 & A 71708
from a related company (38 h0) A (54) 2,056
Proceeds from disposal of HEMBRRFTEHRIE
subsidiaries 39 295,000 -
NET CASH FROM INVESTING RETBHELERSFH
ACTIVITIES 23,253 59,503
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Consolidated statement of cash flows

> A N —
;W\ElﬂaéébWEaéﬁ
For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE
2018 2017
—EF-N\F ZZT—+tF
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
B FET TFET
FINANCING ACTIVITIES METE
New bank borrowings raised FILIRITIEE 521,098 404,557
Advance from a non-controlling KA FEIERR R e HY B
interest 3,356 821
Repayment of bank borrowings BEIRTEE (574,376) (416,802)
Dividends paid to non-controling &/ JE1E AR 2 A% B
interests (23,920) -
Dividends paid BT E (199,905) (239,886)
Acquisition of non-controlling I iE — I E R F) /Y
interest of a subsidiary FEFE R FE 2 (6,186) (9,778)
NET CASH USED IN FINANCING @& EZEEARE T
ACTIVITIES (279,933) (261,088)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERAESEEBEBIEM
CASH EQUIVALENTS HEE 58,775 77,154
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A—A—HHWBELZREEZS
AT 1 JANUARY Z{EEE 292,511 199,694
Effect of foreign exchange rate GINER [ R B B 52 &
changes (15,675) 15,663
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS A+ =—A=+—HHE®RE
AT 31 DECEMBER, RREEEER -
represented by & 335,611 292,511
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR AR ® 355,508 292,511
Bank overdrafts RITEX (19,897) -
335,611 292,511
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

72

GENERAL

Brilliant Circle Holdings International Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
11 November 2008 as an exempted company with
limited liability and its shares are listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Cai Xiao
Ming, David (the “Controlling Shareholder”). The address
of the registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands and its principal place of business
is Room 1201A, 12th Floor, Capital Centre, 151
Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) are engaged in
provision of the printing of cigarette packages,
manufacturing of paper packaging materials,
manufacturing of laminated papers, manufacturing and
sale of radio frequency identification (“RFID”) products,
printing of packages and decoration matters, research
and development on printing technology, wholesale,
import and export of the packaging products and other
related services.

The Company’s functional currency is Renminbi (‘RMB”).
For the convenience of the financial statements users,
the consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) as the Company’s shares are
listed on Stock Exchange.
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatorily effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for
the first time in the current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC) — Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions

and Advance Consideration

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement
of Share-based Payment
Transactions

Amendments to HKFRS 4 Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28  As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs
2014-2016 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 40  Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out in these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

eI ERRME

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND

AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers”

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS
18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction Contracts”
and the related interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying this
Standard recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018. Any difference at the
date of initial application is recognised in the
opening retained profits and comparative
information has not been restated. Furthermore, in
accordance with the transition provisions in HKFRS
15, the Group has elected to apply the Standard
retrospectively only to contracts that are not
completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly, certain
comparative information may not be comparable as
comparative information was prepared under HKAS
18 “Revenue” and HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” the related interpretations.

The Group recognises revenue from the following
major sources which arise from contracts with
customers:

(1)  provision of printing of cigarette packages;

(2) Manufacturing of paper packaging materials;

(8) manufacturing of laminated papers; and

(4) manufacturing and sale of radio frequency
identification (“RFID”) products.

Information about the Group’s performance
obligations and the accounting policies resulting
from application of HKFRS 15 are disclosed in notes
5 and 3 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

2. ERFTERMBREEN(E
EBMBHREED ) REBETE

(%)

2.1
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFITEAUBEHREEN(H
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BUEREER]) REEFTR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&

(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)
2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with 21 ERUBBREENEISHRIEZEF
Customers” (continued) aHWE (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial BXEREBRMKEHREERES
application of HKFRS 15 FHEERE
The following table summarises the impact of TERBINR=_ZE—N\F—H—H
transition to HKFRS 15 on retained profits at 1 BEEE BN BREEE155%
January 2018. HRE BN E -
HK$’000
TET
Retained profits REBER 639,017
Made-to-order products with no alternative F&fF BRI EZ R BEH
use recognised over time TE il 2 fh 18,105
Tax effects MG E (2,553)
Impact at 1 January 2018 RZE—-N\F—A—HNEE 654,569
The following adjustments were made to the RZZE-—NF—-A—BHEEH
amounts recognised in the consolidated statement AR R TR ) & FEAE A
of financial position at 1 January 2018. Line items THE TRERXEHTEY
that were not affected by the changes have not HE -

been included.
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financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFMITEAMEREEN(E
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BUEREER]) REEFTR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (#%&)

(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)
2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with 21 ERUBBREENEISHRIEF
Customers” (continued) e (E)
Summary of effects arising from initial BXEREBAMKEHRELERES
application of HKFRS 15 (continued) FHEERE(AE)
Carrying amount Carrying amount
previously under HKFRS15
reported at 31 at 1 January
December 2017 Reclassification Remeasurement 2018*
R=B-N\%
-A—H
BER REE BB
“E-tF HEREE
+=A=t-AH F155%5H
ERNEEE EfiSE EfitE MEREE*
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i TAT FAL TAT TR
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interests in associates REE D RIRER © 535,072 - 1,086 536,158
Current assets RBEE
Contract assets AHEE (a) - - 64,905 64,905
Inventories F& ) 167,892 - (47,886) 120,006
Current liabilities RBEE
Contract liabilities RN (o) - 857 - 857
Other payables and accruals  EftfE(THIER (o)
EER 115,539 (857) - 114,682

Non-current liability FRBER
Deferred tax iabities EEREAE @ 55,133 - 2,563 57,686

Capital and Reserves BRRf#E

Retained profits RE &M (a) 639,017 - 15,552 654,569
* The amounts in this column are before the adjustment * AR H S EARREA BB B R
from the application of HKFRS 9. HARERNE ISR
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (continued)

(@)

The Group’s contracts with customers for
printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers are tailor-
made based on customers’ specification with
no alternative use to the Group. Taking into
account the contract terms, the legal and
regulatory environment in the PRC, it was
concluded that all contracts provide the
Group’s enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date and hence the
revenue is recognised over time upon
application of HKFRS 15. HK$47,886,000 and
HK$14,466,000 have been adjusted from
inventories and opening retained profits,
respectively with corresponding adjustments
of HK$64,905,000 and HK$2,553,000 to
contract assets and deferred tax liabilities,
respectively.

As at 1 January 2018, advances from
customers of HK$857,000 previously included
in other payables and accruals were
reclassified to contract liabilities.

The net effects arising from the initial
application of HKFRS 15 resulted in an
increase in the carrying amounts of interests in
associates of HK$1,086,000 with
corresponding adjustments to retained profits.

2. ERFTERMBREEN(E
EMBHREER ) REBITAE

(&)

21 ERUBBREENEISHRIEZEF
BRI (E)
BREREBMKEREERES
RHNFERE(E)

@ AEBEHEFIIVUNEERS
KR RAEERBLES LT
BERFPHREES - HAE
B mERAR - K RkE
ANEF AR P B R)EE R E
EIRIR - FIBEHAHETA
EEARFITRATKEGE S
ERAE D BRI - s
RIERE AN BRELELSE
155 B BEREER - BT
B REVIRE & AVE L SR
2 Bl47,886,00078 T &
14,466,000/ 7T + W AR FERE
BHREEREERIBEAEE
¥ & 5 564,905,000 7%
7T} 2,553,000 7T °

) R=ZZE—N\F—A—H %
AT AEL b FE 1 308 K FE AT
BRHME P #B3857,000%
TEENDEREHNEE -

€ BREREBBUBHREER
FEA5R A F R BB Y
&N A AR & IR E 1 0
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 2 — L — \F+_HA=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with
Customers” (continued)
Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 15 (continued)
The following tables summarise the impacts of
applying HKFRS 15 on the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December
2018 and its consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the current year for each
of the line items affected. Line items that were not
affected by the changes have not been included.

Impact on the consolidated statement of financial
position

2. ERAHITEEMBREZEN(E
BMBHREED ) REBITE

(%)

2.1

EBMKBRELEREISHKIEFR
EHWmE(E)
BRERAEBMKEREERE1S
RHNFERE(E)

TRV EREBY KRS %R
FISRHAKER T —N\F
T A=+ —HMRATBERR
WERNAFENFREBRERE
fthEEmBEREBE ST ER
HATERNFE  TRIERSE
BFEMER -

BN BEMRRNZE

Amounts without
application of

As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
A RE
BRI RE
HEBE 1557
B2k HE Sl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHT
Non-current asset FREBEE
Interests in associates PREEE N R A ER 460,604 (6,851) 454,753
Current assets RBEE
Contract assets EREE 165,385" (165,389) -
Inventories 75 163,766 106,692 270,458
Non-current liability FRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities EXEFIBAE 68,565 (8,867) 59,698
Capital and Reserves BEXRRFEE
Retained profits RED & 614,558 (65,677) 558,881
Translation reserve BERE (79,594) 2,156 (77,438)

*

The amount is after the adjustment from the application of
HKFRS 9.
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFITEAUBEHREEN(H
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BUEREER ] REMBITR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (%)

(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)
2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with 21 ERUBBREENEISHRIEZEF
Customers” (continued) aHWE (&)
Summary of effects arising from initial BXEREBRMKEHREERES
application of HKFRS 15 (continued) FHEERE(AE)
Impact on the consolidated statement of profit and A Ba RAMEENmRE
loss and other comprehensive income igf-74
Amounts
without

application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15

KRECER
ERMBRE
ERIE155
B2 AR e ]
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET TET
Revenue WS 1,366,753 (108,078) 1,258,675
Cost of sales SHE R (1,065,863) 63,639 (1,002,224)
Gross profit EF 300,890 (44,439 256,451
Impairment losses on financial & FI&ERA NEE
assets and contract assets, HEEE (NREE)
net of reversal (6,218) 4,281 (1,937)
Share of profits of associates ok (St A=l/N bl 51,669 (4,765) 46,904
Profit before taxation BRELAT R F 221,362 44,923 176,439
Taxation I8 (46,930) 6,697 (40,233)
Profit for the year FERREA 174,432 (38,226) 136,206
Total comprehensive income £R2EIE (BX)
(expenses) for the year wmzg 42,039 (38,226) 3,813
* The amount includes impairment of contract assets from * ZeReERAEEYKERELER
the application of HKFRS 9. FORMENEERE -
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financial statements
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)
2.1 HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with

Customers” (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial

application of HKFRS 15 (continued)

Impact on the consolidated statement of cash flows

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

R EEMBRELEN(E
BMBHREED ) REBETE

(%)

21 ERUBBREENEISHRIEF
e (E)
BREREBMKEREERES
RHNFERE(E)
HiseRenExknZE

Amounts
without
application of
As reported Adjustments HKFRS 15
REER
BEENBRE
BERIE155
B2 A NeE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ~ {E& %8
Profit before taxation K35 B @ A 221,362 (44,923) 176,439
Adjustments for: N
Share of profits of associates 9 EEZ X AE F (51,669) 4,765 (46,904)
Impairment losses on financial & RVEENMALEE
assets and contract assets, REEE (HkR#E)
net of reversal 6,218" (4,281) 1,937
Operating cash flows before EEESEHAN
movements in working capital KL EKIRELTE 311,542 (44,439 267,103
Increase in inventories FEEm (10,197) (70,447) (80,644)
Increase in contract assets BREEEMN (114,886) 114,886 -

*

the application of HKFRS 9.

The amount includes impairment of contract assets from

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

ZeRBREEBERBUEMSER
FOMMANEEME



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments” and the related
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs.
HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets
and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit losses
(“ECL”) for financial assets and contract assets and
3) general hedge accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance
with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9. i.e.
applied the classification and measurement
requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have not
been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date of
initial application) and has not applied the
requirements to instruments that have already been
derecognised as at 1 January 2018. The difference
between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017
and the carrying amounts as at 1 January 2018 are
recognised in the opening retained profits, without
restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may
not be comparable as comparative information was
prepared under HKAS 39 “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”.

Accounting policies resulting from application of
HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the classification and
measurement of financial assets and financial
liabilities and other items subject to ECL under
HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2018.

Financial assets

R EEMBRELEN(E
BMBHREED ) REBETE
(%)

22 EANBREEAFEIR &5

TR|#E)
BEXREAEAVBHREREUS
RHTERE
TERAAEMEERSRMEBEN
REMEER-_ZF—NF—A—
FEXEAEAREEBVBER
EREAFIR LB BT ERNF
MR EEERETHOE
KETE °

at amortised
cost (previously
classified as
loan and Deferred Retained
receivables)  Contract assets tax liabilities profits
REHN AT
MeREE
(FRIDBERER
RIEYIE) BHEE  BEREER REET]
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FirsE FAT THET TR TR
Closing balance at R=B-t&+=8
31 December 2017 =+ -AMEREH
— HKAS 39 - EEEHEL
$39% 1,119,680 - 55,133 639,017
Effect arising from initial & X EAEBHKERE
application of HKFRS 15 %R|% 155 Z& - 64,905 2,553 15,552
Effect arising from initial & X EAEBHERE
application of HKFRS 9 %R0k HEE
Remeasurement EfitE
Impairment under ECL model TEEIE & B BER AT (a)
EO)EREL (10,932) (76) (1,519 (9,489)
Opening balance at R-Z-N\E-A-H
1 January 2018 HERA e 1,108,748 64,829 56,167 645,080
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

2.2 HKFRS 9 “ Financial Instruments” (continued)

Summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 9 (continued)

Note:

(@)

Impairment under ECL model

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure ECL which uses a lifetime ECL for all contract
assets and trade receivables. Except for those which had
been determined as credit impaired under HKAS 39,
contract assets and trade receivables have been assessed
individually with outstanding significant and long aged
balances, the remaining balances are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The contract assets
relate to unbilled work in progress and have substantially
the same risk characteristics as the trade receivables for
the same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
estimated the expected loss rates for the trade receivables
and the contract assets on the same basis.

ECL for other financial assets at amortised cost mainly
include pledged bank deposits, bank balances, other
receivables and refundable deposits, are assessed on
twelve months ECL basis as there had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, the additional credit loss allowance
of HK$11,008,000 and related deferred tax credit of
HK$1,519,000 has been recognised against retained
profits. The additional loss allowance is charged against
the respective assets or loss allowance accounts.

R EEMBRELEN(E
EMBHREER ) REBITAE
(&)

22 EBUKBEEANFEIRIE&H
IR|(&
BREREBMBEHREERE
RHNFERE(E)

BisE -

(@ FEHREEEHBREARETHRE

AEEEEAEEM WSS
IORMBE A ERMERRS
B AMAERNEERESE
WHERAE AEREERE -
BiRIEE B Gt R F 395 )
BALBREEREN  aNEE
KB 5 EWRIE S # 17 E R
il WEREAKREE R ERE
&R SR T ERRIREBEEE
ERBFENE - AHEERR
FEBERETH TR LER
BANNE S RUGIRAR KB
BRI R - Bt - ANEE
AR EE G E S RKFIAR
AHEEMNAREEER -

HEHERA R At SR E
(FEBESERMBITHFER R
TT#ERR - E bR WGRIR R AT IRIE
) WEMERERLRI2(EA
BEHEEBEEENG 8/
9 B A RERR LA SR AL SRR L 8 0

RZZ—N\F—A—8 KRB
HAERENEEBERE
11,008,000 7 7T 2 A8 B8 i {E 7t T8
K %1,519,00078 T - BEINE B
BEOREEESREBBERD
gge\ °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG

2. ERFTERMBREEN(E
BMBHREED ) REBETE

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&)
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)
2.2 HKFRS 9 “ Financial Instruments” (continued) 22 EBUBBEEANFEIRIE&H
IR|(#&)
Summary of effects arising from initial BXAEREBMBRELENFE9
application of HKFRS 9 (continued) FHEERE(AE)
Note: (continued) PaE - (&)
(@)  Impairment under ECL model (continued) @ TEHEESERNETAREE)
All loss allowances, including trade receivables, contract RZZE—tF+-A=+—HK=
assets and other financial assets at amortised cost as at BMEE(BREZEKFIE 64
31 December 2017 reconciled to the opening loss BAEREEERATIROE M B
allowance as at 1 January 2018 are as follows: BE)MBEEREHER_T—N
F— B —HMBYESEREEERED
T
Other
financial assets
Trade Contract at amortised
receivables assets cost
R SR ATIBR
B F WA BHEE MEMEREE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHT FET
At 31 December 2017 N-_ZE—+F+=-A
— HKAS 39 =+—8 - &%g: N/A
ZERIIZE 3957 - TEA -
Amounts remeasured adjusted & ¥ 5t & gt HIR 2 % T
to opening retained profits FARNTE 10,117 76 815
At 1 January 2018 R=Z2-\#—A—H 10,117 76 815
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. ERAFMIEAMEREEN(E
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG BUEREER]) REEFTR
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (&)

(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)
2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of 23 EAMBEHIEAHEBDESH

financial position arising from the application BHARRFROSE
of all new standards

As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting
policies above, the opening consolidated statement MUGEEMBRARKATE
of financial position had to be restated. The 5| o TREREEERIIE B R

following table show the adjustments recognised for MR TEEAXEHTEN

B EREENGHREAE

each of the line items affected. Line items that were BH -
not affected by the changes have not been
included.
31 December 1 January
2017 2018
(Audited) HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
“E+f —E-N\E
+ZA=+—R EEUBERE AEMBEE —A—H
(EE7) HRIZ 155 ERIE QR (fEE51)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THIL TAT FHT THIL
Non-current Asset FREBEE
Interests in associates RESE R R ER 535,072 1,086 - 536,158
Current Assets REEE
Trade receivables (note) 2 5 N EE (H5) 796,248 - (10,117) 786,131
Contract assets BNEE - 64,905 (76) 64,829
Inventories FE 167,892 (47,886) - 120,006
Other receivables, prepayments  E el Z0E « T8 2R
and refundeble deposits LARER € 56,562 - (815) 55,747
Current Liabilities REEE
Other payables and accruals H AR FUE R AERT B B 115,539 (857) - 114,682
Contract liabilities AHEE - 857 - 857
Non-current Liability FRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities ERHBEEE 55,133 2,553 (1,519 56,167
Capital and Reserves BEXR B
Retained profits RBRF 639,017 15,552 (9,489) 645,080

Note: Trade related amount due from a related party previously
presented separately were reclassified and included in

trade receivables.

M BEBEBE2INEKEESTESE
BRBEEEN S Ut AESE

Ykag
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE —=

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application
of all new standards (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

—N\E+A=1+—HILHFE

EFH%E*TEJ%EH%#&%@EEU(FE
BMBHREED ) REBETE
(%)

23 ERARAEHITENBRANGES M
BRRBROTE (E)

CEMEERERNHET TR Y
BHRELEUREBTAE

AEBWEEFEA T HEM
BRARERNFRT BBV BRE

but are not yet effective:

R ELERT AR

HKFRS 16 Leases'
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
HK(FRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment
or Settlement!
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures'
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs

2015—2017 Cycle'
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application
of all new standards (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but

not yet effective (continued)
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to
be determined.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021.
4 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions

for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January
2020.

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2020

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs
mentioned below, the directors of the Company
anticipate that the application of all other new and
amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application
of all new standards (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for
the identification of lease arrangements and
accounting treatments for both lessors and lessees.
HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the
related interpretations when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes leases and service
contracts on the basis of whether an identified asset
is controlled by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16
requires sales and leaseback transactions to be
determined based on the requirements of HKFRS
15 as to whether the transfer of the relevant asset
should be accounted as a sale. HKFRS 16 also
includes requirements relating to subleases and
lease modifications.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases
are removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised for all
leases by lessees, except for short-term leases and
leases of low value assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application
of all new standards (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost
and subsequently measured at cost (subject to
certain exceptions) less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses, adjusted for any
remeasurement of the lease liability. The lease
liability is initially measured at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at that date.
Subsequently, the lease liability is adjusted for
interest and lease payments, as well as the impact
of lease modifications, amongst others. For the
classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as
investing cash flows in relation to leasehold lands for
owned use and those classified as investment
properties while other operating lease payments as
operating cash flows. Upon application of HKFRS
16, lease payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows by
the Group, upfront prepaid lease payment will
continue to be presented as investing or operating
cash flows in accordance with to the nature as
appropriate.

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands where
the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of
these assets depending on whether the Group
presents right-of-use assets separately or within the
same line item at which the corresponding
underlying assets would be presented if they were
owned.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 2 — L — \F+_HA=+—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2.
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)
2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application
of all new standards (continued)
HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Other than certain requiements which are also
applicable to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries
forward the lessor accounting requirements in
HKAS 17, and continues to require a lessor to
classify a lease either as an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by
HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of
HK$7,932,000 as disclosed in note 43. A
preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease.
Upon application of HKFRS 16, the Group will
recognise a right-of-use asset and a corresponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they
qualify for low value or short-term leases.

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable
rental deposits paid of HK$787,598 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies.
Based on the definition of lease payments under
HKFRS 16, such deposits are not payments relating
to the right to use the underlying assets,
accordingly, the carrying amounts of such deposits
may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments to
refundable rental deposits paid would be considered
as additional lease payments and included in the
carrying amount of right-of-use assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (continued)

2.3 Impacts on opening consolidated statement of
financial position arising from the application
of all new standards (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

The application of new requirements may result in
changes in measurement, presentation and
disclosure as indicated above. The Group intends to
elect the practical expedient to apply HKFRS 16 to
contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that
were not previously identified as containing a lease
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — In 4. Therefore,
the Group will not reassess whether the contracts
are, or contain a lease which already existed prior to
the date of initial application. Furthermore, the
Group intends to elect the modified retrospective
approach for the application of HKFRS 16 as lessee
and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without
restating comparative information.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition
of Material

The amendments provide refinements to the
definition of material by including additional
guidance and explanations in making materiality
judgements. The amendments also align the
definition across all HKFRSs and will be mandatorily
effective for the Group’s annual period beginning on
1 January 2020. The application of the amendments
is not expected to have significant impact on the
financial position and performance of the Group but
may affect the presentation and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset
or liability if market participants would take those
characteristics into account when pricing the asset or
liability at the measurement date. Fair value for
measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based
Payment”, leasing transactions that are within the scope
of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in
use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.

A fair value measurement of non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

3. BEAZFHEXE

REVBBRRERBEE BSOS
BN E BT MEERIRSR © 1o
HEMBBRRBREBEARERXIME
[RABIREZZ LA R REE QBRG]
MENBERRESE -

BETRANEBNENSRTAIN -
REMBHRERIINERERRZESL
RAEERR  FER T XK

FE e AR — AR AR B R B W) e AR A% T
BTRENAAEEMETE °

ARBEENAERHMSE2EER
BERFR P HEEEF WK EZE
BEAXNWNER  MA@mZERE
BERABRYAERE M AERM
fhEt - EMSE2RENGTERMYE
EXREETEFERINEELREX
ERE AAKRERGEEXAR
MR EEREEEZFRHM - N
ERAMBHRPIETER REE
REN DR BEDRILEEEE  #
BEMEMEERNE 25 [ AN BE
PR | S0 EI R AR D R E BT FRAY 32
5 BEGRERF 17 [HE ] SE
NAHER Z L ER T EEBRDEL
FRABENE (WEBSTERE
2 [FE] WA R FEXF ST
ERIE36W [EERE] WEREER)
BRON o

FEMEENAAEBENEFETS
SLHEEFBEAREEHEEER R
ERRHEBRLEEETHRARE
EREEERRERENS —THL
B2 i A A A M ER I BE ) o



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

o Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

o Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control
is achieved when the Company:

o has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including the re-attribution of relevant reserves between
the Group and the non-controlling interests according to
the Group’s and the non-controlling interests’
proportionate interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to the owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/
HKAS 39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or joint venture.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 “Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee
Benefits” respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”
at the acquisition date (see the accounting policy
below); and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations” are measured in accordance with that
standard.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held interest
in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
The choice of measurement basis is made on a
transaction-by-transaction basis. Other types of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration
is measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included
as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from
additional information obtained during the “measurement
period” (which cannot exceed one year from the
acquisition date) about facts and circumstances that
existed at the acquisition date.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement period
adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured to
fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the cash-generating units (or groups
of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit from
the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than operating
segment.

A cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill
arising on an acquisition in a reporting period, the cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units) to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting period. If the
recoverable amount is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit (or group of cash-generating units).
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Goodwill (continued)

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit or any of
the cash-generating unit within the group of cash-
generating units, the attributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or
loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit (or a cash-
generating unit within a group of cash-generating units),
the amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the
basis of the relative values of the operation (or the cash-
generating unit) disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit (or the group of cash-generating units)
retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition
of an associate and a joint venture is described below.

Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is
the contractually agreed sharing of control of an
arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and
joint venture are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method of
accounting. The financial statements of associates and
joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes are
prepared using uniform accounting policies as those of
the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in an associate or a joint venture is initially recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position at cost
and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. Changes in the net assets of
the associate/joint venture other than profit or loss and
other comprehensive income are not accounted for
unless such changes resulted in changes in ownership
interest held by the Group. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate or joint venture exceeds the
Group’s interest in that associate or joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate or
joint venture), the Group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised
only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
that associate or joint venture.

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is
accounted for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a joint
venture. On acquisition of the investment in an associate
or a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate or a joint
venture may be impaired. When any objective evidence
exists, the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill) is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use
and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised forms part of
the carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
an associate or joint control over a joint venture, it is
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in the
investee with a resulting gain or loss being recognised in
profit or loss. When the Group retains an interest in the
former associate or joint venture and the retained interest
is a financial asset within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS39,
the Group measures the retained interest at fair value at
that date and the fair value is regarded as its fair value on
initial recognition. The difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
the relevant interest in the associate or joint venture is
included in the determination of the gain or loss on
disposal of the associate or joint venture. In addition, the
Group accounts for all amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to that associate
or joint venture on the same basis as would be required if
that associate or joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or
liabilities, the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from
equity to profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
upon disposal/partial disposal of the relevant associates
of joint venture.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

The Group continues to use the equity method when an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture or an investment in a joint venture becomes
an investment in an associate. There is no
remeasurement to fair value upon such changes in
ownership interests.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to
use the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or
loss the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously
been recognised in other comprehensive income relating
to that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group, profits and losses resulting from
the transactions with the associate or joint venture are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial
statements only to the extent of interests in the associate
or joint venture that are not related to the Group.

Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as
held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered
principally through a sale transaction rather than through
continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only
when the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition subject only to
terms that are usual and customary for sales of such
asset (or disposal group) and its sale is highly probable.
Management must be committed to the sale, which
should be expected to qualify for recognition as a
completed sale within one year from the date of
classification.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Non-current assets held for sale (continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
loss of control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary are classified as held for sale
when the criteria described above are met, regardless of
whether the Group will retain a non-controlling interest in
the relevant subsidiary after the sale.

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving
disposal of an investment, or a portion of an investment,
in an associate or joint venture, the investment or the
portion of the investment that will be disposed of is
classified as held for sale when the criteria described
above are met, and the Group discontinues the use of
the equity method in relation to the portion that is
classified as held for sale from the time when the
investment (or a portion of the investment) is classified as
held for sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as
held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except
for financial assets within the scope of HKFRS 9/HKAS
39, investment properties which continue to be measured
in accordance with the accounting policies as set out in
respective sections.

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the
particular performance obligation is transferred to the
customer.

A performance obligation represents a good and service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.

3.

EXRGTTHE )

FEGENERBDEE(E

fisl A 52 B B A I — RS Je X — I BfY
BARZEGRRODEE BEFAMN
LFEAE  ZMEARMEEERE
BUPBEABAERE  TwAKES
B E 1R IR B % B P & 2 B HY S

PotEas

AR ER NN —BF R EER—E
BENRNBERENERE (HEFP—
MO)WHERE EFAALER
B T HENARRE (HEP
DIDERFAFE  MAKERAKRE
(HEF BRI EABEFER
BB BRFEFENSIRE
B FAREEA ©

DERRBFENERBDEE (RHE
AR A LR REE R AR BERHE
EXRAMERNREETE - EFE
M ELRE N BEGHERS
BMHBEANNETREERIN  REY
REBRESOMHETHRTE

BEFEEHWE (REMZ2NBIEER
FRMBHREERE15HRR)

RIBEBAMBERELNE5I] - Ak
BN (HEE) BITRAEERERK
@ RS EBOETHENE MK
ARAS R [ 125 | BB ER PR -

[EX BT — RS m LIRS (3 —
HERHIRTE) — RIABAER A
S m e iR -

2018F 3 EREREBEERAF

103



104

Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

e the Group’s performance creates and enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

e the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue from the printing of cigarette
packages and manufacturing of laminated paper with no
alternative use are recognised over time.

Revenue from the sale of RFID products and
manufacturing of paper packaging material are
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the distinct goods or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable
represents the Group’s unconditional right to
consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon
application of HKFRS 15 in accordance with
transitions in note 2) (continued)

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for an presented on a net basis.

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of
progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of a
performance obligation relative to the total expected
inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced
for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar
allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured; when it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
specific criteria have been met for each of the Group’s
activities, as described below.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)
(continued)

Revenue from the sale of cigarette packages and
manufacture of laminated papers is recognised when
goods are delivered and titles have passed. Deposits and
instalments received from purchasers prior to meeting
the above criteria for revenue recognition are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under
current liabilities.

The Group’s accounting policy for recognition of revenue
from operating leases is described in the accounting
policy for leasing below.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the
relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset. Such costs are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over
the lease term.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Leasing (continued)

Leasehold land and building

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification of each
element separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of each element have been transferred to
the Group, unless it is clear that both elements are
operating leases in which case the entire property is
accounted as an operating lease. Specifically, the entire
consideration (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the
leasehold interests in the land element and building
element at initial recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant lease
payments can be made reliably, interest in leasehold land
that is accounted for as an operating lease is presented
as “prepaid lease payments” in the consolidated
statement of financial position and is amortised over the
lease term on a straight-line basis. When the payments
cannot be allocated reliably between the leasehold land
and building elements, the entire property is generally
classified as if the leasehold land is under finance lease.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are date.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates prevailing at
the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for
the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly
during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of exchange reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that
includes a foreign operation of which the retained interest
becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange
differences resulting from translation to the Company’s
functional currency, RMB, accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a disposal of an operation that
does not satisfy foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences, resulting from the translation to the Group’s
presentation currency, accumulated in equity in respect
of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are not reclassified in profit or loss.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income in
the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with
no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and
other state-managed retirement benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense
unless another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion
of the benefit in the costs of asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
(such as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before taxation’
because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in
the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except when it relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in
which case, the current and deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting
for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including buildings in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in
progress as described below), are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost,
less any recognised impairment loss. Costs include
professional fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing
costs capitalised in accordance with the Group’s
accounting policy. Such properties are classified to the
appropriate categories of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for intended use.
Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other
property assets, commences when the assets are ready
for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the
straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

If an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property because its use has changed as evidenced by
end of owner-occupation, the cost and accumulated
depreciation of that item at the date of transfer are
transferred to investment property for subsequent
measurement and disclosure purposes.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Buildings under development for future owner-
occupied purpose

When buildings are in the course of development for
production or for administrative purposes, the
amortisation of prepaid lease payments provided during
the construction period is included as part of costs of
buildings under construction. Buildings under
construction are carried at cost, less any identified
impairment losses. Depreciation of buildings commences
when they are available for use (i.e. when they are in the
location and condition necessary for them to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management).
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation (including property under
construction for such purpose).

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are stated at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
investment properties over their estimated useful lives
and after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method.

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalised as part of the carrying
amount of the investment properties under construction.

If an item of investment property becomes owner-
occupied property because its use has changed as
evidenced by commencement of owner-occupation, the
cost and accumulated depreciation of that item at the
date of transfer are transferred to property, plant and
equipment for subsequent measurement and disclosure
pUrposes.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected
from its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the property (calculated as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the
period in which the property is derecognised.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate being
accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets
with indefinite useful lives that are acquired separately are
carried at cost less any subsequent accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets
acquired in a business combination with finite useful lives
are reported at costs less accumulated amortisation and
any accumulated impairment losses, on the same basis
as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of
an intangible asset, measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset, are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.

—N\E+ZA=1+—HLHFE
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

e the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

e the intention to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

e the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

° how the intangible asset will generate probable
future economic benefits;

° the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and
to use or sell the intangible asset; and

e the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred.

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are reported at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any),
on the same basis as intangible assets that are acquired
separately.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount
of the relevant asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss, if any.

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets
are estimated individually, when it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an asset individually,
the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to
the smallest group of cash-generating units for which a
reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Impairment on tangible and intangible assets other
than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect
of goodwill above) (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. In
allocating the impairments loss, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets on a
pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of each
asset in the unit. The carrying amount of an asset is not
reduced below the highest of its fair value less costs of
disposal (if measurable), its value in use (if determinable)
and zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost of inventories are determined on a
weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less
all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to
make the sale.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchase or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables arising
from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit
or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in accordance with note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

e  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

e the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL").

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired
financial instrument improves so that the financial asset is
no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
assets is no longer credit impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of the reporting period, with any fair value gains
or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial asset and is included in
the “other gains and losses” line item.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when
the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been
established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts through the expected
life of the financial assets to that asset’s net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment under
HKFRS 9 (including trade receivables, other receivables
and refundable deposits, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances) and contract assets. The amount of ECL
is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date. Assessment are done
based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of both
the current conditions at the reporting date as well as the
forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets. The ECL on these
assets are assessed individually for debtors with
significant balances and/or collectively using a provision
matrix with appropriate groupings basing on internal
credit ratings after considering historical default records,
aging and length of customer relationship.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(continued)

U

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

e significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease
in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(continued)

U)

Significant increase in credit risk

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit
risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, The Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial assets is more
than 90 days past due unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(continued)

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(i)

@)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation; or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based
on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application of
HKFRS 9 with transitions in accordance with note 2)
(continued)

V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)
Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the
financial instruments are grouped on the below
basis:

° Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s
trade receivables and contract assets are
assessed as a separate group. Other financial
assets are assessed for expected credit losses
on an individual basis);

e  Aging and past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

Length of customer relationship.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue
to share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables and contract assets where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a
loss allowance account.

3.

EXRGTTHE )

£RIE(E)

SRMEE (&)

& A E B (IRIENT 5 2 68978 % FE FF
BB IR ERFE L) (&

v TEHMEEEBRNERER(E
REBEEFESNEENTAR
IKFBERLEFENER Al
BT AL NEERE

e SRMIAME(AAEEN
BHRKRIBERAHNEES
BrREABIAR -
BEREREEFETRHIE
BE8E)

o RERKEHIENR:

e EHAMME - BERNTT
xRk

s XEFHEFH-

FRETIFEEERE T HmaT - i
REMRIKRN BB D ERUEE
B BRI o

MBWATREEBEEMNKRE
BERTE  RIFEMEERLRE
BRE - EBERT - MERA
RIEE B EE R B HRAGTH -

AEERBEMESRTANKE
[ B A 18 25 T AR R (B U 25 3 /&
B HESRRFBEREHNEE
AISE B IR K B ERRRER AR R

2018F 3 EREREBEERAF

127



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018)
Financial assets are classified into the following specified
categories: financial assets at FVTPL and loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the
time of initial recognition.

()  Financial asset at FVTPL
Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial assets is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is
designated as at FVTPL.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

128 BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

U

Financial asset at FVTPL (continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for
trading may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial
recognition if:

° such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

° the financial asset forms part of a group of
financial assets or financial liabilities or both,
which is managed and its performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and
information about the grouping is provided
internally on that basis; or

° it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
“Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement” permits the entire combined
contract (asset or liability) to be designated as
at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value,
with any gains or losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend or
interest earned on the financial assets and is
included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
Fair value is determined in the manner described in
note 42.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January
2018) (continued)

(i)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Subsequent to initial
recognition, loans and receivables (including trade
receivables, other receivables and refundable
deposits, amount due from a related party, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment (see
accounting policy in respect of impairment loss on
financial assets below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would
be immaterial.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed
for indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting
period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired
where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition
of the financial assets, the estimated future cash flows of
the financial assets have been affected.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

° breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

° it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of
delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.
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BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (before application of
HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) (continued)

The carrying amount of loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all loans and
receivables with the exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an
allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss.
When trade receivables are considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
to profit or loss.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, If, in a
subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

3.

NF+ZA=+—HILFE

BEREFHE B

£RIA(E)

SEEE (&)
cHEERE(R=-_F—F—H—H
Eﬁ?&%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂ%gﬁwx g)
R EERKERFENE  BER K
FEW R IBER REE A ERREBER
Lo B SEBGRIARSI - HEEAEE
ThEBEABERE MR - BER
EMEREEAESEHRBENER - WE
S W RIAWAR AEERE - AR

AR B IS o H 0 m e T MEH e R
HEF ABEEA

VIR EIER AN EREEMS
MR EREE  BEEESRERD
M 520 2 B B bt B R BB (B 18 3 A Y
%1#@?% 81| 55 Al HE SR B R (B B 1R 5B
BIEEEO - EZEENEERER
iR BRI B S R B A X M R w2URU(E
MBI T IEA BB SHACR -

RIUER L BEE
AEEEEWNEERSRENTF
WENER IKEMEERZEE
%ﬁ%%%k%ﬁ@@&@ﬁ%%%

—ERNBR T IAK LR —E
ﬁﬂé%

IR IERERIRBHK AR RN 2 B E
ER E§F§m?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂEiH&lif@ﬂﬁTﬁf?
ZF?W%%EEATE e



Notes to the consolidated
financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified either as
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net
of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is contingent consideration that may be
paid by the Group as part of a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade payables, other
payables, purchase consideration payable for acquisition
at amortised cost, amounts due to non-controlling
interests of subsidiaries, bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liability when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled
or have expired. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
judgments

The following are the critical judgments, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the
Group’s accounting policies and that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

Revenue recognition from sales of products with no
alternative use over time

Under HKFRS 15, control is transferred over time when
the Group’s performance does not create an asset with
an alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date. Significant judgment is required in determining
whether the terms of the Group’s contracts with
customers in relation to printing of cigarette packages
and manufacturing of laminated papers with no
alternative use create an enforceable right to payment.
The Group has considered the relevant local laws that
apply to those relevant contracts and opinion from
external legal counsel. Based on the assessment of the
Group’s management, the relevant sales contracts create
an enforceable right to payment after taking into
consideration the legal opinion, contract laws and the
legal and regulatory environment in the PRC. Accordingly,
contracts relating to printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers with no alternative
use is considered to be performance obligation satisfied
over time.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of each reporting period, that may have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year.
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4.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the recoverable amounts of the cash-
generating units to which goodwill has been allocated,
which is the higher of the value in use or fair value less
costs of disposal. The value in use calculation requires
the Group to estimate certain assumptions, including the
discount rate, terminal growth rate, gross margin and
sales growth rate in order to derive the net present value
of the discounted future cash flow model. Where the
actual future cash flows are less than expected, or
changes in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of the recoverable amount, a material
impairment loss may arise.

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of goodwill
is HK$1,050,965,000 (2017: HK$1,044,293,000). During
the year ended 31 December 2018, impairment loss on
goodwill of HK$48,000,000 (2017: HK$40,000,000) was
provided. Details of the recoverable amount calculation are
set out in note 20.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE 5. W&
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 A BE-Z—-N\HE+=ZH=+—H
LFE
(i) Disaggregation of revenue from contracts () BEFEEHAWZESE
with customers
Types of goods &R FEN
2018
—E-N\F
HK$’000
FET
Printing and manufacturing of cigarette ENfll & $iEF B 6 2 R IE M
packages and related materials
— Printing of cigarette packages — IR B ERE 1,175,388
— Manufacturing of paper packaging — R3EAK B E MK
materials 61,528
Manufacturing of laminated papers ~ &LEE & 41 44,776
Sales of RFID products $H 6 5 5878 Bl EE 85,061
1,366,753
Timing of revenue recognition Moz BB A [E]
2018
—E-N\fF
Manufacturing of Printing  Manufacturing Sales
paper packaging of cigarette of laminated of RFID
materials packages papers products Total
HER HRIEE B HERE
BEMH a%k BaE RAER @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER TR TR THER
A point in time NG 61,528 - - 85,061 146,589
Over time BB - 1,175,388 44,776 - 1,220,164
Total &t 61,528 1,175,388 44,776 85,061 1,366,753
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W& &)
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 A BE-_Z-N\F+=ZA=+—H
(continued) IEFE(E)
() Disaggregation of revenue from contracts ) EFEHAWEIE(AE)
with customers (continued)
Geographical markets Hh [ T
Information about the Group’s revenue from EAAEERBEINIRF U
external customers is presented based on the mERIREIETS 2
geographical market irrespective of the origin 5l AR E AR 2R
of goods/services. TR, ©
2018
—EB-N\F
Manufacturing of Printing  Manufacturing Sales
paper packaging of cigarette of laminated of RFID
materials packages papers products
BEH HESE
BEME HREERS% BEEEH BEIER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
TER THER TERT TER
PRC s 61,528 1,175,388 44,776 56,405
Others (Note) Hib (i) - - - 28,656
Total st 61,528 1,175,388 44,776 85,061
Note: Others included the Republic of Indonesia, the MisE - E b & 3R ENE fE B 25 AN
United States of America and the Republic of - EFBRERERARR
Korea. o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018
(continued)

A.

(1)

Performance obligations for contracts
with customers

Printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers

The Group’s contracts with customers for
printing of cigarette packages and
manufacturing of laminated papers are tailor-
made based on customers’ specification with
no alternative use to the Group. Taking into
account the contract terms, the legal and
regulatory environment in the PRC, all
contracts provide the Group’s enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date and hence the revenue is recognised over
time upon application of HKFRS 15.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms,
the customers have no right to return products
except those with quality flaw. The Group
generally does not require the customers to
pay in advance. The customers should settle
the trade receivable within 60 to 90 days upon
the issue of value added tax invoice.

A contract asset is recognised over the period
basing on the progress towards complete
satisfaction of a performance obligation
representing the Group’s right to consideration
because the rights are conditioned on the
Group’s future performance in delivery of
goods. The contract assets are transferred to
trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional. The Group typically transfers the
contract assets to trade receivables when the
goods are delivered to the customers.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &z —ZF—

5. REVENUE (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2018
(continued)

A.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

(1)

Performance obligations for contracts
with customers (continued)

Manufacturing of paper packaging materials
Revenue from the manufacturing of paper
packaging materials is recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being at
the point the goods are delivered to the
customers. Delivery occurs when the goods
have been shipped to the customer’s specific
locations.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms,
the customers have no right to return products
except those with quality flaw. The Group
generally does not require the customers to
pay in advance. The customers should settle
the trade receivable within 60 to 90 days upon
the issue of value added tax invoice.

Sales of RFID products

Revenue from the sales of RFID products is
recognised when control of the goods has
transferred, being at the point the goods are
delivered to the customers. Delivery occurs
when the goods have been shipped to the
customer’s specific locations.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms,
the customers have no right to return products
except those with quality flaw. The Group
generally does not require the customers to
pay in advance. The customers should settle
the trade receivable within 60 to 90 days upon
the issue of value added tax invoice.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

5. REVENUE (continued) 5. W& &)
A. For the year ended 31 December 2018 A BE-Z-—-N\HE+=ZH=+—H
(continued) IEFE(E)
(iii) Transaction price allocated to the (i) ?7HERTEANEENRS
remaining performance obligation &
All the Group’s contracts with customers are REBEMEEFAHH AR
for periods of one year or less. As permitted —FHAT - RIBBBIH
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price REEREASTIE - R
allocated to the remaining performance —E-N\F+A=+—H
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) NEEHRTRORENRS
as at 31 December 2018 is not disclosed. BOREKKE D REK)
TT#HE -
B. For the year ended 31 December 2017 B. #&=—Z2—tH+=-HA=+—H
IHEE
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year is as FRAREERRZSTWT -
follows:
2017
—E—tF
HK$’000
FHT
Printing of cigarette packages ENfR BB B 8 1,189,744
Manufacturing of laminated papers FEE A 42,849
Sales of RFID products SH & B SBF8 BI EE oh 32,922
1,265,515
6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. DHFEFR
Information reported to the executive directors of the ROBERMIBSBREMBAR
Company, being the chief operating decision maker AMTEFRITZLERARE(ZE
(“CODM?”), for the purposes of resource allocation and BERRE]D)ZWER  EPRAR
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of NEWHMRHERBER - AEEY
goods delivered or services provided. No operating EAEMKFEEERFEHRNNNLE
segments identified by the CODM have been aggregated 7 BPE S MAHY A &S 70 &6

in arriving at the reportable segments of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER#E)
The Group’s operating and reportable segments currently AEBRKEERTHREDEBE R A
are (i) printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages ENRI e B35 & B 5 R ABBEM KL ¢ (i)
and related materials, (i) manufacturing of laminated RIS A A (i) 85 & 5T SR A B B
papers and (i) sales of RFID products. During the year, me TR AEBRKE—EFHE
the Group commenced the business of manufacturing of NE(FERMEE38R) AHERERE
paper packaging materials upon the acquisition of a new RMEER - HEGE AR & &S
subsidiary (as detailed in note 38(a)) and its result is RERERABM AL T EEE
included in the segment of printing and manufacturing of ARRERBAEEE=A(=ZZT—t
cigarette packages and related materials. The CODM FrZE)KRERAIMEDE - TIRIE
considered the Group has three (2017: three) operating WEBARM N RmEEE D - LIRS
and reportable segments which are based on the internal B AR A B0 L o
organisation and reporting structure. This is the basis
upon which the Group is organised.
Segment revenues and results DI R EE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and AT ABAREEIEAIHRE 58D MU
results by reportable segment. R EEDT
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE-Z-—-NF+=-RAR=+—HL#EF
E
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette Manufacturing Sales
packages and of laminated of RFID
related materials papers products Total
EINE
EEBER HESE
EEpEe BERAH BRER @it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000
Fax Fax Fax Fax
Segment revenue pansitl Gt 1,236,916 44,776 85,061 1,366,753
Segment profit SEEF 259,796 10,373 16,609 286,778
Unallocated — other income AOE — AR
and other gains and losses HElis RER (32,113)
Unallocated expenses AOEHES (148,282)
Finance costs BEMK (22,776)
Share of profits of associates ok sl =Nt 51,669
Share of profit of a joint venture HME—HAELEEF 623
Impairment losses on financial assets 4B &E kA K BERE
and contract assets, B8 (R AEE)
net of reversal (6,218)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERB LR KE 91,681
Profit before taxation B ATHT 221,362
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER )
Segment revenues and results (continued) DERU IR I A ()
For the year ended 31 December 2017 BE-Z—tHE+-A=+—HLE
E
Printing of ~ Manufacturing Sales
cigarette of laminated of RFID
packages papers products Total
HESTE
MREERR BUER A HAER Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHAT FHAT FHT
Segment revenue A EME 1,189,744 42,849 32,922 1,265,515
Segment profit P ENEA 294,258 10,416 6,151 310,825
Unallocated — other income AOEE — EBARR
and other gains and losses Hiolas R EE (8,797)
Unallocated expenses AR (133,340)
Finance costs BAKA (21,988)
Share of profits of associates S E AR R 47,334
Share of loss of a joint venture S—HAELEERE (274)
Impairment loss on financial assets, ¢ RYEERANEERE
net of reversal B8 (B A E) (930)
Profit before taxation B AT 192,830
The accounting policies of the operating segments are R B & SRR BN FE 3P AR
the same as the Group’s accounting policies described SEMEFTBEMER -

in note 3.

Segment profit represents the profit earned by each
segment without allocation of corporate management
expenses, directors’ emoluments, share of profits of
associates, share of profit (loss) of a joint venture, finance
costs, unallocated other income, other gains and losses,
impairment losses of financial assets and contract assets,
net of reversal amortisation of intangible assets relating to
customer relationship, other expenses and gain on
disposal of subsidiaries. This is the measure reported to
the CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and
performance assessment.

All of the segment revenue reported above is from
external customers.

7 BB M35 % 0 BRETBRECAE A - I
BEORAREEMY EFEME 2
MEBERRREN - DA —RaEhE
A (B R) ~ BMEKA - ROBEEAM
WA~ Bt s R EE eMEER
EHEEREBE(HIKED)  B2E
FREEBNELEERH MM
AR HEN B AR H U ES o itk I E
BRAIERRAFEAEZEERRK
EZ2HHFTETR -

X2 HEFTE 5 HUR 41 5 A 5D
BF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DIERE)
Segment assets and liabilities THEERERE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and AT BAREEIZEE ] RS D IE
liabilities by operating reportable segment: WEERBEDT :
Segment assets PHEE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —t%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Printing and manufacturing of cigarette  EJjfl| & &L 3& 25 & £ 3%
packages and related materials FEREM 1,476,033 1,546,750
Manufacturing of laminated papers RUEE A 4K 33,859 42,817
Sales of RFID products 455 51 3858 bl E o 124,344 85,076
Total segment assets DEEELE 1,634,236 1,674,643
Unallocated property, plant and RKOWEWE - BFE R&E
equipment 30,138 19,362
Prepaid lease payments TENHEERIE 102,859 84,387
Investment properties wmEME 25,703 57,136
Goodwill FEES 1,050,965 1,044,293
Intangible assets EmREE 163,765 193,875
Deferred tax assets EERIBEE 200 -
Interests in associates Ni/NEIE O e 460,604 535,072
Interest in a joint venture )5<\ HEeZhENER 8,755 8,586
Deposits paid for acquisition of BB - B SRS
property, plant and equipment ALk 16,235 8,675
Deposits paid for acquisition of FLUIETE AR E R IE S T
prepaid lease payment IR E 2,289 -
Other receivables, prepayments E IR - BRFUER
and refundable deposits RER S 59,904 56,562
Amount due from a related party [ W — 24 838 7 3R IE 9,422 9,866
Tax recoverable AT Y B 7 18 3,129 3,267
Financial assets at fair value BARBEFAEBRZHN
through profit or loss TREE - 7,193
Pledged bank deposits EHEFRITFER 11,250 5,455
Bank balances and cash RITRBNIE R 355,508 292,511
Assets classified as held for sale DHEAREFENEE - 197,623
Consolidated assets SEEEBE 3,934,962 4,198,506
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 2 =~ & —

NF+ZA=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER )
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) ITHEERAE(E)
Segment liabilities PHEE
2018 2017
—E-NFE ZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT TET
Printing and manufacturing of cigarette  E[JJl| &2 £ iEH 1E B 5
packages and related materials FEREM 209,528 246,126
Manufacturing of laminated papers SR E K 1,119 4,251
Sales of RFID products 55 51 3858 bl 2 o 19,029 14,987
Total segment liabilities SEEERTE 229,676 265,364
Other payables and accruals HibfEf R IB L EETE B 116,545 112,871
Amounts due to non-controlling FEATBT B & A FE I i i 2
interests of subsidiaries A 8,154 4,983
Bank borrowings RITIEE 620,084 678,166
Bank overdraft RITEX 19,897 -
Income tax payable FEA PRI 30,489 41,483
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHFRE 68,565 55,133
Government grants IEdieR Uk 30,175 37,109
Purchase consideration payable MUWBEBEBERES(NEE
for acquisition RE 12,776 22,848
Liabilities associated with assets HAOMARERENEE
classified as held for sale E@maE - 39
Consolidated liabilities meaE 1,136,361 1,217,996

Segment assets represent certain property, plant and
equipment, deferred tax assets, trade receivables,
contract assets and inventories which are directly
attributable to the relevant operating and reportable
segment. Segment liabilities represent trade payables
which are directly attributable to the relevant operating
and reportable segment. These are the measures

reported to the CODM for the purpose of resource = o
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

DHMEERKREERFEBNHEBRLE R
Al 2HmN EBOETYE - BE M&E -
BEEMIAEE  BZRWHE 64
BEUNEE - D
BREREERAI 2R MNE H &
RIE - WD BB IR LA D&
REMTIBLERREERNTES

PRERKEESR
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7HERE)
Other segment information Hib o2 E R
2018 —E-N\E
Printing and
manufacturing
of cigarette
packages Manufacturing Sales
and related  of laminated of RFID Segment
materials papers products total  Unallocated Total
DRI EE
EEALR HEGA
BEMR  REELH HHER paif ES a3t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEn TiEn FiEn TiEn FiEn TR

Amounts included in the HEADERAADEER
measurement of segment FAMEE

profit or loss or segment assets:

Addition 1o non-current assets (Note) B ERBAE (i) 149,597 123 29,644 179,364 48,641 228,005
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 94,953 1,093 5,733 101,779 42,382 144,161
Impairment losses on goodil DEERESE 48,000 - - 48,000 - 48,000
Impairment losses (reversal of EHREMENE

impairment losses) ontrade and ~ R{EEE (REFESR)

other receivables 1,875 (10) 653 2,518 (581) 1,937
Impaiment losses on contract assets A4 ERIEEE 4,211 () = 4,275 6 4,281
Losses (gains) on disposal of HENE  BRERREN

property, plant and equipment BB () 2,171 (33) (605) 1,539 (1,578) (39)
Reversals of write-down on obsolete BERERZSHT

inventories (267) - (325) (592) - (592)

Amounts regularly provided to the EHRT ELEREE
CODM but not inclucled in the it BY AR ENH
measure of segment profitorloss:  EFISEREF ANEE -

Interest income TN (1,076) (10) 1] (1,093) (64) (1,157)
Interest expense MERX 3,209 - 1,641 4,940 17,836 2,176
Taxation B 35,907 2,308 3,614 41,829 5,101 46,930
Note: Non-current assets excluded goodwill. Wizt : SERBEETRIENE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oDEERE)
Other segment information (continued) HithpHER (&)
2017 —E—t5F
Printingof ~ Manufactuing Sales
cigarette  of laminated of RFD Segment
packages papers products total  Unallocated Total
il HEMA
BERE  HEged BRER AEEE ARE @t

HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000
TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL TAL

Amounts included in the HEADERANDEER
measurement of segment SAMSE

profit o loss or segment assets:

Addition to non-current assets REHFRBAE 32817 86 47,480 80,383 7,551 87,934
Depreciation and amortisation NEREH 80,349 1,229 2,549 84,127 52,443 136,570
Impairment losses on goodwil BABENERE 40,000 - - 40,000 - 40,000
(Gains) losses on disposal of LENE  BERXED

property, plant and equipment (%) ER (39) 28 (151) (162) 20 (142)
(Reversals) recognition of write-down () BAREZ M

on obsolete inventories (1,142) - 154 (988) - (988)

Amounts regularly provided to the FHAT BLERFE
CODM but not included in the [t BYENGEST
measure of segment profitorloss:  EFIEREF ANEE -

Interest income FIBYA (1,106) (14) (86) (1,200) (119) (1,321)
Interest expense F2Ex 4,345 - 187 4,532 17,456 21,088
Taxation it 37,115 2,327 75 39,617 10,506 50,023
An analysis of the Group’s revenue from its major ERAERFEE R ENREWKZIN D
products and services is set out in note 5. E R MIEES ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Geographical information
The Group’s operations are located in Hong Kong and
the mainland of the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) (country of domicile).

Information about the Group’s revenue from external
customers is presented based on the geographical
market irrespective of the origin of goods/services.
Information about the Group’s non-current assets is
presented based on the geographical location of the

6. DIERE)
ih & & R
REEBRBAERPEARLANE ([
B ) A (GEMHED) 48 & 575 -

AR EE R I YRS ER -

DIREMIETIZ 25

mAwmEY,/ R

BRRR - ERAKREFRDEE
MER - IR EERMIBLERT -

assets.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets (Note a)
REIMBEF FkRBEE (Mista)
2018 2017 2018 2017
—E-N\FE ZE—tF ZZE-N\HF T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
PRC o] 1,338,097 1,240,764 2,153,484 2,088,647
Hong Kong &8 - - 6,115 18,617
Others (Note b) H A, (KtsEb) 28,656 24,751 - -
1,366,753 1,265,515 2,159,599 2,107,264

Notes:

(@) Non-current assets excluded those relating to interests in
associates and interest in a joint venture, in which the operations
of these associates and joint venture are mainly carried out in
PRC.

(b)  Others included the Republic of Indonesia, the United States of
America and the Republic of Korea.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. oEER )
Information about major customers EBRXTEEFWER
Revenues from customers of the corresponding years REEFERERFAEAREEBH
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are B 10% I T
as follow:
2018 2017
—E-NFE —E—LF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Customer A (Note) =P AMIFE) 378,670 388,541
Customer B (Note) EFB(MiFE) 138,339 202,938
Note: Revenue from printing of cigarette packages. MisE : 2R EENRIEE R E MK -
7. OTHER INCOME 7. HgA
2018 2017
—E-N\F CZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHBT
Interest income on bank deposits SRITIF A E LA A 1,157 1,321
Interest income on long-term RHEAE W RIEF S A
receivables - 1,290
1,157 2,611
Sales of scrap materials fHE R 11,671 3,385
Processing fee income MIBKA 2,783 2,848
Rental income el A 3,256 5,283
Government grants (Note) BB (BE) 12,476 20,616
Sundry income MIBUA 901 743
32,244 35,486
Note: Government grants were received from the government of the MizT : BB @ DI EFREBN - FE R

PRC mainly as incentives granted by local authority for
encouragement of its business development and innovation
except for an amount of HK$2,634,000 (2017: HK$2,577,000)
which was granted for the acquisition of property, plant and
equipment (as details in note 35). These grants are accounted for
as financial support with no future related costs expected to be
incurred nor related to any assets.

ERAREERERE LA MR L& 5EE
& MEWEDE - BE kA GERHR
F£35) M A& # 2,634,000 7T (—E—+
1 2,677,000 7C) BRI - ZEHBIETY
AIRSIES 5 &R - BT EELTMA
RABAA - BEEAEESERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. HMWERERE

2018 2017
—E-NFE ZZ—LtF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Net foreign exchange losses HNFE BT I8 F RE (10,518) (6,433)
Gain from changes in fair value of BAREBEFABENSH®
financial assets at FVTPL BEALBEEZH K 3,379 2,008
Loss from changes in fair value of BRARBEFABZNESH
financial liabilities at FVTPL BEAABELZIER (482) -
(Losses) gains on disposal of property, &Y% « HE kB ES
plant and equipment (B18) = (39) 142
Impairment losses on goodwiill EEREEE (48,000) (40,000)
Losses on disposal of partial equity & — B8 & N 7] 365 A
interest in an associate MEE (8,536) -
Other HAtb (161) -
(64,357) (44,283)

9. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON FINANCIAL 9. EREERGHNEERERE

ASSETS AND CONTRACT ASSETS, NET OF (H0BREEE)
REVERSAL
2018 2017
—E-NF CT—+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FAET
Impairment losses recognised AT ZIEERAREE IR
(reversed) on: (@) -
— Trade receivables — B 5 EWFIA 2,474 -
— Contract assets — BHEE 4,281 -
— Other receivables — HAbEUWGRIE (537) 930
6,218 930

Details of impairment assessment for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 42.

BBz T N\F+_-_A=1+—H
I EFERREBERFBRNME2 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

10. FINANCE COSTS 10. ELE KA
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZE—+fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Interest on bank loans and overdrafts 777 & 57 & i 32 71,28 22,776 21,988
11. TAXATION 11. Fi1\
2018 2017
—F-NFE —T+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current tax: AREAFRIA -
The People’s Republic of China i ARAEAME ([HE )
(the “PRC”)
Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) ERRER(TEMEH]) 30,327 42,055
Withholding tax AT 6,516 29,450
36,843 71,505
Underprovision (overprovision) of BAEFECEMSHEBETR
EIT in prior year (FRZBRE) 208 (3,019
Deferred tax (note 36): EERIA (MHFE36) -
Current year REE 9,879 (18,463)
46,930 50,023
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

11. TAXATION (continued) 11. HIE (&)

152

No provision for taxation in Hong Kong has been made
as the Group’s income neither arises in, nor is derived
from, Hong Kong.

The PRC EIT is calculated at the applicable prevailing tax
rates from 15% to 25% (2017: 15% to 25%) in the PRC.
Pursuant to the “Enterprise Income Tax Law for Foreign
Investment Enterprises and Foreign Enterprises”, some
PRC subsidiaries, being a High-Tech Enterprise, were
entitled to a reduced EIT rate of 15% for the years from
2016 to 2021.

Upon the New Tax Law and Implementation Regulations,
the PRC withholding income tax is applicable to
dividends payable to investors that are “non-PRC tax
resident enterprises”, which do not have an
establishment or place of business in the PRC, or which
have such establishment or place of business but the
relevant income is not effectively connected with the
establishment or place of business, to the extent such
dividends have their sources within the PRC. Under such
circumstances, dividends distributed from the PRC
subsidiaries to non-PRC tax resident group entities shall
be subject to the withholding income tax at 10% or lower
tax rate, as applicable. Under the relevant tax treaty,
withholding tax rate on distribution to Hong Kong resident
companies is 5%. Deferred taxation has been provided
on undistributed earnings of all subsidiaries and
associates (as details in note 306).
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 &2 —Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

11. TAXATION (continued) 11. BB (&)
The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit FABBEX LGS B RAMEE
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit WS MRIIRGRRARF RN T -

or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2018 2017
—E-NE —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Profit before taxation & B Bz A 221,362 192,830
Tax at the applicable rate of 25% BEATE25%
(2017: 25%) (Note 1) —E—+F :25%)FE
BB I (B EE1) 55,341 48,208
Tax effect of share of profits of DEEEE A T m F H %
associates B (12,917) (11,833)
Tax effect of share of profit of D —EEEDE R
a joint venture WsT e (156) -
Tax effect of expenses not deductible 7~ A FFi A X AT 75 52 &
for tax purpose 44,135 32,771
Tax effect of income not taxable RIRBWARTL G E
for tax purpose (22,920) -
Underprovision (overprovision) in BEFEEBRETL
respect of prior years (FBzERE) 208 (3,019
Utilisation of tax losses previously FARBEREZANTIEEE
not recognised - (3,429)
Additional tax benefit on research and  FfF 25 S O KB SN TS Fll 25
development expenses (Note 2) (fizE2) (10,327) (5,335)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised IR IBE BB L E 6 -
Income tax on concessionary rate REBRERAENMER (19,035) (23,326)
Deferred tax on undistributed earnings = B f{ B A 7] Bt & A 7]
of the PRC subsidiaries/associates AR B R Y IR AL FH T8 14,985 15,986
Tax effect of undistributed earnings RIRBIREFRBEAERD IR
re-invested in PRC not taxable BN TE (2,390) -
Tax charge for the year FRBIBX M 46,930 50,023
Notes: PAE
1. The applicable tax rate of 25% represents the applicable income 1. AR R25% R ERAAF BRI LE
tax rate of the subsidiaries in Shenzhen and Anhui in the PRC BHMMBARIMERMMEHRME » Mm%
which constitute the substantial part of the Group’s operation for EHBAREAERHEE_—_ZT—\FKL
the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. —E—tFF+-A=F+—HILEFENK
i
2. Pursuant to the relevant tax rules and regulations, the Group 2. BIEMAEMIEELREE  AEEAE
could obtain additional tax benefit, which is a further 75% of BREINRIBEE - HEREIIRLEHE
certain qualified research and development cost incurred M ISR R A 5 T4 BRI 3R A
endorsed by the Shenzhen and Anhui Local Taxation HIREIN75% °

Administrators.
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12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 12. FEEF

2018 2017
—E-NF ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Profit for the year has been arrived &8 40F& (5t A) T3 & EE K
at after charging (crediting): FERA -
Staff costs: BT :
Directors’ emoluments (note 13) BEMe (HE13) 3,286 2,476
Other staff costs H M8 TR
Salaries and other benefits e MEMET 152,210 113,289
Contributions to retirement R AFT SR
benefits schemes 14,003 11,044
Total staff costs B TR A4REE 169,499 126,809
Less: capitalised in inventories B RNFERERE (11,430) (105,472)
included in cost of sales T ASHE KA (113,480) N/A
(TEA)
44,589 21,337
Auditor’s remuneration Z DN & 3,771 3,457
Cost of inventories recognised WRARIMEEKA
as expenses 718,809 889,275
Surcharges on overdue payments to 45 /% B T 1 &9 80 B 718
governmental authorities and AN AN 2 % 46 (8 7 <
compensation expenses (T AHMR)
(included in other expenses) - 2,732
Depreciation of property, Y - BB MERIETE
plant and equipment 93,122 82,578
Depreciation of investment properties & & ¥ ¥ITE 2,017 6,084
Release of prepaid lease payments R FE{HTH E FIE 2,263 2,214
Amortisation of intangible assets mILEEEE G AHEE
(included in cost of sales and PRARITBAR)
administrative expenses) 46,759 45,694
Total depreciation and amortisation — #7& K& 54058 144,161 136,570
Less: capitalised in inventories B RN EERERL (6,822) (116,797)
included in cost of sales T ASHE AR (113,744) N/A
(T@EA)
23,595 19,773
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

12. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (continued)

12. FERH (@)

2018 2017
—E-NFE —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Operating lease rentals in EAAAMENKEEE

respect of rented premises He 8,236 3,105
Recognition (reversals) of write-down  #E52 (3] ) BR & 17 S iU

on obsolete inventories (GFASHEA)

(included in cost of sales) 592 (988)
Research and development costs TR AR ST A R A AR

recognised as an expense Gt AEAMF)

(included in other expenses) 3,396 4,837
Shares of taxation of associates DEEE A 13,298 11,150
Gross rental income from REYENES WAL

investment properties (7,500) (8,155)
Less: direct operating expenses B FREEES AR

incurred for investment properties REYEFTE AR

that generated rental income BEEEERX

during the year 4,244 2,872

(3,256) (5,283)
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13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 13. EERITHA RS

EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the 9 (2017:
7) directors are as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2018

ENSENIG(ZE—+F:78)E
EHMEIT

BE_Z2-\F+-A=t—-HL#HF

E
Other emoluments
Hft 5
Contributions
Salaries to retirement
and other benefits Others Total
Fees benefits scheme (Note)  emoluments
ek BER
e HAit3g R SRR Hfth (BE) B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
TERT TER TER TER TERT
Executive Directors WIES
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David A% 4 - 60 3 - 63
Mr. Qin Song (Chief Pk E
Executive) (fTRE) = 1,353 43 = 1,396
Mr. Peng Guoyi* TRELLE" - 704 35 504 1,243
Mr. Chen Huapei™* PBREEFT LA - 182 12 - 194
Mr. Chen Xiaoliang *** BT R P = - - - _
Non-Executive Director FHiTES
Ms. Li Li FRL L - - - - -
Independent Non-Executive By JFH{TE %
Directors
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy ~ #RZ% %4 130 - - - 130
Mr. Lui Tin Nang BREETE 130 - - - 130
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon BEXEis 130 - - - 130
390 2,299 93 504 3,286

Mr. Peng Guoyi resigned from the position as executive director
of the Company with effect from 9 November 2018.

ok

Mr. Chen Huapei was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 9 November 2018.

“*  Mr. Chen Xiaoliang was appointed as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 12 March 2019.

Note: Compensation for the loss of office as a director in connection
with the management of the affairs of any member of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

13. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2017

13.

EERITTRARHM =)

BE-F—tHF+-A=t—-HLHF
E

Other emoluments

Hth 5 B
Contributions
Salaries  to retirement
and other benefits Total
Fees benefits scheme  emoluments
ek RIRER
e HAob | SHEIETR 18 %7
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TET TET FAET
Executive Directors HiTES
Mr. Cai Xiao Ming, David LA - 60 3 63
Mr. Qin Song /L as
(Chief Executive) (fTH ) - 1,296 39 1,335
Mr. Peng Guoyi THRELE - 657 31 688
Non-Executive Director FHITES
Ms. Li Li FH+ - - - -
Independent Non-Executive J&\ E#1TEE
Directors
Mr. Lam Ying Hung, Andy ~ #RZEE 54 130 - - 130
Mr. Lui Tin Nang EPN: vl 130 - - 130
Mr. Siu Man Ho, Simon BUREE 130 - - 130
390 2,013 73 2,476

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were for their services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Qin Song is also the chief executive of the Company
and his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as the chief executive.

Except for Ms. Li Li, there was no arrangement under
which a director or the chief executive waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

EXFTRATETOME ISR
BEEANR A MAKE S KRS M
it EXFARBIMIFRITEENS
TR BEFREEARRREFTHN RS M X
fif

PINFETRARRIITHRAE -
EXFEENME SRR EEITR
AR IR M A B £ -

BREMLZLIN FALBEERTR
THAB#M R KRB H RIS
e
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

14. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2017: two) were directors and the Chief
Executive of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note 13 above. The
emoluments of the remaining three (2017: three)
individuals were as follows:

14.

TEREFEE
AEEBRERRHFALTTAEREG(ZF
—tF MB) RARRESE MITHRAE
B BREOMS N XT3 - &4
T=R(ZF—1F: =5) ALoB
W :

2018 2017
—E-N\FE 4
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Salaries E 2,078 2,824
Compensation for loss of office BB (B 929 -
Contributions to retirement benefits BRI F T2 50
schemes 41 49
3,048 2,873
Their emoluments were within the following bands: HENHES R TIIEENA
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
No. of No. of
employees employees
EBEAE EEAE
HKS$ nil to HK$1,000,000 T T ZE 1,000,000 7% 7T 1 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 BT E
1,500,000 7% 7T 2 1

During the current period, HK$929,000 (2017: nil) were
paid by the Group as compensation for loss of office.
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15. EARNINGS PER SHARE 15. BREF|
The calculation of the basic earnings per share KAREA ARG ERELRZF T
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the THIEUERTE -

following data:

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Earnings: BF :
Earnings for the purpose of basic RAUETEERERRZFH
earnings per share (Profit for the AR (KNARHEA AEG
year attributable to owners of FEmM)
the Company) 169,383 138,025
2018 2017
—E-NFE —ZE—+F
’000 ‘000
TR Fix
Number of shares: ROHE :
Weighted average number of ordinary F AT E & REAREFH
shares in issue for the purpose of BEEBITEBRINE I
basic earnings per share 1,567,885 1,567,885
No dilutive earnings per share is presented as there were BEZJEREFRN  RERER
no potential ordinary shares in issue during both years. BFEHEAMAEBED BT LR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

16. DIVIDENDS 16. R E
2018 2017
—E-N\E —ZE—+fF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TET
Dividends for ordinary shareholders 4 AR 45 E &I A 7
of the Company recognised as TR RAR S
distribution during the year:
2017 special dividend Tt FRERIRE 199,905 -
2016 final — HK15.30 cents per ZE—NFRE —
share Bh% 15.30 781 - 239,886
199,905 239,886
During the current year, the special dividend of HK$12.75 RAFE RECERNEBEZ-F
cents in respect of the year ended 31 December 2017 —tF+ZA=+—HLEFENEH
(2017: HK$15.30) per share, amounting approximately B B FR12.75B (=& — +F -
HK$199,905,000 (2017: HK$239,886,000) has been 15.307%8 L) + 2514974 199,905,000
paid to shareholders. JL(=Z—t 4 : 239,886,000 7C) °
No dividend was proposed for ordinary shareholders of BMAEER T N \FRAQAT LR
the Company during 2018, nor has any dividend been AR BT AR B 0 1 8BS R LA SR IR
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2017: mESEREEMRE (DT —+LF
Nil). ) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BERRE
Leasehold Furniture Construction
land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor in
buildings  improvement machinery  equipment vehicles progress Total
HE+T BER BRER
kEF RE#E BE  BOERE RE REIE L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Tk T ThL TR T T Tk
COST KA
At 1 January 2017 WZE—+F-f—-H 584,392 8,807 666,056 55,350 13,506 15,775 1,343,886
Exchange adjustments EHEE 33,697 8 54,538 3412 858 1,368 93,881
Additions RE 583 - 8,975 5,469 1,777 28,646 45,450
Acaisition of a subsidiary e —fmE AR - 104 32,506 105 172 1,690 34,667
Transferred from construction ~ EBEEERIE
in progress 4,468 - 28,599 47 - (33,114 -
Transferred to construction BREERTR
in progress - - (3,013) - - 6,062 (26,951)
Transferred to investment HREELENE
properties (7.477) - - - - - (7.477)
Reclassiiied asheld forsdle  EFPARARE (82,828) - - - - - (82,828)
Disposals i - - (21,643 (411) (1,745) - (23,799)
At 31 December 2017 WZE—+F
+-A=1+-H 532,835 9,009 736,018 63,972 14,568 20,427 1,376,829
Exchange adjustments ERAR (22,945) (308) (33,320) 2,266) (691) (1,440) (60,970)
Additions NE 4,715 7,352 113,775 11,100 4,469 33,047 174,458
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE-FERBAR
(note 38) (izE38) - 462 5,657 107 137 - 6,363
Transferred from construction ~ EFBER TR
in progress 2,409 - 16,920 2,330 - (21,659) -
Transferred to construction BREEETR
in progress - - (7,808) - - 1,022 (6,786)
Transferred from investment  EEZRENE
properties 37,444 - - - - - 37,444
Disposals e - (8,807) (85,442) (12,938) (1,587) (1,581) (60,355)
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F
+-A=1-8 554,458 7,708 795,800 62,305 16,896 29,816 1,466,983
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - MERRE ®)
(continued)
Leasehold Furniture Construction
land and Leasehold Plant and and office Motor in
buildings improvement machinery  equipment vehicles progress Total
AE+iH BER HRR
REF RE#E BE  BOZRE "E ERIR act
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL THL T Tin Titn Fitn ThAL
DEPRECIATION e
At1 January 2017 RZE—+F-F—H 137,103 577 398,917 30,741 8,500 - 575,838
Exchange adjustments ERTECES 5,778 4 33,317 2,425 639 - 42,163
Provided for the year FrEkE 23,838 999 47,969 8,529 1,243 - 82,578
Transferred to construction BREERETR
in progress - - (26,951) - - - (26,951)
Transferred to investment ERERENE
properties (1,964) - - - - - (1,964)
Reclssified asheld forsale  EFHEARFHE (3817) - - - - - (3817)
Eliminated on disposals HER K - - (19,132) (379) (1372) - (20,883)
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+-A=1-H 160,938 1,580 434,120 41,316 9,010 - 646,964
Exchange adjustments R % (4,270) (46) (15,804) (1,383) (412) - (21,915)
Provided for the year FREE 28,709 1,039 54,401 7,442 1,531 - 93,122
Transferred to construction ~ ERZARTIE
in progress - - (6,786) - - - (6,786)
Transferred from investment  EBEZRENE
properties 9,771 - - - - - 9,771
Eliminated on disposals HEREE - (1,457) (31,543) (10,207) (1462) - (44,759)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=1-H 195,148 1,116 434,388 37,078 8,667 - 676,397
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=1+-H 359,310 6,592 361,412 25,227 8,229 29,816 790,586
At 31 December 2017 RZE—1F
+-A=1-H 371,897 7,429 301,898 22,656 5,558 20,427 729,865
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17.

18.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment,
except for construction in progress, are depreciated on a
straight-line basis, after taking into account of their
residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follow:

Over the shorter of
the term of lease

Leasehold land and buildings

or 30 years
Leasehold improvement 3 years
Plant and machinery 5-20 years
Furniture and office equipment 3-5 years
Motor vehicles 4-5 years

At 31 December 2018, the Group is in the process of
obtaining the property certificates for the leasehold land
and buildings with carrying value of approximately
HK$51,424,000 (31 December 2017: HK$57,357,000).

17.

W% - BERREE)

B - BER&EEE (ERTE
BRON) TIIRBEAREELE - NFT RER
EEEZ TG R FRTEE

HETRIETF 1R E A5 30 F

(ARG & B %)
HEEE 3F
R 5 e i 25 5& 204
ERTYNE  FNEE T 3E5F
B AE5F

WN-_E—N\E+-_A=+—8 A&
B1HE R E 4 A 51,424,0007% 7T
(ZF—-—ttF+=ZA=+—8:
57,357,000/ 70) BFR & £ i g F i
BEER -

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FEFHERE
2018 2017
—EB-N\E —ET—+F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FHET FET

Analysed for reporting purposes as:  FLiR‘S mMIEL B DT -

Current asset TRENEE 2,425 2,292
Non-current asset FERBEE 100,434 82,095
102,859 84,387

The Group’s prepaid lease payments represent payments
for land use rights in the PRC. At 31 December 2018, the
Group was still in the process of obtaining the land use
right certificate with carrying amount of HK$24,893,000
(2017:Nil).

AEBMEMAERERETH LE
AENERZRE R N\F+=
A=+—8 AEENEHEERAE
724,893,008 L (ZE—+F : 8K
Tt A RERE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19. REWE
HK$’000
FHBT

COST [DEN
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+F—H—H 193,047
Exchange adjustments b 5, 3 B 5,723
Transferred from property, plant and equipment EEZE¥Z - HE N & E 7,477
Reclassified as held for sale BN ERBAESE (123,815
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+F+=-_HA=+—H 82,432
Exchange adjustments BEE 55, %X (2,720)
Transferred to property, plant and equipment SR EWE « FE L EE (37,444)
At 31 December 2018 R-_E—-N\F+-_HA=+—H 42,268
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2017 R-ZZE—+F—H—H 20,977
Exchange adjustments ME W R 1,638
Provided for the year FREE 6,084
Transferred from property, plant and equipment EEZE Y2 - HE N&E 1,964
Reclassified as held for sale BN ERBAESE (5,367)
At 31 December 2017 R-E—+FE+=-_F=+—H 25,296
Exchange adjustments bEE 55, %L 977)
Provided for the year FNEE 2,017
Transferred to property, plant and equipment B ZE Y2 - R N &E (9,771)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-—N\F+A=+—H 16,565
CARRYING VALUES REIE
At 31 December 2018 R-E—-NEFE+-_A=+—H 25,703
At 31 December 2017 RZE—tF+-_HA=+—H 57,136
The Group’s properties interests held under operating NEFBEBECEHEELSMMMAESIEE
leases to earn rentals are measured using the cost model MY EESTRARKAERTE D
and are classified and accounted for as investment AN EMEANDE
properties.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19. REYFE (&)

Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment
properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment properties as at
31 December 2018 was HK$47,559,000 (2017:
HK$94,433,000). The fair value has been arrived at on
the basis of a valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals
Limited, an independent qualified professional valuer not
connected with the Group. Roma Appraisals Limited is
member of the Institute of Valuers of Hong Kong.

The fair value of investment properties located in the city
of Shenzhen was determined based on the market
comparable approach that reflects recent transaction
prices for similar properties. The fair value of investment
properties located in the city of Benbu was determined
based on depreciated replacement cost approach, which
is based on an estimation of the market value for the
existing structures less deductions for physical
deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescene and
optimisation.

In estimating the fair value of the properties, the highest
and best use of the properties is their current use.

FEEMBRENENAABEGE

REEREMER-_ZT—N\F+=_A
=+—HB® AR EER47,559,000 %
TT(—ZT —+ 4 : 94,433,000 7T) °
AABETDREBREASEEHEREEN
BUGEBREXMEMESBEERTMG
BERARETHHEMETE - #5H
RAEERARABBAEMBEN
258
ARBEIBENREBEUMENR
AR SENMSLBEETE MAE
MENTHBBEMNHTSEHEEHRE
B 30 K8 L0 0 3 AT o R B8 oz LA R EL A
MAENHESER - TREIZESD
MEBRPHEUBREEHERS
FISMlER  UWHMEREENT
GEMERARURMAEEREY
ERFENEAEE -

REFTMEN R BER  WENK
= M EE AR SERE AR -
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19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 19. REWE (&)
Fair value measurement of the Group’s investment EEEREVENDIABETE(E)
properties (continued)
Details of the Group’s investment properties and RMEBR  ZEBREDEURA
information about the fair value hierarchy as at the end of REBEERERFBOT
the reporting period are as follows:
Fair value Fair value
as at as at
Fairvalue = 31 December 31 December
hierarchy 2018 2017
RZB-N\E RIB-+HF
AnfEE +=A=+—-B +T=ZA=+-H
& & HAREE HAREE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Properties located in (VBNGETEE kY ES Level 3
the PRC E=E 47,559 94,433

The above investment properties are depreciated on a
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land Over the term of lease

FRBREMRRAT FXRIRIBERRE
e :

MHE AR
Buildings Over the shorter of the term of lease, or 30 years
BF AV EAZK 30 F (AR FE & /%)
20. GOODWILL 20. B8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
At 1 January Rn—HA—H 1,044,293 1,029,637
Arising from acquisition of a subsidiary [& 4 B8 — &M B A =M &E 4 82,300 11,781
Impairment loss recognised in the year 4 R AR BB E 18 (48,000) (40,000)
Exchange adjustments ME W R (27,628) 42,875
At 31 December R+—_A=+—=H 1,050,965 1,044,293
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20. GOODWILL (continued) 20. BHE#E)

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to six (2017: five) individual cash-generating
units (CGUs), comprising four (2017: three) subsidiaries in
the printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages and
related materials segments, one subsidiary in the
manufacturing of laminated paper segment and one
subsidiary in the sales of RFID products segment.
Goodwill amounting to HK$82,300,000 was arisen from
acquisition of manufacturing of paper packaging materials
of CGU-6 as disclosed in note 38(a), of which
HK$36,212,000 was allocated to CGU-1 as CGU-1 is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, resulting from cost saving on raw materials
supplied by CGU-6. The carrying amounts of goodwill as
at 31 December 2018 allocated to these unites are as
follows:

BREEBARANE  HEESEZRE
(ZZ—+tF: AE)ARRSELS
([BREeEELEBEM])  BIENR RE
i%@ﬁ#&mﬁﬁﬂ“%m fid B
NR) - BUEEAER Y —HEK B
TM&%%%@%%F%“%%—
I E AR o FANM 5= 38(a) FT IR EE -
WHERSELEN —6RERBEMN
¥t BB EE A& 2 792 /82,300,000 7T -
HA36,212,000 8 o EREELE
B —1 RAABSELEN —61f
FERMEAEHERA Bt REeEE
B 1A ZEREHEEZ BRI
meRZE—NF+ZA=+—H8H
EEREECENEEATZESENM

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZET—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Printing and manufacturing ENRI R 8EF BB K&
of cigarette packages and MEEEM R 5 EB -
related materials:
CGU-1 REEEBN -1 846,172 876,982
CGU-2 MEEEERN-2 128,346 134,657
CGU-3 MEEEEMN-3 18,352 20,483
CGU-6 HEEAENN-6 46,088 -
1,038,958 1,032,122
Manufacturing of laminated paper: BUEE S A D ED ¢
CGU-4 HeEEEMN-4 370 390
Sales of RFID products: SHE BT IBR RI EE S 0 3P
CGU-5 REEEEMN-5 11,637 11,781
At 31 December Rt+t=-_A=+—8 1,050,965 1,044,293
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20. GOODWILL (continued)

The recoverable amounts of the CGUs arising from
printing and manufacturing of cigarette packages and
related materials, manufacturing of laminated paper and
sales of RFID products were determined individually
based on value in use calculations. The value in use
calculations used discounted future cash flow model
based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period and a discount rate of 14.77%
(2017: 14.87%) for CGUs arising from printing and
manufacturing of cigarette packages and related
materials and manufacturing of laminated paper, and
15.90% for CGU arising from sales of RFID products.
Cash flows beyond five-year period is extrapolated using
a steady growth rate from 3.0% . Cash flow projections
for the CGUs are based on the expected terminal growth
rate, gross margin and sales growth rate during the
budget period, which were determined based on past
performance of the Group and the management’s
expectations for the market development.

Due to the effect of continuous decrease in revenue
resulted from the drop in average selling price across
various products tiers and market share in Chinese
cigarette packaging industry as a consequence of
mandatory tendering system in China tobacco industry,
and the change of product structure of CGU-1, its value
in use adversely impacted and decreased to
HK$1,768,575,000 (2017: HK$1,851,079,000). The
directors of the company have consequently determined
impairment of goodwill directly related to CGU-1
amounting to HK$48,000,000 (2017: CGU-1:
HK$15,000,000; CGU-3 HK$25,000,000). No other
write-down of the assets of CGU-1 and CGU-3 is
considered necessary. The impairment loss has been
included in profit or loss in the other gains and losses line
item.
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20. BHE (&)

ENfl R 8L R IE 2 RABAM A - &
EE A MDA K 855 5T SE A Bl 2 an /Y ]
WE g ENZRERAEETSERR
BT #%FEREAFEANEARE
EEEBERELFHRBRMNPEESR
KIR & mIEA - mm&%&%@aﬁ
NV ARRERERBESEL
aﬂim#ﬁﬁﬁﬁm477%c_f +F
14.87%) - MIHESTHEHNERR
EABMMITIAEA15.90% - AFH
MENREMELBELREI0%E
EU °© Eﬁééfﬁ{imiﬁ HEEE%UIL

wmﬁﬁﬁﬁmmﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁf

EMERIBEEREETF - AHALE
BEATKRLAEEEHMISERED
HIEMETE °

PREEEETASBESNES TR
BREMHFHIEERTIHMHEE N
SWEFBERL NMERESELEES
fM-1WERGEAMRE  HERE
BERXINTINETE WD E
1,768,575,000/% 7t ( = T — + ¢
1,851,079,000/% ) » ALt * AR
ETERBRSELEEN- 157?%%‘%‘}%
B F 448,000,000/ T (T —+
F RS EEEM- 15,000,000
7T 3R & E A4 B -3 ¢ 25,000,000
L) c BARBEELBEN A RESE
A BRI -3HEEEREMMR - &%
BEBBREIABEMEME RES
BIEE -
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20. GOODWILL (continued)

21.

If the discount rate increases to 15.51% (2017: 15.61%),
while other parameters remain constant, the recoverable
amount of CGU-1 would reduce to HK$1,672,220,000
(2017: HK$1,759,590,000) and an further impairment of
goodwill of HK$96,355,000 (2017: further impairment of
HK$91,489,000) would be recognised.

If the discount rate increases to 15.51% (2017: 15.61%),
while other parameters remain constant, the recoverable
amount of CGU-3 would reduce to HK$84,426,000
(2017: HK$119,330,000) and an impairment of goodwill
of Nil (2017: further impairment of HK$4,942,000) would
be recognised.

Except to CGU-1 and CGU-3 as analysed above,
management believes that any reasonably possible
changes in any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amount of the CGUs to exceed
the aggregate recoverable amount of respective CGUSs.

20. HE#E)

W3R B E=1551%( 2T —+F
15.61%) i H 2 B 5 A& - BIIR
CELEEM-1MTKRBESERRE
1,672,220,000% 7T( = T — £ F:
1,759,5690,000% 7T ) « W 2R E
B — 25 R 196,355,000 T ( =&
—F  E—RE,489,000/ T) °

I RIBE1551%( - T — L 4F
15.61%) i H M 2 S 45T~ & -+ BI3R
CELEBEN —SHWAIKRESERBE
84,426,000 L( = T — + F:
119,330,000/ 7T ) » I & 52 7 2R
BES(ZT—+F: #E—FRE
4,942,000 7C) °

B EXFIOMEVIR e EE BN -1 RHR
TELBM-35 EEERE - ER
TEE
ReELEUNERAEBRASREE
HEEBEMH KBS o

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BEEE
Customer Licenses
relationship and franchises Total
EFBER HBRRETE et
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAET
cosT PR
At 1 January 2017 R-E—+%—H—H 450,560 8,536 459,096
Exchange adjustments i 5, % 6,189 613 6,802
At 31 December 2017 RZT—+4F
+-A=+—H 456,749 9,149 465,898
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wk —FE M B A A 21,305 - 21,305
Exchange adjustments 0 5 S (5,966) (555) (6,521)
At 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F
+-A=+—H 472,088 8,594 480,682
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

21. B EE (&)

Customer Licenses
relationship and franchises Total
EFE%Z BRRETE f@gt
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT FET
AMORTISATION 35
At 1 January 2017 R-T—tF
—HA—H 225,730 599 226,329
Charge for the year FARZ 45,249 445 45,694
At 31 December 2017 RZE—+F
+Z-A=+—H 270,979 1,044 272,023
Charge for the year FRFEX 46,314 445 46,759
Exchange adjustments b R (1,708) (157) (1,865)
At 31 December 2018 R-ZT—N\F
+-A=+—H 315,585 1,332 316,917
CARRYING VALUES RHEE
At 31 December 2018 NZZE-NE
+-A=+—H 156,503 7,262 163,765
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—+F
+-A=+—H 185,770 8,105 193,875

For the purpose of impairment testing, customer
relationship has been included in five (2017: four)
individual CGUs, comprising four (2017: three)
subsidiaries in the printing and manufacturing of cigarette
packages and related materials segments and one (2017:
one) subsidiary in the manufacturing of laminated paper
segment. The carrying amounts of intangible assets as at
31 December 2018 allocated to these unites are as
follows:

BWREANEME  EFERERAE
(ZZ2—tF mOEENReELE
i - BIRENR MR EEEBEK LA
MBS BB (ZE—+F : =)
B8 2 B A M BE R A 4R 0 BB ) —
(ZE—+F: —MNBRAR - K=
E-N\F+-_A=+T—"HNELEE
FEECSEDERENA TZFEN
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 21. BEEE (&)
2018 2017
—E-NF ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FHT
Printing and manufacturing ENll R SEF BB E K
of cigarette packages and AR EB
related materials
CGU-1 MEEEBM -1 134,352 179,959
CGU-2 MEEEERN-2 1,367 4,152
CGU-3 REEEEN-3 461 1,402
CGU-6 MEEEBN-6 20,240 -
156,420 185,513
Manufacturing of laminated papers:  Z3EE S KD 26 :
CGU-4 REEEBMN-4 83 257
At 31 December R+—_A=+—=H 156,503 185,770

The above intangible assets have finite useful lives.
Except that the intangible asset of CGU-6 is amortised
basing on the proportion of estimated revenue for each
year to the projected gross revenue from these existing

tEPEERBEEERFH - FRR
TELEM-6NBEILEERBSFMH
At EEZERE EPEF AR Em
FEBUETTEESHON - A BT EER A

customers, other intangible assets are amortised on a TR E AR A

straight-line basis over the following periods:

Customer relationship 10 years EFPBAF 104F
Licenses and franchises 20 years hE PR R R T A 204

Included in intangible assets represent customer
relationship acquired in a business combination in 2009
and the acquisition of )& 31135 2 EN {5 fR A &) Yangfeng
Printing & Packaging Co., Ltd (“Yangfeng”) in 2012,
which has been absorbed by JZ Il & % E1 % A R A 7]
Shenzhen Kecai Printing Co., Ltd (“Kecai”) and the
acquisition of FEIT & BEMEFBR A ] Shenzhen
Jinshengcai Package Material Co., Ltd (“Jinshengcai”) in
2018. The acquisition of the customer base has allowed
the Group to stabilise the revenue base from packaging
and printing business.

The revenue and the consumption of economic benefits
of the customer relationship of CGU-6 are highly
correlated as the fair value of these customer relationship
as at acquisition date was determined based on
contracts and anticipated contracts with these
customers.

BRVEERRERNR _ZTTNFEEKS
HERBSHEPHARALR T ——
FRBFRINBZLERIER 2 F(H
g 2RI EBER AR (#
#D aN) Rt —F— \NFUWIERYIT
ERFBEMBERAR(E2TF])
RSN EFPER RWEPERSE
BAREBIZERB BE LRI EEH
Yoeh ZHE o

REeELBM-6MKRAREPBERL
ErmEERERE REARZEER
FRBRRUE R BRI EBEDRE
BHMEZEEPNARANEE
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

—N\E+A=1+—HILHFE

22, REtE NTINER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Cost of investment, unlisted WERKRAN - JE LT 332,874 332,874
Share of post-acquisition profits and 1 Uk B 14 % A1) K H 2
other comprehensive income, Wz (ke Wk s)
net of dividends received (Note a) (M3Ea) 157,258 182,234
Disposal of partial equity interest s — M QRS o
in an associate (30,235) -
Exchange adjustments PE 5 38 EE 707 19,964
460,604 535,072
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had RZZE-—NFR=ZFE—tF+=A

interests in the following associates:

=t —H AEERATBEQRHE

B
Place and country of
Proportion of ownership establishment/
Name of entity interest directly held by the Group business Registered capital Principal activity
BHREE AEBERRECEMRANE AL R/ BeERAR gafthe  FEEH
2018 2017
—E-N\E —EtF
BESEOBERARF 31% 3%  PRC RMB163,052,000  Provision for cigarette printing
(Changde Jinpeng Printing Co., Ltd.) (note b) # AR 163,062,000 7T package servioes
(‘Changde Jinpeng’) ([E &2 ]) (MzEb) REEBEDRIDERS
RERBERBHENEBRAT 40% 40% PRC RMB30,000,000  Developing for intelligent
(Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi Intelhgence HE AR 30,000,0007C printing services
Packaging Technology Co., Ltd.) BREMEIRIRY
(“Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi")
(TRERBES])

Note a: Included in the balance as at 31 December 2018 is the Mizta: —ZE—-—N\FTZA=+—HNEHREBRE
remeasurement of investments in associates adjusted to BN EARZHVRERFNBE A
opening retained earnings. AHEEMERE -

Note b:  On 29 December 2018, the Group entered into an agreement Miztb: R=ZFE—NF+_A=TNH KXAF

with a shareholder of Changde Jinpeng, to dispose of 4%
equity interest of Changde Jinpeng at a consideration of
RMB19,058,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$21,699,000), which lead to a loss amounting to
HK$8,536,000 recognised in other gains and losses and will
be settled within one year after completion of government
authorities” approval.
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22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22,
The financial information of the Group’s associates are
prepared using uniform accounting policies in conformity
with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. The
associates are accounted for using the equity method in
these consolidated financial statements. The summarised
financial information in respect of the Group’s associate
is set out below. The summarised financial information
below represents amounts shown in the associate’s
financial statements prepared in accordance with

REHE DR R (4)
REEBE R AR5 E FHE M B A
SERANSABR - ER
MRB - B2 N RHE MERAR K FAR
BMBHMERALR - NEER SR F /Y
MBERBEZHINMT - ATHBE
M EEREEBM B RS EA RE
MBS E N R SRR

HKFRSs.
Changde Jinpeng BEESEB
2018 2017
—E-NFE Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TFET
Current assets mENE E 860,899 900,788
Non-current assets FERBEE 914,433 980,292
Current liabilities mENaE (320,308) (364,418)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (7,477) (2,325)
2018 2017
—E-NFE Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TFET
Revenue W zs 1,220,729 1,268,063
Profit and total comprehensive Fm M) & E b2 S
income for the year 235,761 240,090
Dividends received from the associate £ A 2 U B & A TIHI A% 2
during the year 77,731 103,344

2018 F i BHITREFERAR]

173



174

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Changde Jinpeng (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

FEewE(E)

22, REAE NTINER (&)

EAFHERRREDRERE MR

information to the carrying amount of the interest in the FERRBE A RESNRAENS
associate recognised in the consolidated financial iR
statements:
2018 2017
—E-\F —T—+tfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Net assets of the associate B N RIME EFE 1,447,547 1,514,337
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AN £ BB N 5] /Y
interest in the associate B ERE R 31% 35%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REE NI Z N TR
interest in the associate EmmREE 456,651 525,178
Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi RBEHES
2018 2017
—E-N\E —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Current assets MENEE 7,480 22,292
Non-current assets EMBEE 4,968 7,303
Current liabilities nRBEE (2,565) (4,860)
2018 2017
—E-NF ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHT
Revenue Wz 12,630 8,147
Loss and total comprehensive FREBEEERY A5
expense for the year (13,441) (10,055)

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

e M ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

22.

23.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Tianjin Rong Lian Hui Zhi (continued)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the
associate recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

22, REAE NTINER (&)
RESHES (&)

FAFHERRREDRERE TR

RERBNBZ AR Em A REENE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —T—+F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FET FET

Net assets of the associate BrE N AN EEFE 9,883 24,735
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AN £ BB A 5] /Y

interest in the associate R ERERLL 40% 40%
Carrying amount of the Group's REBEREEZ N[/

interest in the associate AR EREE 3,953 9,894

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture is as

23. R—EEaELENER

AEER—RAEEENRENFE

follows: o
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZET—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Cost of investment, unlisted WERMA - JEET 8,825 8,825
Share of post-acquisition profits SMEWEER =T (B518) &
(losses) and other comprehensive Emermbss(FEx)
income (expenses), net of (BB W B
dividends received 406 (217)
Exchange adjustments ME 5 78 EE (476) (22)
8,755 8,586
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23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued) 23.
As at 31 December 2018 and 2017, the Group had
interest in the following joint venture:

Percentage of
ownership interest/
voting rights ~ Place and Country of
directly held by  incorporation/

R—EEELENERSE)
RZE—NFER_ZE—+F+=A8
=+—HB XAEBRUTAELERE
B

Name of entity the Group  business Registered capital Principal activity
FEEEERE  RL/EEhE
EEEH EaAMRANES L  REX gEfkE FEER
FIMmRE R EREERAA 49%  PRC RMB15,000,000  Developing 2D Barcodes
(Shenzhen Keju Intemet Technology Note AR 15,000,000 7T and 020 solutions
Company Limited (‘Keju”) ([EHE]) fsE BREEBRO0ERAR

Note: The Group hold 49% of ownership interest of Keju. However,
under a shareholders’ agreement, the Group has the joint control
over Keju because the director resolution will be effective only
when approved by all directors.

Summarised financial information in respect of the
Group’s joint venture is set out below. The summarised
financial information below represents amounts shown in
the joint venture’s financial statements prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs.

The joint venture is accounted for using the equity
method in these consolidated financial statements.

BIEE - ARARIFFBRHE4% K - A BIEK
R - AREHRER LREHIE - R
HAERABREBN D EBERIDERT
PRAERK

AEEAREAERNMBERMEZED
T e AN BEMBBEREREESS
M mEEARENAZELET R
RFTREHE

BEDREREREANLFERA T
e E YN

2018 2017
—E2-N\E T —+tF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Current assets MENEE 20,739 17,490
Non-current assets ERENEE 202 134
Current liabilities mENBE (3,074) (101)
The above amounts of assets and FREERBESERE
liabilities include the following: AR
Cash and cash equivalents Be kIRSEEER 12,711 16,595
Current financial liabilities (excluding RSB E (TEFEE S KL
trade and other payables S ERIE LA Je k)
and provision) (897) (22)
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23. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)

23. R—EEELENER B

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+fF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Revenue W28 25,044 1,125
Profit (loss) for the year FREM (E18) 1,271 558
Other comprehensive income FREMEAEWYE ()
(expense) for the year 927 (1,301)
Total comprehensive income FREENE () 8%
(expense) for the year 2,198 (743)
2018 2017
—B-\F C—T—+tfF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Depreciation and amortisation PrE R (22) (14)
Interest income K B A 134 106
Income tax expense FrI3fiFAX (95) -

2018 F i BHITREFERAR]
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23.

24,

INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial
information to the carrying amount of the interest in the
joint venture recognised in the consolidated financial
statements:

23. R—EEELENER &)
B BRI ERD RS A MR

=

BRAREELERENREENY
B :

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHBT
Net assets of the joint venture S PEMEETFE 17,867 17,523
Proportion of the Group’s ownership AEBENE SN
interest in the joint venture ARG 49% 49%
Carrying amount of the Group’s REBREELEN
interest in the joint venture R rRREE 8,755 8,586
INVENTORIES 24. 7E
2018 2017
—E-N\F —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Raw materials R 159,163 110,618
Work in progress R 453 12,614
Finished goods ZUAY 4,150 44,660
163,766 167,892
During the year, there was a decrease in the net ERN - BETRMEMNATERFERE

realisable value of certain raw materials due to stock
surplus. As a result, a recognition of write-down on
obsolete inventories of HK$592,000 (2017: reversal of
HK$988,000 due to the rise of net realisable value) has
been recognised in the current year.

FHBRBHMBRRD - At - BA
F 2 HERBR & 17 & MU 592,000 % 7T
(ZZ2—+F : AEANERFEME
[61988,000/8 L) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES

25. E 5 RWFIA

2018 2017
—E-NF T —+F
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
FET FET

Trade receivables g 5 rWFIE
— third parties —B=5 546,799 787,329
— related party — fER - 3,595
— an associate — —fEBE QT 9,827 5,324
556,626 796,248
Less: allowance for credit losses B EEEEEE (11,989) -
544,637 796,248

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade
receivable from contracts with customers amounted to
HK$544,637,000 (net of allowance for credit loss of
HK$11,989,000) and HK$786,131,000 (net of allowance
for credit loss of HK$10,117,000), respectively.

The amount due from a related party derived from the
company controlled by a director.

The Group allows a credit period of 60 days to 90 days
to its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis
of trade receivables net of allowance for credit losses
presented based on the date of delivery goods/invoice
date at the end of the reporting period, which
approximated revenue recognition dates except for
receivables arising from printing of cigarette packages
and manufacturing of laminated papers which are
recognised over time upon application of HKFRS 15.

RZZE—-N\F+_A=+—BER_ZT
—N\F—A—H BEFAHNESE
U kI8 5 Bl & 544,637,000 7% 7T (1B
12 & /&5 18 % 511,989,000/ T ) &
786,131,000 T (MK EEBERE
10,117,000/ 7T) °

R — % BT AR B — R
RHIH AT -

AEBETHEESEFP60HE0 AN
MEER - AT AR HmERRIZRRZMN
EmBH BEEEHENEHEKK
(MR EEEERE) MEREDT
HERERAMKREAE  HERERE
BB R ELERIFE 155 IR BERS TR HERR
B EN Il 2 1 B 3 e B A B M RO M 2l
RAUBRIN

2018 2017

—E-N\F —ET—+F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHET FET

0-90 days 0Z90H 473,075 683,882
91-180 days 91180 H 30,180 38,776
181-365 days 1812 365 H 14,338 20,888
Over 365 days #B3E 365 H 27,044 52,702
544,637 796,248
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

As at 31 December 2018, total bills received amounting
to HK$10,881,000 (31 December 2017: HK$46,104,000)
are held by the Group for future settlement of trade
receivables due from third parties. All bills received by the
Group are with a maturity period of less than one year.

Based on the Group’s assessment of historical credit
loss experience of these debtors, including all available
forward-looking information and expected settlements,
the Group does not consider default has occurred
despite the contractual payments are overdue more than
90 days due to these customers are mainly state-owned
cigarette companies with strong financial positions. The
management of the Group considers default occurred
when the debtors get into financial difficulty or the
debtors do not repay any trade receivables though the
Group has pursuited for several times, which indicate the
Group may not collect these trade receivables.

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$71,562,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
HK$45,934,000 has been past due 90 days or more.
Other than bill received amounting to HK$10,881,000,
the Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

As at 31 December 2017, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$108,771,000 which are past due as at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided for
impairment loss. Other than bills received amounting to
HK$46,104,000, the Group did not hold any collateral
over these balances.
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RZE-NF+ZHA=1T—H &%
BB WEH 4% 10,881,000% 7T
(ZE2—+tF+=ZRAR=+—8:
46,104,000 7T) * At BB L E R
BE-HBOHEH -  AEBABEKRE
BREEAY DR —F -

REAREHZERUETEEREE
ERE (BIEMA R AAEEER &
BHEE) WS ARNZEEFPEE
BYBRRERNEEZEERR] - B
FEENNRCAMEBOR  AEE
WERZ HED - AREEEERA
EEHFABIBEEMBEEREBEA
W EAEE B P EUGRIR (BEAE
BRI B REERY  BRAS
Bk R MZEE 5 RUTIR

RZZE-—N\F+ZA=+—H K&
EE ZEKFIBESBIERN RS B H
B BRI 428 & 71,562,000 7% LAY
EWER EEBBHEHRE P
45,934,000 ;C 28 HI90 B LA £ © Br
% %010,881,00078 T H E L E IR I
REEW B ZSHERIT A EMER

O
oA °

R-—E—+&E+=-A=+—8 £&
EEZERFIBESBIERN RS B H
B HAAR M 428 4 108,771,000 3 T HY
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25.
Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but
not impaired

B % B (E)
B 380 49 1 5% 1 0 B 53 B G RO BR

2017

—T—+F

HK$’000

TET

91-180 days 912180 H 38,776
181-365 days 181 £ 365 H 20,888
Over 365 days 365 BIA 49,107
Total @t 108,771

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts REEEMES T

2017

—ET—+F

HK$’000

TFET

1 January —H—H 2,213
Amounts written off as uncollectible AU M EE R S 58 (2,297)
Exchange difference b H Z%E 84
31 December +=-RA=1+—H -

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are
individually impaired trade receivables with an aggregate
balance of HK$2,213,000 of which the debtors were in
financial difficulties and were written off during the year
ended 31 December 2017.

Details of impairment assessment of trade receivables for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note
42.

RIRB B F B4 /52,213,0008 7T
BERRESR S EYHKIE - mMEEB
ABATBREEMREZE-Z—F
+ZA=+—BILLFEME -

Bz —_ZE— N \F+_-_A=+—H
HFEESRKRFEREFTENFS
B R
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26. CONTRACT ASSETS 26. SHNEE
31 December 1 January
2018 2018*
—E-N\E —E-N\F
t—A=+—H —A—A*
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FH&T
Contract assets: BREE — RE:
Printing of manufacturing of BN R & B BB K
cigarette packages and THEM R
related materials 163,245 62,442
Manufacturing of laminated papers #LiE# & 4% 2,140 2,387
165,385 64,829

*

The amounts in this column are after the adjustments from the
application of HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15.

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right
to consideration for work completed and not billed
because the rights are conditioned on the Group’s future
performance in delivering the goods to the customers at
the reporting date on provision of printing of cigarette
package and manufacturing of laminated papers. The
contract assets are transferred to trade receivables when
the rights become unconditional. The Group typically
transfers the contract assets to trade receivables when
the products are delivered and accepted by the
customers.

The increase of contract assets is mainly due to the
customers who had placed more orders to the Group at
the year end.

The consideration is payable on the earlier of the delivery
and acceptance of the finished goods by customers or
notice from the customer to cancel the order. If the
customer cancels the order, the Group is immediately
entitled to receive payment for work done to date.

Details of impairment assessment of contract assets for

the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note
42,
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27. OTHER RECEIVABLES, PREPAYMENTS 27. HWEWRIE - AARERT
AND REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS EBEF®
2018 2017
—E-N\F ZET—+tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FER FHT
Receivables from disposal of & BB N B A FE I FRIE
subsidiaries - 9,341
Receivables from disposal of partial & —E§ < A 52D
equity interest in an associate 1% ¥ FE WL R IR 21,691 -
Refundable deposits to suppliers XN THEBREFH
and customers ARER & 9,669 10,169
Prepayment for material purchase BEREMSHTEN A 10,223 17,372
Staff advances BET#I 3,716 2,818
Rental, utility and sundry deposits e ABRMMEZS 2,869 3,615
Tax receivables FEUFR TR 6,661 4,441
Others Efb 5,075 8,806
59,904 56,562

Details of impairment assessment of other receivables
including receivables from disposal of subsidiaries and
partial equity interest in an associate, refundable deposits
to suppliers and customers, staff advances, rental, utility
and sundry deposits and others for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 42.

BERBZE_T— \Ft+-_A=1+—H
FEEEMREGR (BREEMER

Al N — R = R AR R FE U TR
SNFHEREREPHNARETS

BTHxR e ABMREEREZEEN)

K EM) BEFHEN FIEE R T 42
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

28. AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED PARTY/

28. FEUWL — BBAE S FIE e

AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING B el EERERRIE
INTERESTS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Amount due from a related party: (a) MEWEIEFRE
Maximum amount
outstanding during
the year ended
31 December
2018 2017 2018
HE-Z-)\F
+-A=+-AL
FEMAEER
—E-N\F “T+F Rt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET
Names of the related party ~ BEFH %18
Masterwork Machinery Co., Ltd. X2RERFZEERH
(“Masterwork”) BRAA([RERE]) 9,422 9,866 12,836
Current e - 9,866
Non-Current ERE 9,422 -
9,422 9,866

Masterwork is controlled by a director of the
Company and is therefore a related party of the
Group. The balance is non-trade in nature in relation
to deposits for property, plant and equipment,
unsecured, interest-free and the management
expected to be settled within 12 months from the
end of the reporting period.

(b) Amounts due to non-controlling interests of
subsidiaries:
The amounts are unsecured, interest-free and
repayable on demand.

(b)
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29.

30.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
represents structure deposits. As at 31 December 2017,
the structured deposits were issued by a bank in the
PRC. The structured deposits were with expected rates
of return (not guaranteed) at 3% per annum, depending
on the market price of underlying financial instruments,
including government bond, central bank bills,
debentures and other financial assets.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had the rights to
redeem the structured deposits at any time with prior
notice.

The structured deposits were designated at FVTPL on
initial recognition as they contain non-closely related
embedded derivatives. The management of the Group
considered the fair values of the structured deposits,
which were based on the prices provided by the
counterparty banks which represented the prices they
would pay to redeem the deposits at the end of each
reporting period, approximated to their carrying values at
the same day.

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK
BALANCES AND CASH/BANK
OVERDRAFTS

Bank balances carry interest at market rates which range
from 0.001% to 0.35% (2017: 0.001% to 0.35%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits carry fixed interest
rates which range from 0.30% to 0.35% (2017: 0.30% to
1.55%) per annum. Pledged bank deposits represents
deposits pledged to banks to secure banking facilities of
bills payables granted to the Group. The pledged bank
deposits will be released upon the settlement of relevant
bills payables.

Bank overdrafts carry interest at market rates which
range from 1.88% to 5.68% (2017: nil) per annum.

29.

30.

BRAREBEFABRENEME

BARBEFABENEREERER
BEFR- R _ZT—tF+ A
=t—H #BUEFREFE-ER
1T81T - BN FRATER B R R (X
BRE)RFRI% RYHEESRT
H(BRBEMES RITRIE - E#E
MEMEREE) WTEME

BT -

HREBETRES LR TERN
BARITET R MR OIa RIS
ERBEANEEFARD AKEE
BERR HBUEFERHAAEBEN
HF T IRITIR R ER (A ZFRITH
iSSP N CIRER N RN EORE L)
AERE - BEENRF BHREERS

CEBEITER RITERR
Be BITEX

RITAEBRF A E N F0.001% £ 0.35%
(ZZ—+%F :0.001%F0.35%) - &
IR IRITHF KA F A E N F0.30% =
0.35%(=ZF—+t%F : 0.30% % 1.55%) °
EEMIRITEFIECER FIRITASE
REENEEE TAEBMNRITHE
MiER - BERBRITTFAREREES
AR IR ARRR o

RITEZIEMBEFENF1.88% E
5.68% (ZF—+tF : #)5H8 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

30. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS/BANK

BALANCES AND CASH/BANK
OVERDRAFTS (continued)
The Group’s pledged bank deposits, bank balances and
cash and bank overdrafts that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
respective group entities are stated below:

NEBEEEENDY
BAENAEBERMRITHER R
TREMBEIREARBITEIIRAT ¢

30. CHEABRTER RITEHR
BE& BITEX#®)

REEMUINE

2018 2017

—E-NFE T+

HK$’000 HK$’000

FiExT FET

HK$ BIT 52,039 26,684

United States Dollars (“US$”) Em(Ex)) 858 3,117

European Dollars (‘EUR”) &t (T’T]) — 51
31. TRADE PAYABLES 31. EZERIE

2018 2017

—E-NFE Tt

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Trade payables B S EN IR 229,676 265,364

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period.
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31.

32.

TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

31. EZRARE @)

2018 2017

—E-N\F CZZE—+tF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHT

0-30 days 0Z230H 120,043 175,398
31-90 days 312 90H 70,925 73,409
91-180 days 91 £ 180H 19,928 12,654
181-365 days 1812365 H 17,095 3,570
Over 365 days #B3E 365 H 1,685 333
229,676 265,364

The credit period on purchases of goods ranges from 30
days to 180 days. The Group monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents sufficient to ensure
that all payables are within the credit timeframe.

As at 31 December 2017, bills amounting to

HK$4,208,000 (2018: nil) were transferred to suppliers
for settling trade payables.

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

BEEYNEEBRNFRI0EZE180
BrzH - AEEEEREFZHES
MRS EEBEE @ LWERATARARK
HWNMEEHASA -

W—ZE—+&F+—-A=+—8  ABH
4,208,000 (=T —/\F : E)NE
EOEBETHRERUNSEEZE FIREMAR
13 o

32. HittENRERETE R

2018 2017

—E-N\FE —E—+F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FH&T

Other tax payables H e HiIE 32,417 62,670
Other payables and accruals Hh e 518 R BT E A 20,880 17,243
Salary payable e #H & 25,529 14,256
Construction payables BT R EEFRIE 34,594 17,774
Government grants BB & 2,533 2,668
Advanced from customers REBEFP K - 857
Deposits received from suppliers BREEREIZS 448 71
Contract liabilities XN 144 -
116,545 115,539

2018 F i BHITREFERAR]
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

33. PURCHASE CONSIDERATION PAYABLE

. RRBEEMAXNBERE

FOR ACQUISITION
2018 2017
—E-N\F CZET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHERT FHET
Purchase consideration payable U EB A MEERE
for acquisition 11,150 21,704
Contingent consideration payable JERT S AKRE 1,626 1,144
12,776 22,848
Analysed as: ON A
Current mE 12,776 11,103
Non-current ERH - 11,745
12,776 22,848

Purchase consideration payable for acquisition is initial
consideration payable, unsecured and interest-free and is
expected to be settled within 12 months (2017: within 24
months) from the end of the reporting period.

Contingent consideration that would be payable if
acquired business achieves its respective base year
turnover and profit after tax during the designated periods
of time.

The fair value of contingent consideration payable at 31
December 2018 was HK$1,626,000 (31 December
2017: HK$1,144,000) which is measured at FVTPL and
is based on the valuation performed by the management
of the Group to the best of their estimation. Details of fair
value measurement is set out in note 42.
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34. BANK BORROWINGS

34. SRITBE

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZT—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Bank borrowings comprise: RITEEBRE
Secured B - 101,110
Unsecured 15 17 620,084 577,056
620,084 678,166
Carrying amount repayable based RIFTETEEN B EEAR
on structured repayment dates: UTHHEEENREE
Within one year —FR 549,905 556,773
More than one year, but not iR —FERMER
more than two years 18,750 37,500
More than two years, but not HBBMFERAEFR
more than five years - 18,750
568,655 613,023
The carrying amount of bank BEREXRERERX
borrowings that contain a GtARBAR)
repayment on demand clauses BAR AT REEEED
(shown under current liabilities) RITIEENREE
but repayable
Within one year —FNRN 13,714 13,714
More than one year, but not Bl —FERNWEAN
more than two years 13,714 13,714
More than two years, but not HBBEMFERAFR
more than five years 24,001 37,715
51,429 65,143
620,084 678,166
Less: Amounts due within one year & : st ARBIBERN S EE
shown under current liabilities 601,334 621,916
Amounts shown under FSTAERBBENESRE
non-current liabilities 18,750 56,250
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 HZ—Z— \F+_A=+—HILFE

34. BANK BORROWINGS (continueqd) 34. RITEE#HE)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET

Breakdown of the bank borrowings:  $R/71E &5 %8
Fixed-rate borrowings TEEE 41,488 17,984
Floating-rate borrowings ZEEE 578,596 660,182
620,084 678,166

The Group’s floating-rate borrowings are mainly subject
to interest in a range at 100% to 110% of RMB
Benchmark Loan Rates issued by the People’s Bank of
China, Loan Prime Rate issued by the National Interbank
Funding Center of the PRC and Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) in a range at HIBOR plus 1.8% to
3.3%. The effective interest rates on the Group’s bank
borrowings are as follows:

AREBEFREEIZ2RPEARRT

T 40 A R BT B B

#E 100%

E110% - FEZERITERZEREF
DEHHERERFNEREBRITHE
FRE(TBABRITRAZERED N1.8%
E33%FTE - AEERITEENER

IESURE

2018

2017

—E-N\F —T—+F

Fixed-rate borrowings TE &
Floating-rate borrowings %

tl]]} rI]]}
mtt mtt

The Group’s bank borrowings that are denominated in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
relevant group entities are set out below:

46%toE£ 6.5% 4.4%t0E 7.0%
24% to£59% 21%toE 4.8%

AREBEARBEEERINEEE AN

WEMHENRITEERT

2018 2017

—E-N\EF —tF

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET FET

HK$ BT 527,586 588,248
EUR BT 1,637 -
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35. GOVERNMENT GRANTS 35. BUS#EEE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Arising from government grants: REBNREEE

Current liability (included in other mEHaEGtAEM
payable and accruals) JENFRIENREAER) 2,533 2,668
Non-current liability ERBEE 30,175 34,441
32,708 37,109

The government subsidies received related to the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment in the PRC.
The amount has been treated as deferred income. The
amount is transferred to income on a systematic basis
over the estimated useful lives of the related assets. This
policy has resulted in a credit to income in the current
year of HK$2,634,000 (2017: HK$2,577,000). As at 31
December 2018, an amount of HK$32,708,000 (31
December 2017: HK$37,109,000) remains to be
amortised.

BB EE S BKEREDE - |
BEREEER - ZAEHR AIELER
A ZRBBREBEEMTFERFH
WA RFHEBRERA - ZBUREH
RNEZRERIA 2,634,000 L (—F
— 25770008 L) N F
- NE+-_A=+—8 2%
32,708,000 T (—E—+F+ = A
=+—H : 37,109,000/ 70) A5 # Y -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

36. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES 36. EEBELEE AFE
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated REEUBRAKZEYME - BTE
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets EHREEERBBERLEEE - ATA
and liabilities have been offset. The following is the T IERE T 5 ELETLIB AR AT ¢

analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

2018 2017
—B-N\F —T—+tf
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHERT FHIT
Deferred tax assets BRI E = (200) -
Deferred tax liabilities RIETRIER B 68,565 55,133
68,365 55,133
For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated REEVBRAKRZNME - & TE
statement of financial position, certain deferred tax assets ERIEEE N AGELEEE -

and liabilities have been offset.
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(continued)

36. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

36. EXEBIBEELEE B&E#®)

The following are the major deferred tax liabilities (assets)
recognised and movements thereon during the current

and prior years:

AT RRAEEMBEFENEER

TEREHARB(EE) AREE

T

Undistributable Timing Inventories
profits of difference provisions/
Intangible ~ subsidiaries/  Government ECL on revenue salary
assets associate grants provision recognition payable Total
WEAR/
BELAN BHEE  GERAN  HEER/
BWEE  AOWER  BAREE FERE KHEZ EftEe @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL T T T T T TAL
At1 January 2017 RZE—t5-A-H 29,622 47,242 (5,530) - - - 71,334
(Crealt) charge toprofitorloss~ (3FA) 1B 184 (5,386) 15,986 387 - - - 10,987
Reversal upon payment iU {E! - (29,450) - - - - (29,450)
Exchange differences ERER - 2,685 (429) - - - 2,262
At 31 December 2017 W_E—+F
TZA=t+-H 24,236 36,463 (5,566) - - - 55,133
Effect of HKFRS 9 and 15 EREREBRSEN
application EORRERYBRE
RRIZ 1SRN E - - - (1,519 25553 - 1,034
At 1 January 2018 (restated) RZE-\E—A—H
(18 %51) 24,236 36,463 (5,566) (1,519) 2,553 - 56,167
Acquisition of a subsidary WE-RNHEAR 5,326 - - (39) - (1,048) 4239
(Credit) charge toprofitorloss (3 A) Mk E% (5,852) 14,985 3% (332) 6,698 301 16,395
Reversal upon payment REFEEE - (6516) - - - - (6516)
Exchange differences ERER - (2,099) 265 91 (384) 207 (1,920
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E
TZA=1-H 23,910 42,833 (4,906) (1,799) 8,867 (540) 68,365
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

37. SHARE CAPITAL

37. BA&

38.

Number of
shares Nominal value

5 & B HE
HK$’000
FET
Authorised: JERE -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each &A% E1E 0.005 /& JT #) & B A%
At 1 January 2017, RZE—+tF—H—H"
31 December 2017 —2—+F+=A
and 31 December 2018 =+—BER-_ZT—NF
+=—A=+—H 10,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRHE :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.005 each & AXE{E 0.005 78 T BY I 3@ A%
At 1 January 2017, R=ZE—tF—H—A8"
31 December 2017 —E—+tF+=HA
and 31 December 2018 =+—HAER=-ZE—N\F
+—-A=+—H 1,567,884,634 7,839

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY/

ADDITIONAL EQUITY INTEREST IN A

SUBSIDIARY

(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary
On 13 July 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity
interests of A M EH X BEMHER QA
Shenzhen Jinshengcai Package Material Co., Ltd.
(“Jinshengcai”) for consideration of
RMB130,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$148,018,000). This acquisition has been
accounted for using the purchase method. The
amount of goodwill arising as a result of the
acquisition was HK$82,300,000. Jinshengcai is
engaged in the manufacture of cigarette packages
and related materials. Jinshengcai was acquired so
as to economise the cost of printing of cigarette
package to cater for increasingly competitive
environment of traditional cigarette packaging
industry.
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38. WE—EHEAR,—BEHE

DAV E

(a)

KE—EHEBATR
RZE—NFLA+=H &%
BREFRYmE AT REMES
R RN £ F% 1) 100% IZ 4 -
RAB B AR ¥ 130,000,000 7T (48
R #1148,018,000/87T) ° =X
WEEBFAEEEAR - AWEE
1 2 £ /) 7 2 & %8 5 82,300,000
BT @ARKERERTERE
RiE@EME - WES AR EEEH
EREBEIRIKA - LADEE
REEBETEARBINRF
IRIE o
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY/ 38. WEE—HEKEBLAR,—HEKB
ADDITIONAL EQUITY INTEREST IN A NERNEEINRRE (&)
SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued) () WE—EHMEARE)
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the RUEE B AP I 1) & 2 K P
date of acquisition are as follows: ROBENAT :
HK$’000
FHT
Non-current assets HFRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ET N 6,363
Deferred tax assets EEFIAE E 1,087
Intangible assets B EE 21,305
Current assets HEBEE
Inventories FE 42,163
Trade receivables B 5 e IR 49,192
Other receivables, prepayments E W IE - BARERES
and deposits 518
Bank balances and cash RITEB LIRS 3,873
Current liabilities mEBEE
Trade payables B SRR (44,4706)
Other payables and accruals HAth pe 518 R T E A (8,981)
Non-current liability FABEE
Deferred tax liabilities BERIBEEE (6,326)
65,718

o RYRIBRKERBRN AR
18 449,192,000/ 7T ° X E AT
W HE B 5 EUGRIE N I EE B IR
A H#E1E 5 49,454,0008 7T °

The fair value of trade receivables at the date of
acquisition amounted to HK$49,192,000. The gross
contractual amounts of those trade receivables
acquired amounted to HK$49,454,000 at the date
of acquisition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY/ 38. WE—EKBLAR BEIKRK
ADDITIONAL EQUITY INTEREST IN A R (B
SUBSIDIARY (continued)
(a) Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued) (@) WE—EMEAT(E)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEmMELNEE
HK$’000
FHET
Consideration transferred FregeE (& 148,018
Less: net assets acquired B TN B EFE 65,718
Goodwill arising on acquisition Y iE T 3R A 82,300
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Jinshengcai KESALNESR L FE
HK$’000
FHET
Cash consideration paid FiZ IR eRE 148,018
Less: cash and cash equivalent B TR RIREFE
balances acquired IHB &8 3,873
144,145
Acquisition-related costs amounting to HK$493,000 Wt % 8 B8 Ak 48 493,000 8 ST B 1
have been excluded from the consideration transferred FRE@ERERR - WRAFE
and have been recognised as an expense in the EiREER LAEM P E W SRR
current year, within the “administrative expenses” line B [1TE R ] T B R AR o

item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY/ 38. WIE—RMKMBEAR BEHIREK

ADDITIONAL EQUITY INTEREST IN A s (E)
SUBSIDIARY (continued)
(@) Acquisition of a subsidiary (continued) (@ WE—REMEBLRE)

Goodwill arose in the acquisition of Jinshencai
because the cost of the combination included a
control premium. In addition, the consideration paid
for the combination effectively included amounts in
relation to the benefit of expected synergies,
revenue growth, future market development and the
assembled workforce of Jinshencai. These benefits
are not recognised separately from goodwill
because they do not meet the recognition criteria
for identifiable intangible assets. None of the
goodwill arising on these acquisitions is expected to
be deductible for tax purposes.

Included in the profit for the year is HK$7,295,000
attributable to the additional business generated by
Jinshengcai. Revenue for the year includes
HK$61,528,000 generated from Jinshengcai.

Had the acquisition been completed on 1 January
2018, total group revenue for the year would have
been HK$1,409 million, and profit for the year would
have been HK$232 million. The pro forma
information is for illustrative purposes only and is not
necessarily an indication of revenue and results of
operations of the Group that actually would have
been achieved had the acquisition been completed
on 1 January 2018, nor is it intended to be a
projection of future results.

A A OF BY B A B E 1 i) i
B AtRBEATEEDE -
AN AR EERE
hB B TR B 1% R O - AR
R REMHEEREEFAFAS
BB MRS - ZF M mE R
& IR B E R RERIE A
MARBYL N EEHER - ZFWHE
FHEELMEERF T ENHR
15 o

FRENBREESITEMELNE
SN 2E 7% FE 157,295,000 TT © F
NEkEEEEAEMELD
61,528,000 % 7T °

WEBR - N\F—A—HE
TR FREERSLEL R
1,409,000,0007%8 7T + F A5 7 A1
#£5232,000,0008 7T © #E &R
EHHPARS KU RBEEH
WER—_ZTE—\F—A—HERX
BREERT » AEEEREHN
W RIS EFEE - INIERKRER
RITER o
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38. ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY/ 38. WIE—RBMBEAR BEHIRAK

In August 2018, the Group entered into an
agreement with a shareholder of Zhaotong Antong
Package Material Co., Ltd. BBEBZBEBEM B ER
N A (“ZTAT”), a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, to acquire the remaining 20% equity
interest at a consideration of RMB5,321,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$6,186,000). The
consideration on acquisition was paid in cash. An
amount of HK$6,651,000 (being the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the net assets of
ZTAT) has been transferred from non-controlling
interests. The difference of HK$465,000 between
the decrease in the non-controlling interests and the
consideration paid has been debited to other
reserves.

In August 2017, the Group entered into an
agreement with a shareholder of Xiangyang
Jinfeihuan Colour Packing Co., Ltd 5 & RIRZ @
B # B R A a8 (“Jinfeihuan”), a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, to acquire the remaining
20.4% equity interest at a consideration of
RMB8,664,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$9,778,000). The consideration on acquisition
was paid in cash. An amount of HK$8,369,000
(being the proportionate share of the carrying
amount of the net assets of Jinfeihuan) has been
transferred from non-controlling interests. The
difference of HK$1,409,000 between the decrease
in the non-controlling interests and the consideration
paid has been debit to other reserves.
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ADDITIONAL EQUITY INTEREST IN A R (B

SUBSIDIARY (continued)

(b) Acquisition of additional equity interest in a (b) WiE—REMEARNEMNEARE
subsidiary i

m

RZZE—NFENA  AEEEK
ANRIFEEWNBRARIBRALZBEE
HMEARAR((RBELE]) —
BRI HiE  BRERAR
¥5,321,0007C( #H & B &
6,186,000 % 7T ) W HE 842 T 20% A
o WEBRENREIM - BH
6,651,000/ L (AIBRLBEE
FEERABEMGLH) KRIE
BRI RS o JEIEAE
TR AOHEBEEE MR ERE R
M) = %8 465,00078 T B B A H
1 -

RZTE—+FNA AEEEK
RAPBEZEMNBRRIES SRR
FEREARAR(&RIR]) —
BRRET L BREARK
8,664,000 7T (18 E 7 479,778,000
BT ) WEB 82 T 20.4% AR #E - IR
BREUNBRE 2N BH
8,369,000/ T (A& MR FEE
FREEFTE B B FRIBE 5
B o FEIERE SR
MEEEAENREMERNEE
1,409,000 7T E B A ELAb & 1 o
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 39.

On 11 January 2018, the Group disposed of its entire
100% equity interest in Empire Sail Limited & fin A R A
7] (together with its subsidiary collectively referred as the
“Disposal Group”) to an independent third party at a cash
consideration of HK$295,000,000. The principal assets
of the Disposal Group are the property, plant and
equipment and investment properties.

Analysis of assets and liability over which control

HE M B2 A
RZTE—NF—A+—HB ' AEE
IR 4 18 295,000,000 78 TT 1A — & FE 3L
ATHEFMER AR CGEREKBA
AmBEAIEESE] 23100% K
B -LESENTZEEEARYME K
B REBEARIEEE -

REEHENEERERIN

was lost:
HK$’000
FHIT
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB N 86,361
Investment properties WEYHE 118,448
Other receivables H fth fE U SR IE 129
Other payables H fth FE A 3RIE (1,619)
Net assets disposed of FritE&EF#E 203,319
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: H £ B B8 2 B RY Uk 2
HK$’000
FHT
Consideration received 2URE 295,000
Net assets disposed of A EEEFE 203,319
Gain on disposal & W as 91,681
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERELBSHRATE
Cash consideration HERE 295,000
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40. RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN

41.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

The Group participants a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of
the Group, in funds under control of a trustee. The Group
contributes lower of 5% of relevant payroll costs or
HK$1,500 per person to the Scheme, which is matched
by employees.

The employees of the Group in the PRC are members of
state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the PRC government. The Company’s subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of payroll to
the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to the scheme
is to make the required contributions under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in profit or loss of
HK$14,096,000 (2017: HK$11,117,000) represents
contributions paid or payable to these plans by the Group
at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to stakeholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes bank borrowings, net of cash and cash
equivalents and equity attributable to owners of the
Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors of
the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on
recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debt or the redemption of existing debt.

40. RIRBRIFTE

41.

AEEABEMBAEREEBZMNA
FIMEABEE - FrEIEERAEE
BESHAERE THESATENE
B AEEMEEREAEH
FEXATHBIB5% 51,5008 0 &
BEELASHER -

AEERTENREE /T EBANHE
REEEMNEFGFTEIMKE - NAF]
MEBAREARRFEETAOLER
KEME URBMRERES - K
SEY M ENETERRRES
TR PR K -

2P 18 25 T 3R 7Y 42 7 52 14,096,000 7
T(ZF—+F 11,117,000 7T ) &
AEEZFTEFRRFTENE RA M E
ETEIEEL s ZBIE R MR 3R o

EXEREE

AEBEREEAR  UBEAEED
ERAUABELE  YEBBLER
MESEHRAEEERESTREAME
o BEFUR  NEBHNBERE

AEBNEARBRRBESFR(BRE
RITEE ReMREFEBERFER)
RARBIHREAEIG#EDS (AT EEE
BITIRA N R ©

RRARESFEHEREARE - R
EZN & D ARAREEFEEE
BB N BE SRR E AR R o
AEBRBREEENER  BEXMN
BB EITHRARBITHES LB
B3R BB K T LR EANE -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

a. Categories of financial instruments

42. €T H
a. SRMIEWER

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+tHF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets TREE
Financial assets at amortised cost 1% # #5571 BR A & B & B 954,415 -
Loans and receivables (including & & EWKZE(BIEHRE &
cash and cash equivalents) MEZMEEBER) — 1,119,680
Financial assets at FVTPL BRARBEF AEBRD
TREE = 7,193
954,415 1,126,873
2018 2017
—E-NFE Tt
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET TFET
Financial liabilities cRAas
Financial liabilities at FVTPL BRARBETABRY
SRaE 1,626 1,144
Financial liabilities at REEHRAT RN SR A E
amortised costs 944,883 1,003,099
946,509 1,004,243
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
trade receivables, other receivables, financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables,
other payables, purchase consideration payable for
acquisition, amounts due to non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries, bank borrowings and bank
overdrafts. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely

and effective manner.

Market risk
() Currency risk

The functional currency of the Group’s
principal subsidiaries is RMB. While most of
the Group’s operations are transacted in the
functional currency of the respective group
entities, the Group undertakes certain
transactions denominated in foreign
currencies. The Group currently does not have
hedging policy in respect of the foreign
currency risk. However, the management
closely monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

42, TRET R (%)

b.
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BB FEEAAIMNBEERE
FEAST B /8 2~ ) FE PR AR i s K IR
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BTANFBECRBEBMERR
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BREMSRELR(EERE MR
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BRI - BEEEIENEEZ
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Market risk (continued)
() Currency risk (continued)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and

42.

EWMIAE)

b. 2HEREENEERBE(E)

mISER(E)
() E¥EEE)

KGR - REB AN
AHEMEREERERARE

monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting BREEWNT
date are as follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FET TET
Assets BE
HK$ BT 72,032 36,733
us$ ETT 4,587 8,488
EUR BT - 51
Liabilities afE
HK$ BT 548,900 589,669
EUR BT 1,637 -
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

b.

(i)

Currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the currency
of HK$.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2017: 7%) increase and
decrease in the RMB against HK$,
respectively. 5% (2017: 7%) sensitivity rate
represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the end of the reporting period
for a 5% (2017: 7%) change in foreign currency
rates. The sensitivity analysis includes bank
balances, receivables or payables, bank
overdrafts and borrowings denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency. A
positive number below indicates an increase in
post-tax profit where RMB strengthens against
HK$. For a 5% (2017: 7%) weakening of RMB
against the HK$, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit.

42. €T R (&)
SREKRTENEERKE (&)

b.

mISEE(E)
() E¥EEE)
BURE DT

REBFEAZBLERER

AN
o0
S

o

TRHANARKEHBLAE
MEESR( T -+t
T%)RERT - NEERE
REDHT o BURRE L K 5%
(ZZ—tF 7% RKRE
I8 JE ST HNES [ R A B B Ep i
BEFH - HREDITER
BRSNS EHENREZES
HE - YR HREARIL5%
(ZT—t%F 7% SMNEE
RBHFHBEBE - HURE
DT EIRIRITAER - FRUGK
TR K FE T RIBIA KR IRTT I8 2
KEE (A BB LAIMY
EHEHE) - THIEBERTR
AR EBITIHER - BRI
Rum MG - W AR
RAETRESN(ZT—+
F7%)  HEENEERE
GEDEZ

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Profit for the year FE 5 F
HK$ BT 17,879 29,029

Note: This is mainly attributable to the net exposure to
outstanding bank balances, receivables, payables,
bank overdrafts and borrowings in HK$ at end of
the reporting period.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

b.

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk in relation to variable-rate bank
balances and bank borrowings (see notes 30
and 34 respectively). It is the Group’s policy to
keep its bank overdrafts and borrowings at
floating rate of interests so as to minimise the
fair value interest rate risk. The Group’s cash
flow interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate and RMB Benchmark Loan Rates arising
from the Group’s HK$ and RMB denominated
bank overdrafts and borrowings.

The Group’s fair value interest rate risk relates
primarily to its corresponding fixed-rate
pledged bank deposits and bank borrowings
amounting to HK$11,250,000 (2017:
HK$5,455,000) and HK$41,488,000 (2017:
HK$17,984,000) respectively. The
management will consider hedging significant
interest rate exposure should the need arise.

42, TR TR (&)
SREBRTENEERKE (&)

b.

mISER(E)

(i)

2018FF

Tl [
REBEFTAERSRENE
Rk ZE)Z B RITESRN
IRITIEE (9 5 R EE30 &
34) 6@ - AEEMBURA
1S HIRITE X RIEEF EIR
B2 UBEREQAAE
BENERRE - ANEBHES
HEMERREZEPRAE
SEUBTRAREGHAER
TEZ RIEENBARITHE
EFRBFERAREERE
R F LB o

AEENARBENERR
TEMAMERESXREE
BIRTERRRITEESR
% 9 B A11,250,0007%
T (ZZF—+% : 5,455,000
#IT) K. 41,488,000/8 7T( =
T — + 4 : 17,984,000
L) c BEEERRVERE
EE R ERFIRER

BB AR AR
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Market risk (continued)

b.

(i)

Interest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates on variable-rate bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming the variable-rate
bank borrowings outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. As the management considers the
exposure to interest rate risk in relation to bank
balances is insignificant due to the low level of
bank interest rate, bank balances are excluded
from sensitivity analysis. A 100 basis points
(2017: 100 basis points) increase or decrease
is used and represents management’s
assessment of the reasonably possible change
in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 100 basis points
(2017: 100 basis points) higher/lower and all
other variables were held constant, the
Group’s post-tax profit for the year ended 31
December 2018 would have decreased/
increased by HK$4,937,000 (2017:
decreased/increased by HK$4,951,000). This
is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure
to interest rates on its variable-rate bank
borrowings.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

As at 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum
exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties’ failure to perform its obligations is
arising from the carrying amounts of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements to cover its credit risks associated
with its financial assets, except that the credit risks
associated with certain trade receivable are backed
by bills issued by reputable financial institutions.

Trade receivables and contract assets arising from
contracts with customers

In order to minimise the credit risk on trade
receivables and contract assets, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limit, credit approval, and
makes periodic collective assessments as well as
individual assessment on the recoverability of
receivables based on historical settlement records,
reasons for extended repayment period and past
experience. In addition, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model upon
application of HKFRS 9 (31 December 2017:
incurred loss model) on the trade receivables and
contract assets individually or based on provisional
matrix.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 12%
(2017: 20%) and 36% (2017: 43%) of the total trade
receivables was due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the printing of cigarettes
packages segment.

42. £@T R (&)

b.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Other receivables/bank balances/pledged bank
deposits

In order to minimise the credit risk on other
receivables, the management of the Group makes
periodic individual assessments on the recoverability
of receivables based on historical settlement
records, past experience and forward-looking
information. The Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (31 December 2017: incurred loss model)
on other receivables individually.

In determining the ECL for bank balances and
pledged bank deposits, the management of the
Group has taken into account the estimated default
loss rates in reference to the international credit
rating agency and forward-looking information, as
appropriate. There had been no significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. The
management of the Group has estimated the ECL
basing on the carrying amounts of bank balances
and pledged bank deposits at the end of the
reporting period multiplying the estimated default
loss rates. The Group has considered the
consistently low historical default rate, and
concluded that credit risk inherent in the Group’s
outstanding bank deposits and pledged bank
deposits is insignificant.

The credit risk on bank balances are limited
because the counterparties are banks with high
credit ratings assigned by PRC credit-rating
agencies or state-owned banks located in the PRC.

The Group has concentration of credit risk as 86%
(2017: 80%) of the total bank balances was due
from the three largest banks.

42. £@T R (&)

b.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.

42, TR TR (&)

Financial risk management objectives and b. SEEAMEENBEEREE(E)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FEBBRRBENS(Z)
(continued)
Other receivables/bank balances/pledged bank Hab Y B RITAE RSB
deposits (continued) HIRITIF ()
The Group is also exposed to the concentration on REETAZHE D BEREF
geographic segment of the PRC. At 31 December WER - R_ET—-NF+_AH
2018, approximately 99% (2017: 99%) of the =+—H AEBDHO%(=ZF
Group’s trade and other receivables are arising from —tF:09%)WE 5 Kk H M E
counterparties whose principal place of operations WRIERBAR B A B &%
is the PRC. BEVEF R -
The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment REBKREEE R R G
comprises the following categories: BIEATER -
Internal Trade receivables/
credit rating Description contract assets
RBEEFR Hl EaENzE
BHEE

P1 The counterparty has a low risk of default, refers Lifetime ECL — not credit-impaired

to state-owned cigarette companies
P1 HFHNEHNRRRE  EREEELH 2HBEHEEFE — REREERE
p2 Debtor frequently repays within due dates and has no past Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired

due amounts, and the length of customer relationship
is more than three years with no default history

P2 BERALFEINHEANEER TR
EFBGRERBA=F

P3 Debtor frequently repays after due dates and has past
due amounts, or the length of customer relationship
is less than three years

P3 BEHALTEINHERER FARFBEELIEKX
EFBRERIN=F

2HRBEERR - REREERE

Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired

2HRBEERR - REREERE

2018 F i BHITREFERAR]
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b.

policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

Other receivables/bank balances/pledged bank
deposits (continued)

Internal

credit rating Description

AREEFR Hil

42. €T R (&)

EREMEENBEERBEK(E)
FEBRRBERNE ()

At B RITRE R B
HIRTTIEH ()

Trade receivables/
contract assets
EZENZE
BHEE

P4

P4

P5

P5

P6

P6

P7

P7

Debtor with significant outstanding past due balances which
expects to be fully settled within one year

BBEEAREREIMERNEBTA
FEHR—FREEN

Debtor with significant outstanding past due balances which
settles from time to time and expects to be fully
settled within two years
TRHENEAREEIREANEBTA -
TR R ENEBER

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired

AEBBTAELREERE

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and the Group has no realistic
prospect of recovery

BRBERNEBABIREMBRE -

[k e B R D EE S
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Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired

2HRHBEERE - REREERE

Lifetime ECL - not credit-impaired

2HRHBEERE - REREERE

Lifetime ECL - credit-impaired

2HRHEERR - LREERE

Amount is written off

SR 35
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and

policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment

(continued)

The tables below detail the credit risk exposures of
the Group’s trade receivables, contract assets,
pledged bank deposits, bank balances and other
receivables which are subject to ECL assessment:

Financial assets at amortised costs

42, TR TR (&)

b. LREREENEERBE(E)

FEBRRBERNE ()

TRAFVAETEAEEEEN
ENAEEEZEWHE &4
BE  DHERRITER  RITE

R E A W R R E E R

B AT R 2 B A E

External Internal
credit credit
2018 rating rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
—E-N\F IMEETR RABEETIR 12BAR2HEHREEFHE BREAE
Notes HK$°000
{igs3 THER

Trade receivables 25 N/A P1 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 355,506
B 5 MR TEA P1 2HEBEEEE (BEHER)

P2 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 55,930

P2 FHRBEEEE (BEER)

P3 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 91,752

P3 FHRBEEEE (BEER)

P4 Lifetime ECL (individually) 20,497

P4 2 HEMEEEE (ER)

P5 Lifetime ECL (individually) 28,789

P5 FHRBESREE (ER)

P6 Lifetime ECL (individually) 4,152 556,626

P6 FHRBEEREE (ER)
Contract assets 26 N/A P1 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 169,007
BNEE TEA P1 FHRBEEEE (BEER)

p2 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 1,122

P2 SHEBEEEE (BEER)

P3 Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 5,465

P3 2 HEHIEEEE (BEERE)

P5 Lifetime ECL (individually) 8 165,602

P5 FHRBEEEHE(ER)
Pledged bank deposits 30 AAA* N/A 12-month ECL 11,250 11,250
BEIRRITER i 12{A ATEHEEEE
Bank balances 30 AAA* N/A 12-month ECL 355,508 355,508
RITHEER @A 12B A EHEERE
Other receivables 27 N/A (Note 1) 12-month ECL 43,277 43,277
HAt R IE i (F3E1) 12fA A EEEERE

*

The rating is originated from PRC credit rating agencies.

- AEARR B B E R R AR o

2018 F i BHITREFERAR]

211



212

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

=)

PR ERAR M

For the year ended 31 December 2018 EZE —=

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Financial assets at amortised costs (continued)
Notes:

1. For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit
risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. At
31 December 2018, these amounts are not past due or
they have no fixed repayment terms.

2. For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group has
applied the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure
the loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for trade
receivables and contract assets with significant
outstanding and long aged balances or credit-impaired,
the Group determines the expected credit losses on these
items by using a provision matrix, grouped by internal
credit rating.

Provision matrix — internal credit rating

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group applies internal credit rating for its customers.
The following table provides information about the
exposure to credit risk for trade receivables and
contract assets which are assessed based on
provision matrix as at 31 December 2018 within
lifetime ECL (not credit impaired). Debtors with
significant outstanding and long aged balances or
credit-impaired with gross carrying amounts of
HK$53,438,000 in aggregate as at 31 December
2018 were assessed individually.

—N\E+A=1+—HILHFE

42, TRET R (%)
b.

THEREENEEREE(E)

FEBERBERG(E)

BB KA SRS & B A E ()
B

1. HRABEERRERME  A5H
MABRANTRERERRENS
ERETEBELM - R=F—N
F+ZA=+t—R ZE2ERB
HAYEEFERPR -

2. HESEERERANEEMS
AEECEABEEMBREERNE
OB AT B2 HABEER
EERNERBE - RABEXRKE
ERERRESIBREEREN
BHRWHBRAGNEEN Kk
B {E AR A BEEF RS EaEE
FElEE TR S A MAERES -

BB — AEEBETAR
1’E7%$‘EEI1Z?? BB A —
B *K%lﬂﬁziﬁﬂéﬁmaﬁ
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HEEEECGREREERE)A
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, E@MIT R (%)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. 2RMEREENBEEREEE)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FEBBRRBENS(E)
(continued)
Financial assets at amortised costs (continued) REEEME — NES s EFFAR (&)
Gross carrying amount FRE4RE
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
Internal credit rating AR E B AR THYBER EZERINE
HK$’000
FHT
P1 P1 0.04% 355,506
P2 P2 0.78% 55,930
P3 P3 2.70% 91,752
503,188
Average Contract
loss rate assets
Internal credit rating A EB1E B FTAR FHEEE EZRWEIE
HK$’000
FHT
P1 P1 0.04% 159,007
P2 P2 0.78% 1,122
P3 P3 2.70% 5,465
165,594
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)

Financial assets at amortised costs (continued)
Gross carrying amount (continued)

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical settlement records, internal credit rating
and are adjusted for forward-looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort. The
grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure relevant information about specific debtors is
updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Group provided HK$2,474,000 and HK$4,281,000
impairment allowance for trade receivables and
contract assets respectively, based on the provision
matrix and assessment by individually for those
credit impaired debtors or those debtors with
significant outstanding and long aged balances.

The Group assessed the loss allowances for
pledged bank deposits, other receivables and bank
balances on 12-month ECL basis. The management
of the Group considers the bank balances that are
deposited with the financial institutions with high
credit rating to be low credit risk financial assets.
The management of the Group considers bank
balances are short-term in nature and the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of high-credit-
rating issuers, and accordingly, loss allowance was
considered as insignificant.

42. £@T R (&)
b.
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b. Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment
(continued)
Financial assets at amortised costs (continued)
Gross carrying amount (continued)
The following table shows the movement in lifetime
ECL that has been recognised for trade receivables

under the simplified approach.

42, TR TR (&)
b. 2REARSENEERRKE(Z)

FEBRRBERNE ()

BEAERE — NESEERFAR ()
AREAR(E (&)
NTRBETREBEEETEARE 5 E
WA R E MBEREEEEN

e °

e
Lifetime ECL  Lifetime ECL
(not credit— (credit—
impaired) impaired) Total
2 S 2HTE S
FEBE (K FEEE
HREERE) (HREERE) #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET THET
As at 31 December 2017 RZZT—+4%F
under HKAS 39 +TZRA=+—HRIE
BAGFERIE 395 - - -
Adjustment upon FEFRR BB s %R
application of HKFRS 9 FITRIGH T E 10,117 - 10,117
As at 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H
— As restated — REY| 10,117 - 10,117
Changes due to financial —A—H¥®R
instruments recognised SRTEAEM
as at 1 January o IR & )
— Transfer to credit — BREHBEENE
impaired (115) 115 -
— Impairment losses — BRRAEEE
recognised 2,162 4,154 6,306
— Impairment losses — BRBREEE
reversed (8,927) - (8,927)
New financial assets HEANCREE
originated 5,095 - 5,095
Exchange adjustment b 5 AR (485) (117 (602)
As at 31 December 2018  RZZE—\&F
+ZA=+—H 7,837 4,152 11,989
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42. €T R (&)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. SEEAMEENBEEREE(E)
policies (continued)

Credit risk and impairment assessment EEEFERBENE(E)
(continued)

The following table shows reconciliation of loss TRETHEHNEERAEBRE
allowances that has been recognised for contract ERYETER ©

assets.

Lifetime ECL Lifetime ECL

216

(not credit — (credit —
impaired) impaired) Total
28 2HTE S
FEEE (R FEEE
HREEERHE) (HREERHE) mgt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FAT
As at 31 December 2017 R ZT—+4F
under HKAS 39 TZA=+—HRIE
BAGFERAIE 395 - - -
Adjustment upon EREBUBREERSE
application of HKFRS 9 9%k 74 Ky 2% 76 - 6
As at 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H
— As restated — KL EF| 76 - 76
Changes due to financial —A—B#R
instruments recognised SR T A
as at 1 January 3R &
— Transfer to credit- — BRENREENE
impaired ©6) 6 -
— Impairment losses — BERAEEE
recognised - 4,125 4,125
— Impairment losses — BEOREEE
reversed (69) - (69)
— Write-offs — s - (4,131) (4,131)
New contract assets VEANEREE
originated 225 - 225
Exchange adjustment PE 3 % ) - 9
As at 31 December 2018 R Z=F—//\F
+-A=1+—8H 217 - 217

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, E@MIT R (%)

b. Financial risk management objectives and b. SEEAMEENBEEREE(E)
policies (continued)
Credit risk and impairment assessment FEBBRRBENS(E)
(continued)
The write off of contract assets is due to a customer HREFPHUEHEER] B RoREEE
who cancelled a sale order and failed to settle the RRE R EE R E R E BT
consideration and the Group agreed to waive the TERER] - & B EME -
rights of receipt.
The following table shows reconciliation of loss TRETRHME MR FIERERE
allowances that has been recognised for other BERERLER -
receivables.

12-month ECL

(not credit—
impaired)
1218 A
EHEEEER
(REREERE)
HK$’000
FH&T
As at 31 December 2017 under HKAS 39 W —ZE—+F+_-_A=+—H
RIBEB BT ERIZE 395 -
Adjustment upon application of HKFRS 9 &8 & & B 75 3R 45 X B &5 9 5%
EOEEE 815
As at 1 January 2018 — As restated RZZFE—-NFE—H—H — &&F7 815
Changes due to financial instruments —A— BRI ITAM
recognised as at 1 January IR A
— Impairment losses reversed — BB EREEE (804)
New financial assets originated FTELENSREE 267
Exchange adjustment kS (21)
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—NFE+=_A=+—H 257
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the
effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The
management monitors the utilisation of bank
borrowings and ensures compliance with loan
covenants.

The Group relies on bank loans as a significant
source of liquidity. As at 31 December 2018, the
Group has available unutilised bank borrowings
facilities of approximately HK$394,287,000 (2017:
HK$483,868,000).

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities. The
table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowings with a
repayment on demand clause are included in the
earliest time band regardless of the probability of
the banks choosing to exercise their rights. The
maturity dates for other financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.

42, TRET R (%)

b.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 42, TRET R (%)
b. Financial risk management objectives and b. SEEAMEENBEEREE(E)
policies (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)
The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from

REBESRE(EF)

KEBERANEAAERERE
i F SR AFEFE - BRI
SRR E BRAOF R E

interest rate at the end of the reporting period. B
Liquidity tables MEBEL R
Weighted On demand Total
average orless undiscounted Carrying
interestrate  than 1 year 1-2years  Over2years cash flows amounts
mE RERT ABRE
TR - -ZRER BEME REAE REE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TiEn TR Titn Fitn
2018 —E-N\E
Non-derivative financial liabilities %744 /& &
Trade payables B 5 ENTE - 229,676 - - 229,676 229,676
Other payables EthEMHE - 55,922 - = 55,922 55,922
Bank overdrafts RTEX 3.78 20,650 - - 20,650 19,807
Amounts due to non-controling ~ EF B A AIFEER
interests of subsidiaries idasigi] - 8,154 - - 8,154 8,154
Purchase consideration payable  5EUEESERA %
for acquisition BERE
— amortised cost — BHER R - 11,150 - - 11,150 11,150
— FVTPL - RRABEHARR - 1,626 - - 1,626 1,626
Bank borrowings REE
— floating rate =1 ik 4.49 585,842 19,593 - 605,435 578,596
— fixed rate — EER= 481 43,482 - - 43,482 41,488
956,502 19,593 - 976,095 946,509
2017 8-t
Non-derivative financial liabilities %744 /8 &
Trade payables BoRATE - 265,364 - - 265,364 265,364
Other payables HitENFIE - 32,882 - - 32,882 32,882
Amounts due to non-controling ~ JEHBA T
interests of subsidiaries FERERTE - 4,983 - - 4,983 4,983
Purchase consideration payable  sUEZIEMA
for acquisition IRBERE
— amortised cost — BHER K 4.75 11,103 11,103 - 22,206 21,704
— FVTPL - BRABE
FABR 475 - 1,198 - 1,198 1,144
Bank borrowings HIEE
— floating rate - ZEF|% 3.58 627,570 39,514 19,421 686,505 660,182
— fixed rate - EEf|® 518 18,915 - - 18,915 17,984
960,817 51,815 19,421 1,032,063 1,004,243
2018 Fk EEERBEIEERQR
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

b.

Financial risk management objectives and
policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity tables (continued)

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 month” time band in the above maturity analysis.
As at 31 December 2018, the aggregate carrying
amounts of these bank borrowings amounted to
HK$51,429,000 (31 December 2017:
HK$65,143,000). Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors of the Company do
not believe that it is probable that the banks will
exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors of the
Company believe that such bank borrowings will be
repaid after the end of the reporting period in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the loan agreements, details of which are
set out in the table below.

42. €T R (&)

b.

THEREENEEREE(E)

REBESER(EZ)
REEL K (&)
REREEERNBRITEEIIA
P B HE DM R E KK —F
NIWEESEERN - RZT—N
F+-A=1+—8 ZFRITHE
BEHIRE 4% 551,429,000 7 T
—E—+tF+ZA=+—8:
65,143,000 7T ) » & 5 R A&
ERFBSHR  NRAREBERE
IRIT TR REATHERIBEE KL
BIMEE - ARRERRE &5
RITEESEREER R
TEERE R A IR RS B R EE -
BRAFBENTE -

On demand Total
or less undiscounted Carrying
than 1 year 1-2years Over 2 years cash flows amounts
RER KRR E
g-FR -EmF BBRE RELE REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT ThL ThEL ThT ThT
31 December 2018 “E-\F+-A=t-H 14,061 14,061 24,606 52,728 51,429
31 December 2017 “ETt+E+ZA=+-H 14,061 14,061 38,667 66,789 65,143
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42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
c. Fair value measurement of financial

instruments
Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis
Some of the Group’s financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of
each reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined (in particular, the valuation techniques
and inputs used).

42, TR TR (&)

c. EBMIAEMD

REEFE

FEEUKEMEERAAEE
AFENERMEERSRMAGENLD

RfEE

AEEETEMEELREREE
TR ERERARR A BER

£ o TRIEMH

ERNAEEZS

TREENREBBENAAEE
MER(CERMABETER

BARIE)

Valuation
Fair value technique and Significant

Fair value hierarchy key inputs unobservable input

AREE AREEER RFESEIRBEEARE BEARTEEHARE
Financial asset
tREE
Financial assets at FVTPL As at 31 December Level 3 Discounted cash flow — Future cash flow  Estimated return (Note 1)

Structure Deposits 2018: nil are estimated based on estimated

(2017: HK$7,193,000)

BARBERARED RZB-\F+-A=+-H:% £=F
SHBERBILER (ZZ—+%: 7,193,000 7T)

Financial liability

tRAE
Contingent Consideration As at 31 December Level 3
payable 2018: HK$1,626,000
(2017: HK$1,144,000)
ERSARE RZE—\F+_A=1+—8: £-E

1,626,000 7T
(ZZ—+4 1 1,144,000587T)

Note 1:  The higher the estimated returns, the higher the fair
value, vice versa.

Note 2: A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation
would not result in a significant decrease in the fair
value measurement of the contingent consideration
payable, and vice versa.

return, and discounted at a rate that
reflects the credit risk of various
counterparties

FERDT — KRR RIRE
RETEIRANBAGEET + IR R
RBAREFHEERS
Eolsiin

Discounted cash flow method was used
to capture the present value of the
expected future economic that will
flow out of the Group arising from the
contingent consideration, based on
an appropriate discount rate

REFEHS M ARBENEX
ERFRIAREMRLAEE
HEBAREENRRE

M AFTERES
= Rz IR

fhat mag (1)

Probability of achieve
performance requirement of
100% (2017: 70%) Discount
rate of 4.75% (2017: 4.75%)
(Note 2)

EDIRBEROEES100%
(ZF—+F:70%)
TREATE(ZE—+F -
4.75%) (KiE2)

AR EE

o ]u
ey

Mize: BEBEEANFTEER LA HER
IRRENRAR EBEFERE
T RZIR °

2018FF

ERERERAERA 221



222

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Fair value measurement of financial
instruments (continued)
Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value

42, TRET R (%)

ERMITANAABEE(E)

F=EAAEETENYEK

measurements
Structured
deposits
HEBMETER
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January 2018 R_ZE—-N\F—H—H 7,193
Purchase of structured deposits BEABUTX 965,470
Net gain on structured deposits ERMERF R 3,379
Redemption of structured deposits BOA&EBUER (975,951)
Exchange differences MEH R ©1)

At 31 December 2018

RZE—NF+_-_A=+—H -

The financial liability measured at fair value on Level
3 fair value measurement represents contingent
consideration payable relating to acquisition of
Jiangsu HY-Link Science & Technology Co., Ltd
(“Jiangsu HY”) (see note 33). The change in fair
value of financial liabilities amounting to
HK$482,000 in the current year (2017: nil) relating
to this contingent consideration payable has been
recognised in profit or loss.

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during
this year.

Fair value of financial instruments that are
recorded at amortised cost

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their
fair values. Such fair values have been determined
in accordance with generally accepted pricing
models based on discounted cash flow analysis,
with most significant inputs being the discount rate
that reflects the credit risk of counterparties.

FZEBAABEAETRANE
B ENTRABEREYRKET
HEEDTFR AR AR (NI
BEDTDOENIARER
BYRES3) o AN E S Kt e 3k
AREMNERABELNEEE
©H/H482,0008 T( =T —+
F o E)NBEMER

FRREBARBLETE -

BBERATHENETHMIAND
REE
ARAEFRRNEA M HREK
REERATENTREERS
MEENKREERERAAEER
o RERREBEDIREARE
BEAZRTBREAIONET -
REENBABESRARRE
FhHEERBROITEE -
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43. OPERATING LEASES 43. REHE
The Group as lessee rEERABEA

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases which fall due as
follows:

RB|ERR - NEBTAIHELE
& #) R R &R B A0 & 5 RO HE IR
T

2018 2017

—E-N\E —T—+F

HK$°000 HK$’000

FET TET

Within one year —FR 5,150 423
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~ £ -FEZF R4

(BREEEMSE) 2,782 365

7,932 788

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office premises. Leases are
negotiated for a term of 2 to 4 years and rentals are fixed
over relevant lease term.

REMENFTEAEEREETHA
EMENEMNES - AR FH2E4
FOHRER  RARHEEHNREE
& o

2018 F i BHITREFERAR]
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43. OPERATING LEASES (continued) 43.
The Group as lessor
Property rental income earned during the year was
HK$3,256,000 (2017: HK$5,283,000). All of the Group’s
investment properties are held for rental purposes. All of
the properties held have committed tenants for the next
2 year.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum
lease payments:

KEHE B

AEBMAHEA
FRBRIAYER S WA A 3,256,000
BT (ZZF—+4F 5,283,000 7T) °
FIEAEBEREMEARIESM
BB FMERENMERREMED
BEGBHEE -

RBEHR - AEEEBEFTONR
REEHEEMNRAT

2018 2017
—E-N\FE —E—+F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Within one year —F R 654 1,817
In the second to fifth year inclusive ~ E_-_FZEZFE R F
(BHEEREMF) 110 126
764 1,943
44. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 44. BREIE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+fF
HK$°000 HK$’000
FTHERT FETT
Capital expenditure in respect of HRIWEDE  BEL
the acquisition of property, LB TR R
plant and equipment contracted U= A B 7R R S S R 1
for but not provided in the BAEY
consolidated financial statements . 67,062 4,547

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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45. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 45. UURAAEBRARIRS

Equity-settled share option scheme of the
Company

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”),
was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on 4 March
2009 for the primary purpose of providing incentives to
directors, employees, customer or supplier of goods or
services to any member of the Group, consultant,
adviser, manager, officer or entity that provide research,
development or other technological support to the Group
or its members (the “Eligible Participants”), and will expire
on 4 March 2019. Under the Scheme, the directors of
the Company may grant options to Eligible Participants
to subscribe for shares in the Company.

The total number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted under the Scheme is not permitted to
exceed 10% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any point in time, without prior approval from the
Company’s shareholders. However, the total maximum
number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of the Company from time to
time. Options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or
to any of their respective associates, in excess of 0.1% of
the shares of the Company in issue at any time and with
an aggregate value (based on the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets
issued by the Stock Exchange at the date of the grant) in
excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting.

RRBRRAEE BT E

AAmIERER B ([5H8 ) RIBER =
TENFZANRBBRARBERER
W ITEREF EE FPXEM
SRR - BAR - RAAA IR
THRABHAAEELEKE R FR
HRKEBRTENER(AE
RS EEDELHRE YKR_-F
—NFE=ZAMBER - REE - K
RABEFARAAERSEERIER
& URBARRB ©

ERGEARNRIRREFHERNBFRT -
RIS ] BE 1% A B8 AR /0 5 A AR
MR EBBAREAERAE
BITIAD HI10% ° AT » BWEATIE
RITEBREETREZTHORND &S
BETBHBEAARRTEEREITRA
30% ° A —ZBARAEEREIIE
VHERTESIHRESENEMBE
AT H) BB AR P ] 12 {6 A HA RS
BEARXQAREMNBENEBITRG
01% RBEB(UBIFREL B
BHNEBHRBERATBRAR ARG K
B & X %)% 5,000,000 T * A
EERBRERS FEUSREILE -

2018F 3 EREREBEERAF
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45.

46.

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2018

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme of the Company
(continued)

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from
the date of the offer, upon payment of a nominal
consideration of HK$1 in total by the grantee. Options
may be exercised at any time for a period determined by
its directors which shall not be later than the day
immediately preceding the tenth anniversary of the date
of grant. The exercise price of the share options must be
at least the highest of (i) the nominal value of an ordinary
share on the date of grant; (ii) the closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of the offer of the
share options; and (i) the average closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of the offer.

For the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
share options had been granted and the Company had
no share options outstanding at 31 December 2018 and
2017.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts
of the assets pledged by the Group to secure the bank
borrowings granted to the Group are as follow:

45. URHAERARORS (&)

46.

RRBRAFEEBRETE (F)

REMBREENIR L BH% 288 A
%% ARABRZNEBEREEHEE
T BIRERI N E EE T A B RER
1 A BENREERTEBH+E
FAIER - BRETEEARUT&K
=E () RE BT RRAEE ()R
REBRER BT A RERAA
WMARBRMDBWTE - K (i) BEE
TR AERS BB HRE
RETHRAR AR R THE -

B2 \Fr_Z—+F+=A
—t+—HIEFE BMERDBRE
MARBR_E—NER_ZT—+tF
T A=+—BIRERRIT{EREARAE -

BERM
R|EHR ARBEFAERET
REEOBRITEENEERBENT :

2018 2017
—E-N\F CZE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FET

Non-current assets classified PEEFEFEN
as held for sale ERHEE - 197,459
Trade receivables g 5 rEW A - 451,487
Bank deposits IRITER 11,250 5,455
11,250 654,401
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47. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 47. & EBIfIEE B ENEHE
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TRANAEERARESTHMEEE
arising from financing activities, including both cash and ENEE  BREReRIReEF-
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing e EEELCEBEAIRE R KK
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future RenIEAERENFEERERER
cash flows will be classified in the Group’s consolidated DELABMEERYEARSTNEE -
statement of cash flows as cash flow from financing
activities.
Amounts due to
non-controlling Purchase
interests of Bank Dividends consideration
subsidiaries  borrowings payables payables Total
EAREAR fEff
FERBEFE RATEE ERRE RERE o

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T TR TR TETL

At 1 January 2018 RZE—-/\§—F—H 4,983 678,166 - - 683,149
Financing cash flow (Note) BMERST (M) 3,356 (53,278) (223,825) (6,186) (279,933)
Consideration for acquisition of WE—HHB AR
non-controling interest of a subsidiary ~ JERRIERERE - - - 6,186 6,186
Dividends declared BERKRE - - 223,825 - 223,825
Exchange difference ERER (185) (4,804) - - (4,989)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-\&
+-A=t-H 8,154 620,084 - - 628,238
At 1 January 2017 NZE—+F-A—H 3,775 677,810 - - 681,585
Financing cash flow (Note) BEREST (M) 821 (12,245) (239,886) (9,778) (261,089)
Finance cost recognised ERAHERE - 75 - - 75
Consideration for acquisition of WE-ENEAF
non-controling interest of a subsidiary  FEiERRIE AL E - - - 9,778 9778
Dividends declared BERRE 1,148 - 239,886 - 241,034
Arising from acquisition of a subsidiary ~ FUEE — B A F]
st 2,831 5,764 - - 8,59
Reclassification due to change FERRREEM
in a non-controling shareholder ENDE (3,775) - - - (3,775)
Exchange difference ERER 183 6,762 - - 6,945
At 31 December 2017 RZ2—+&
TZA=1+-H 4,983 678,166 - - 683,149
Note: The cash flows represent (i) the proceeds from and repayment of MHET - BREMAE()IRITE SRS FIE & ¢ (i)
bank borrowings; (i) payment of dividends; (i) advance from IRATAR S, 5 (iil) 2R B — IR B R B E R AR A
non-controlling interests of subsidiaries and (iv) consideration wEVB R R (v) Y EE — T B R R FE AN
paid for acquisition of additional equity interest in a subsidiary. BRA R EAASRE -

2018 F i BHITREFERAR]
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48. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 48. BERRXH
(@) Transactions with related company (a) EERAEARNRS
The Group had the following significant transactions RAEERN - REBETTIE
with related party during the year: RNEEFRZS -
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHT
Company controlled by a HAQAR—RESE
director of the Company: ZENAT
Purchase of printing and BE R RS
packing machineries 3,658 1,099
An associate: — & N T
Printing and manufacturing ENfll & SiEH B B &
cigarette packages and M
related materials 47,083 -
(b) Balances with related party are disclosed in the (b) FBAEHERNERE M BRI RE
consolidated statement of financial position and in VAR By 3£ 28 K 55 ©
note 28.
(c) Compensation of key management personnel (c) TEEEAEME
The remuneration of directors and other members RAFE ZFEELRAMEEE
of key management during the year was as follows: BABHMELT
2018 2017
—E-N\FE —ZT—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHERT FHT
Short-term benefits %= HAvE A 6,708 7,130
Contribution to retirement RIREFIFT B K
benefits schemes 138 183
6,846 7,313
The remuneration of directors and key executives is BEELRTETHAENMNESA
determined by the remuneration committee having FMEEeKEREEARE X
regard to the performance of individuals and market MIGBAEET -
trends.
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49. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 49. HAREE

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group
has received a Notice of Arbitration from Shenzhen Court
of International Arbitration that Shenzhen Court of
International Arbitration has accepted the application (the
“Application”) for arbitration filed by an ex-staff of a
subsidiary of the Company (the “Claimant”). According to
the Application, the Claimant requests for the payment
of: (i) a fund raising reward of about HK$108.9 million and
the related overdue interest since April 2008; (i) a service
fee of RMB2.0 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,305,000) and the related overdue interest since
July 2007; (iii) legal fees incurred of about HK$47.0 million
and RMBO0.9 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$1,037,000); and (iv) arbitration fee, in connection with
an appointment contract and another agreement entered
into between, among other party, a subsidiary of the
Company and the Claimant in April 2005.

The directors of the Company consider that all allegations
in the Application are unfounded and without merits. In
this regard, the Group is seeking legal advice in response
to the Application and will categorically defend and
challenge all the claims by the Claimant during the judicial
process. In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
it is not probable that the Group has an obligation to
settle the claims based on the legal advice and no
provision is considered to be recognised to the
consolidated financial statements accordingly.

HEZ—+tF+A=1T—HIF
[E - AEEEERYIEEHERE N
MHRBA RTRYBEERFHED
SEANBET—HHBATIN—%
AEE ([RRADREMPE BB Z
5] c RIEZBHE FRAZRR
B (EPeE) AQq—HHE AR
HEARARZZTRAFN AT LHE
AERES—MHBRERIN() AR
#7108,900,0008 TTHIE & TR M B =
T \FM AR BREE TS (i)
A E A R 2,000,000 (8 E 74
2,305,000 8 L) WIREERE -TF
TF+ A AR BEATE (i) Fr
S| BHY A 2 B F #947,000,0007% 7T &
AR # 900,000 7t (18 7 %) 1,037,000
BIT) L R (V) HEE o

RRAPEERLS ZHBH—YIEE
VEEERBEMRZTOER © Bl
AEEE R E R AR EE SRR
REBEAREN —THRE - KR
E=RR ENEZREER  A&ET
ARRABNER  SRABAERE
BTG R R o

2018F 3 EREREBEERAF
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50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 50. XA T B A RS
COMPANY
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 RZE-—NFERZZFE—+tF+A

December 2018 and 2017 are as follows:

=t+—8 AAAHBATEENT

Place of Issue and fully
establishment/ Proportion of registered capital/issued paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/equity interests and share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
BRTREY
R/ ML FARABEIMRACRIRE BRER
WEARAR BRI RAEERREERS BE/ERmBA  FEEE
Directly Indirectly
B Ef
2018 2017 2018 2017
Z$-NF ZT-LF Z§-\F “TLF
% % % %
Briliant Circle British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00 - - US$200  Investment holding
Management Limited
(EMERERAF) EBRIES 200%T  REEK
Brilliant Circle Group British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$1 Investment holding
Holdings Limited
(EMEEZRERAR) RRRAHE 15T RERR
Brilliant Circle Printing & British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$10,000  Investment holding
Packaging Limited
(BHERIBRERAR) ERRAHE 10000%7T RERR
Union Virtue International Limited British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$1  Investment holding
(REEBRERAR) RERAHE 15T REER
Brilliant Circle Development Limited Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$2,000,000  Investment holding
(EMERERAR) BB 20000008 REER
Champion League Investment British Virgin Islands - - 100.00 100.00 US$100  Investment holding
Holdings Limited
(BEREARERAT) EBRAES 100X H"EBR
Sanbond Investment Limited Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$100  Investment holding
(BEREBRAR) B 1008T  REER
HRSBMREIRIBRAR PRC - - 10000  100.00 US$12,461,000  Printing of cigarette
(Bengbu Jinhuangshan packages, printing of
Rotogravure Printing packages and decoration
Company Limited) matter and research and
development on printing
technology
o 12461000%T FERRDR BRKE

BRILLIANT CIRCLE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LIMITED
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50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF 50. ZATBIMEARAFE#E)
THE COMPANY (continued)
Place of Issue and fully
establishment/ Proportion of registered capital/issued paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/equity interests and share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
BRTREY
R/ ML RARREERBRA BEIREK/ BRER
WEARAR B RAEERREERS RE/ERmBA  FEEE
Directly Indirectly
B B

2018 2017 2018 2017
Z§-N\F “F4F SF-NF TFLF

% % % %

R ERERIER AR PRC - - 10000  100.00 HK$9,600,000  Investment holding

(Shenzhen Guilian Printing Limited) & 9,600,000  HEER

Kecal* PRC - - 99.49 99.49 RMB194,720,000  Printing of cigarette
packages, printing of
packages and decoration
matter and research and
development on printing
technology

B# i AR#194,720000 FEOEIR  0RRE
EIV &2 ED A e EDR 51l
W k%

Jinfeihuan* PRC - - 100.00 100.00 US$3,000,000  Printing of cigarette
packages

Eiiic i 3000000%% HRIFEER

ZTAT PRC - - 100.00 80.00 US$1,000,000  Manufacturing of
laminated paper

g h 10000007 HEEAH

Giant Sino Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 60.00 60.00 40.00 40.00 US$100.00  Investment holding

(FEREERAT) RBRAES 10000571 %ERMHE

Emperor Great Investments Limited British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00 - - US$100.00  Investment holding

(FREEERRTA) EBRIES 1000058 ®RESR

Fortune Chaser Limited Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$100.00  Investment holding

(RIEBRAT) BB 10000571 %ERMHE

Empire Sail Limited British Virgin Islands - 100.00 - - US$100.00  Property holding and
property investment

FRERAH EBRIES 100005 HENMERNERE

Best Legend Hong Kong - - - 100.00 HK$10,000  Property holding and
property investment

FEgES Bt 10000X7T  HENERDERE

2018 F i BHITREFERAR] 231
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50. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY (continued)

50. AR FMBERRAFE @)

Place of Issue and fully
establishment/ Proportion of registered capital/issued paid ordinary
incorporation/ share capital/equity interests and share capital/
Name of subsidiary operation voting power held by the Company registered capital  Principal activities
BRTREY
R/ MR FRAREEIMRACRIRE BRER
WEARAR B RAEERREERS RE/ERBA  FEEE
Directly Indirectly
B# B
2018 2017 2018 2017
ZE-\F ZT+F Z2-\F ZB4F
% % % %
Forever Youth limited British Virgin Islands 100.00 100.00 - - US$100.00  Investment holding
(FEERRA) EBRIES 100005 ®ESR
Right Tech (China) Limited Hong Kong - - 100.00 100.00 HK$1  Investment holding
(RE(FE)BRAR) BB 1B RERR
Jiangsu HY* PRC - - 70.00 70.00 RMB16,800,000  Sales of RFID products
TEBENT" h AR¥1680000070  SHEFEAAIER
GEREERABRAR PRC - - 10000  100.00 RMB50,000,000  Investment holding
(Zhuhai Baozhuangbao & ARM50,0000007  HEEK
Investment Co., Ltd.)
IHSRENUBRERAA! PRC - - 100.00 - RMB70,000,000  Investment holding
(Jiangsu Jinxunda IOT ARHET700000007c AR
Technology Co., Ltd.)
Jinshencai* PRC - - 100.00 - RMB28,350,000  Manufacturing of paper
packaging materials
ERar A h ARM28,350,000  BEMBIEME

Company incorporated as a sino-foreign equity.

# Company established as foreign invested limited liability #

company.

## Limited liability company established in the PRC.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
at the end of the reporting period or at any time during

the year.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
e IS RRMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=T—HIEFE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND RESERVE OF THE COMPANY

51. AR AMBMRRRBEFEREK

2018 2017
—E-N\F ZET—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Non-current asset FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries B A R A RERS 1,197,858 1,255,610
Current assets RBEE
Other receivables H b e IR 843 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries AR EPNGIE 229,680 -
Dividends receivables FEUR IS B - 700,000
Bank balances and cash RITEHR AR 69,972 22,264
300,495 722,264
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals H e 58 kR B A 1,240 1,225
Amounts due to subsidiaries JIE Y /B N B 7R I8 119,199 316,461
Bank borrowings IRITIEE 488,837 531,998
Bank overdraft RITEX 19,897 -
629,173 849,684
Net current liabilities nEBAEFE (328,678) (127,420)
Total assets less current liabilities EEZBRAHER 869,180 1,128,190
Non-current liability FRBEE
Bank borrowings RITEE 18,750 56,250
Net assets EEEE 850,430 1,071,940
Capital and reserves EXR#HE
Share capital RN 7,839 7,839
Reserves B 842,591 1,064,101
850,430 1,071,940

2018F 3 EREREBEERAF
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

eI ERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2018 B2 —ZL— \F+_A=1T—HIEFE

51. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND EQUITY OF THE COMPANY (continued)

51. XRFMBMRRRERHREK (@)

Movement in the Company’s reserves RARREES
Retained
profits
Dividend Share Other  Exchange (Accumulated
reserve premium reserves reserves losses) Total
REEH
RERE ROEE  HURE W EXIRE  (RHER) @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR T TR TAT TAT
At 1 January 2017 i 3
—A—H 239,886 4,936,913  (4,185,977) (69,773) (290,361) 630,688
Profit and total ERENR
comprehensive *AKEER
income for the year - - - 46,612 626,687 673,299
Dividends recognised RENERRE
as distribution (239,886) - - - - (239,886)
At 31 December 2017 i 3
+ZA=+—-8 - 4936913  (4,185977) (23,161) 336,326 1,064,101
Profit and total ERENR
comprehensive PRGBS
income for the year - - - (47,305) 25,700 (21,605)
Dividends recognised BRRBDKHRE
as distribution - - - - (199,905) (199,905)
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+ZA=+—-8 - 4936913  (4,185977) (70,466) 162,121 842,591

The application of the new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the
Company’s financial positions and performance for the
current and prior years.

RAFERBIIEBYHRE LR
REEIAHAFERBEFEARSE
M BAR R RBEL BERNTZE -
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Five year financial summary

hEHBEBRE

(A) RESULTS (A) 4

For the year ended 31 December
BEt-A=t-HLEE
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“T-mF —T-RF —E-RF —T—+F ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TET TET TR

(Restated)
(&5
Revenue Wezs 1,703,423 1,494,961 1,407,209 1,265,515 1,366,753
Operating profit B ER 370,738 297,851 270,508 145,770 77,389
Gain on disposal of HEMNB AR MK
subsidiaries - - - - 91,681
Share of profit of associates 7% A &) 214,906 178,625 86,429 47,334 51,669
Share of profit (loss)ofa ~ DME—EA S EHF
joint venture (B18) - - 57 (274) 623
Profit before taxation BRI AR A 585,644 476,476 356,994 192,830 221,362
Taxation i (104,023) (79,796) (69,760) (50,023) (46,930)
Profit for the year from SELEER
continuing operations NEERF 481,621 396,680 287,234 142,807 174,432
Profit (loss) for the year from B 4% |H & & ¥ 7%
discontinued operations BERRN (EE) 1,411 (6,078) - - -
Attributable to: JEE -
Owners of the Company AL AEIHEA A 453,711 386,372 285,827 138,025 169,383
Non-controlling interests SEIEIRRE R 29,321 4,230 1,407 4,782 5,049

483,032 390,602 287,234 142,807 174,432

2018 F i BHITREFERAR] 235



Five year financial summary

A EHBERE

(B) ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (B) EEREE

At 31 December

R+=B=t+—-8
2014 2015 2016 2017 2018
“T-mF —T-RF —E—F —T—+F ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR TET TET THET TR

TOTAL ASSETS EEAE 4,483,161 4,368,408 4,158,124 4,198,506 3,934,962
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEASE (1,455,642) (1,385,294) (1,282,964) (1,217,996) (1,136,361)

3,027,619 2,983,114 2875160 2,980,510 2,798,601

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO: LAF A LFE{LRE -

Owners of the Company ARTHEBA 2,968,868 2,930,460 2,828968 2,917,632 2,763,663
Non-controlling interests RS 58,651 52,654 46,192 62,878 34,938

3,027,619 2,983,114 2875160 2,980,510 2,798,601

Note: The comparative figures are not restated on application of Mzt BIERAFEE R ERAE BN B REER
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current year. BORRBEVHMELERIFE 1557KET
LLEBET -
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